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About us

Carillion 1s one of the UK’s leading
integrated support services companies,
with a substantial portfolio of Public
Private Partnership projects, extensive
construction capabilities and a
sector-leading ability to deliver
sustainable solutions.

Front Cover Qver the last 18 months,
Carthon has won racilitte s management
contracis for Shell in the UK and Qatar
and for a Shell joini Venture iIn Oman

Inside Front Cover Canllion provides
facdines management services for
the Nanonwide Building Society’s
corporate offices and some 770

high street branches in the UK




2013 Highlights

Revenue

£41bn

2012 £44bn

Underlying profit from operations™

£214.3m

2012 £2279m@

Underlying operating margin®

5.6%

2012 56%2

Basic earnings per share

23.3p

2012 346p

Net borrowing

£.215.2m

2012 £1558m

Financial performance in line with

expectations

> Revenue was lower as expected, primarily
due to the rescaling of UK construciion

> Underlying operating margin® maintained
at56%

> The reductions in underlying profit before
taxation™ and underlying earrings per share®
reflected business rescaling and an increase in
the net financial expense

> Reported profitbefore taxation and basic
earnings per share reflected the £42 9 million
charge for restructuring energy services

Strong work-winning performance
> £4 9 billion of additional orders and probable
orders inthe year
Order book plus probable orders of £18 O billion
{2012 £181billion) after deducting £17 bilhon
due to selling equity investments 1n Public
Private Partnership [PPP) projects and reduced
expectauons from the Green Deal and Energy
Company Obliganon markets, partially offset by
the addiion of £0 8 bilhion of orders acquired
with John Laing Integrated Services
> Substanual framework contracis secured

1IN 2013 whose value 1s notincluded in the

order book
» 81% revenue visibiity® for 2014

(2012 75% for 2013)
> Pipeline of contract opportunities worth

some £375 billion (2012 £35 2 brllion)

v

{l} Aler jointVentures net inancial expense of £10 1 million
{2012 £16 0 million] and taxation charge of £4 4 million
(2012 £17 millon) and before intangible amortisanon
noen recurnng operating items and non operanng items

Underlying profit before taxation*

£174./m

2012 £2000m'?

Underlying earnings per share'®

34.7p

2012 404p?

Profit before taxation

£110.em

2012 £1648m@

Proposed full-year dividend per share

1750p

2012 17725p

Committed funding

£1.1bn+

2012 £10bn+

Net borrowng reduced from half-year

* Netborrowing of £215 2 million {2012 £155 & million},
down from £270 8 million at the half-year, despite

the addimonal second half costs of restructuning
energy services and of acquining John Laing

Integrated Services, with a significantly improved

working capiial performance in the second half

of the year, reflecung completion of the rescating

of UK construction
> Main revolving credit facility of £770 million
extended from 2016 10 2018

> Over £11 billion of commitied borrowing facilities

and private placemertt funding to support
strategy for growth over the medium term

Business rescaling complete with Group

now well pasitioned for the future

» Plannedrescaling of UK construction complete
with revenue run-rate stabilised by the year end

> UK energy services restruciured as previously
announced to reflect lower expectatons
for Green Deal and Energy Company
Obfigation markeis

Proposed full-year dividend increased by
1% to 17 50p (2012 17 25p)

(4} After Joint Ventures taxation charge of £4 4 miliron
{2012 £1 7milliont and before mangible amornsanon
Non recurming operating riems and non cperanng items
{seenote 4 on page 87)
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How 1t works

Our capabilities

We provide all the services needed to create
and manage buildings and infrastructure,
from project finance through design and
construction to lifetime maintenance,
facilities management and energy
efficiency. We also provide services to
public and private sector customers to
support the delivery of public services

and business objectives.

We report our results in four business
segments — Support services, Public
Private Partnership projects, ‘Middle East
construction services and Construction
services (excluding the Middle East).

Group overview

Restated

2013 20120
£m Em
Revenue
- Group 33326 3,666 2
- Share of |oint Ventures 748 3 7366
4,080 9 4,402 8
Underlying operating profit™®
- Group 1990 2041
- Share of Joint Ventures 410 520
2400 2561
Group eliminations and unallocated nems m2) (10 5}
Profit from operations before Joint Ventures’ net finanaal
expense and taxation 2288 2456
Share of Joint Ventures net iinancial expense (ro1 {16 0)
Share of Joint Ventures taxation 4 4) 17
Underlying profit from operations 2143 2279
Group interest (39 6) (279)
Underlying profit before taxation™ 747 2000
Intangible amortisation® 19 2) (31 4)
Non-recurring operatinig items (44 2) (26)
Non-operating items o7 2
Reported profit before taxation 106 1648

(I} Restated onadopnonaithe amendment 10 14519 [see note 34 on page 112
2V Refare  ronneliminabnns and nnallacared iteme




Support services

Inthis segment we report the results of our facihies management,
facilies services, energy services, rail services, utility services,
road maintenance and consultancy businesses in the UK, Canada
and the Middle East

Undertying operating profit

£118.0m

2012 £1209m

Order book plus probable orders

£13.6bn

2012 £131bn

Find cut more
Market review
Pages 10-12

Performance and financial review
Page 26

Middle East construction services

Inthis segment we repart the results of our bulding and covil
engineering activities in the Middle East

Underlying operating profit Order book plus probable orders

£192m £0.9bn

2012 £290m 2012 £08bn

Find out more
Market review
Pages 10-12
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Public Private Partnership projects

Iy this segment we report the financial returns generated by she
investments we make in Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects
in the UK and Canada, including those from the sale of equity
Investments

Underlying operating profit Orderbook plus probable orders

£584m £1.2bn

2012 £338m 2012 £2 2bn

Find out more
Market review
Pages 10-12

Performance and finanaal review
Page 27

Construction services (excluding the Middle East)

Inthis segment we report the results of our UK building, civil
engineening and developments businesses and of our construction
actvintes in Canada

Underlying operatng profit Order book plus probable orders

f444m £2.3bn

2012 £724m 2012 £20bn

Find out more
Markes review
Pages 10-12
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Chalirman’s statement

In 2013, Carillion has
continued to respond
decisively to challenging
market conditions, including
completing the rescalmg of
1ts UK construction activities
and the restructuring of its
energy services business,
which are now aligned 1n
size to their respective
markets, while continuing to
develop and strengthen 1ts
positions 1n new and existing
markets that offer good
opportunities for growth.

Philip Rogerson,
Charrman

Good governance
Strong corporate governance is the cornerstone of Carilhion’s business

Sy

1 Philip Rogerson
Chairman Nominaticns Commuttee and Chairman Business
Integrity Commitiee

2 Andrew Dougal
Chairman Audit Committee

3 Vanda Murray
Charrman Remuneration Commitiee

4 Philip Green
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The reducthion in total revenue to £4 1 billion {2012 £4 4 bilkont was
primarily due to the rescaling of our UK construction activities 1o ensure
they are aligned in size to our chosen sectors of the market We believe
that the process of rescaling, whrch we began 1n 2010, 1s now complete
and that by the end of 2013 the revenue run rate tn UK construction

had stabihsed Furthermore, the overall quality and nisk profile of our
business mix has improved, because we have remained very selective
In choosing the contracts for which we bid Qur focus has beenon
larger projects and on customers with whom we have long-term
relatonships, especially those for whom we provide integrated soluiions
Revenue in support services was also slightly lower than in 2012, due io
the Green Deal and Energy Company Obligation markets offering fewer
opporturites than onginally expected, which mare than offset the
strong growth we achieved in other support services markets

The reduction in underlying profit from operations® to £214 3 million
{2012 £2279 milion') broadly reflected the reduction in revenue,
with the total underlying operating margin™ maintained at 5 6 per cent
Reductions in the contributions to profit from construcuon services
{excluding the Middie East) Middle East construction services and
support services were partally offset by an increased contributton
from Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects whichincluded
anincreased contribuiion from the sale of equity mvestments in

PPP projects Underlying profit before taxation™ of £174 7 million

(2012 £200 C mithon®™) reflected the reduction in underlying
operating profit and an increase in the Group s net inancial expense

to £39 6 mulhon (2012 £279 million'®) After an underlying taxation
charge of £19 4 million underlying earnings per share were 347 pence
(2012 40 4 pence'?t Reported profit before taxation was £110 6 million
(2012 £164 8 mithon'?} and basic earnings per share were 23 3 pence
(2012 34 6 pence™) which reflected both the reduction in underlying
profit before taxation and an increase in non-recurring operating items
and non-operating items to £44 9 millilon {2012 £3 8 mullion}, the largest
element of which was a £42°9 milhion charge for restructuring our
energy services business i fine with the announcemeni we made In
our Third Quarter Interim Management Statement on 3 October 2013

Net borrowing at 31 December 2013 was £215 2 million

(2012 £155 8 million) This has fallen from a peak of £270 8 million at
30 June 2013 despite the additiona! second half cash costs relating to
the restructuring of our energy services business and the acquisition
of John Laing integrated Services (JLIS), with a positive second half
working capital movement consistent with completing the rescaling
of our UK construction activities In December 2013 we renewed the
Group‘s main revolving credit facility of £770 0 mullron and extended
s makurity date from March 2016 to March 2018 This facihty, together
with private placement funding of £303 7 million and other bank
faciines, gives the Group iotal borrowing capacity of some £1 1 ballion
to support our medium-term sirategy for growth

We have also taken a further sigrificant step towards reducing the

risks and potential habilines in respect of the Group’s main defined
benefit pension schemes Hawving already closed these schemes to new
entrants and ceased the accrual of future benefits far existing scheme
members, in December 2013 the Group’s mam pension schemes
entered into alongevity swap which hedges the iinancial risks of future
increases In longewvity The swap covers 9 000 pensioners with a
combined hability of £1 bilhon or some 40 per cent of the total habilities
nrespect of these defined benefit schemes

Duning 2013, we continued to wtn new orders and probable orders
together warth £4 9 bilhon, which was well in excess of the Group’s
revenue for 2013 and enabled us to maintain the value of our order
book plus probable orders at £18 O billion at 31 December 2013 (2012
£18 1 bilhon) Overall, this reflects a healthy work winning performance
and the addinon of £0 8 billion of orders acquired wth JLIS, largely
offset by the removal from our order book of £11bilhon of orders due o
the sale of equity investments in PPP projecis and £0 6 billon of orders
due 1o reduced expectauans from Green Deal and Energy Company
Obhigation contracts We contmnue to have good revenue visibility™
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which is currently around 81 per cent of anticipated revenue in 2014
{2012 75 per cent for 2013} Furthermore, at 3t December 2013, our
pipeline of contract opportunities had also increased to £375 billion
(2012 £35 2 bilhon)

The Board 1s recommending a final dwvidend of 12 00 pence per share
{2012 11 85 pence per sharel, making the total dvidend for 20131750
pence, anincrease of one per centonthe 17 25 pence paid in respect
of 2012

Dividend
Five year compound annual growth rate

+6%

Having served as Chairman of Carillion for nine years | plan to retire
from the Board at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 7 May
2014 1will be succeeded as Chairman by Philip Green who joined

the Carillion Board in June 2011 and 1s currently Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director Philip Green will also succeed me as chairman
ol the Nominauons Commitiee and chairman of the Business Integrity
Committee Sieve Mogford, who joined the Board as a Non-Executive
Director in September 2006, will succeed Philip Green as Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director

Vanda Murray OBE will also renre from the Board at the Company's
Annual General Meeung on 7 May 2014 Vanda joined the Board

in June 2005 and currently chairs the Remuneration Comnuttee
Vanda has made a major contribution to the Board and to ithe Group’s
development and success and leaves with the Board'’s grateful thanks
Ahson Horner, who was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of

the Company on 1 December 2013, will succeed Vanda Murray as
chairman of the Remuneration Committee

As anncunced on 20 February 2014, Cen Povell will be appointed

as a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 2 Aprit 2014 Ceniis
Executive Vice President for Exploraton of Royal Dutch Shell and her
considerable expertence as a business leader will enable herto make a
valuable contribution to Carilhon's development Cen will serve on the
Audit Remuneration Nomnations and Business Integnty Committees

Locking forward we expect market conditions to remain challenging
in 2014 However having continued to winwork in 2013 and in the early
part of 2014 and having maintained a healhy pipeline of coniract
oppertunities, the Group 1s well positioned for the future

/M{o @&ucu

Philip Rogerson

Chairman
5 March 2014

(I} The underhangresulis stated above are based enthe deftnitons included in the
financiat ighlighrs on page |

(2] Restated onthe adopuon of the amendment 014513

(3} Basedonexpectedrevenue and secure and probable orders which exclude
variable work and re bids
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In 2013, Canllion was awarded

a £400 mullion contract for the
firsi phase of the redevelopment
of Battersea Power Station
miondon




Strategy

In this section
08 Intreduction
10 Market review
14 Integrated business model
16  Vision, values, strategy and
risk management
20 2013 Key Performance Indicators
22 Outloock
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Having completed the
rescaling of our UK
construction activities and
the restructuring of our
energy services business,

[ believe we are now well
positioned to deliver growth
over the medium term.

Richard Howson,
Group Chief Execuive

Business reshaped
As expected, market condinens remained challenging in 2013
and we continued to respond to this by

» completing the rescaling of our UK construction actmvities and the
restructuring of our energy services business, to ensure these
remain aligned 1o the size of their respective markets

> developing and strengthening our positions in new and existing
markets that ofler opportunities for growth

> diversifying our suppori services offering to enable us to enter
new growth markets

As aresult, we have reshaped our business and created a platform
fromwhich | believe we can now take the Group forward To achieve
this we have also adjusted our strategy, refreshed our Vision and
Values and set new targets for growth, about which we say more on
pages16and17




By the year end, we had successfully completed the rescaling of our
UK construcuon activities, which we began in 2010, with a stabilised
revenue run rate fromthese aciwvities Rescaling has created asirong,
high-qualny construchon business in the UK, which s capable of
achieving growth, while continuing to be selective in terms of the
contracts for which it bids in order to maintain its operating margin
above the industry average

We also completed the restructuring of our energy services business,
i1 line with the announcement we made in our Third Quarter Intenm
Management Statement on 3 October 2013, in response to both

the Green Deal and Energy Company Obligation markets being
considerably smaller in size than both the industry expected and

the UK Government predicted at the beginning of 2013, when these
markets were created by UK Government legislation

Atthe same ime, we have successfully developed and sirengihened
our positions in new and exishing markets that offer good opportuniies
for growth For example, having entered the support services market
for oil sector customers in late 2012, through the acquisition of the
Bouchier Group in Canada and by winming a major contract for
Petroleum Development Oman in the Middle East, in 2013 we won
further substantial coniracts in this sector, natably for Shetl in the UK,
Qatar and Canada

In the UK we continued to win support services contracts for both pubhic
and private sector customers, including Local Authenities, as a number
of these Authorities look to the private sector for help in reducing costs
and improving efliciency We became the preferred bidder for a
number of substanual suppor1 services contracts for private sector
customers, including Royal Bank of Scotland and Arqiva, and thisis
particularly pleasing as relanvely few large contracts for private seclor
customers have come to market in recent years We have also
continued to be successfulin winning support services contracts for
infrastructure, paracularly in the rail and telecommumcanons sectors

I ine with our strategy of enhancing and diversifying our support
services offering, we acquired John Laing Integrated Services (LIS}
on 18 October 2013 for a gross consideration of £17 5 million or

£13 4 mulion net of £4 1 mithon of cash held by JLIS at acquisition
JLIS provides support services across the UK local government,
education police, health hbrary and rail sectors Combiming the
skills and knowledge of JLIS with those of Carillion has enhanced
our existing capabilities and taken us into new sectors that offer
opportunities for growth

In Canada we have also continued to focus on opportunities for growth
N our support services business and secured significant new contracts
inthe natural resources sector notably the oil sector, and in highways
maintenance Growth insupport services is also coming from our Public
Private Partnership (PPP) projects as these move from construction snio
the operational phase To defiver medium term growth in construction
in Canada, we remain focused on bidding for PPP projects especially
inthe health sector as these continue to account for a substantial
proporionof Canada’s large PPP investment programme

In the Middle East, the construction markets continue to offer
oppariuniies lor growth and we expect the pace of contract awards

to Increase gotng forward, notably in Oman, Qatar and Sauds Arabia
inthe short-term, and in the medium-term in the Umited Arab Emirates,
espeaally given the addinonal investment that 1s now expected in Dubai
following its success in being chosen to host Expo 2020 We are also
seeing an increasing number of oppoertunities for our supportservices
businessesin the Middle East notably for faciliies management in the
otl and health sectors and in highways marntenance

09
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We say more about the
contracts we have won in
2013 and the outlook for our
business segments in the
‘Performance’ section of

this report on pages 23 to 33,
and about the markets we
are targeting going forward
on pages 10to 12

Market review Performance
Pages 101012 Pages 231033

Health & Safety and sustainability

Our commitment to beng arecogrused leader in Health & Safety and in
sustainability continues to be an integral part of our strategy for growth
Providing a safe working environment for all our people and ensuring
the safety of those who work with us or are affected by what we do, 1s
our first priority and fundamental to our wider responsibility of
delivering sustainable solutons for our customers that create positive
impacts on the environment and on the commumties in which we
operate OurHealth & Safety and sustainability strategies and
programmes are published in our Annual Sustainability Reportn

April However a summary of our perflormance can be found inthis
report on pages 34 to 37

Our people

We have also continued to invest in developing and attracting excellert
people 10 create a vibrant, diverse and llexible workforce which 1s
fundamental to the success of our business This consistenily features
among our annual Key Performance Indicators, on which we report
progress on pages 20 and 2} In particular, we have continued our drive
towards greaier diversity in our business At 31 December 2013 the
Group had a total of 41 304 employees of which some 16,000 were
ternale and 25,000 were male Of the 493 senior managers in the
Group, 57 were lemale and 436 were male The Carillion plc Board
comprised six male and two female Directors Of the 83 members

of the Chiel Executive’s Leadership team and thewr direct reports

14 were female and 69 were male

Retirement of our Chatrman

As our Charrman has said in his Statement on page 5, he plans to retire
from the Board at the Company’s AGM on 7 May 2014, having served
as Chairman for nine years Under Philip’s chairmanship, Carillion has
delivered substaniial growth in revenue profit and dridends, driven
by the Group s transformation from being primarily a UK construction
company Into an internanenal, integrated support services company
with a substanual portioho of PPP projects, high quality construchion
capabilites and sector-leading experuse in delivering sustainable
projects and services | should like to thank Philip personally and on
behalf of the Board for the outstanding contribution he has made to
the Group’s success
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Market review

In this section
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Introduction

Market review

Three core capabilines

A balanced business

UK

Canada

Middle East and North Africa (IMENA)
Integrated business mode!
Vision, values, strategy and

risk management

2013 Key Performance Indicators
Quilook

Three core capabilities

We have three core capabilities - support services, construction
services and project finance - and we use these capabilities, either
individually or in combinations, to design and deliver services to meet
the specific needs of our customers

Having this wide range of capabilines, together with the scale and
resources to dehver large, complex projects and nationwide support
services solutions, helps to differentiate Carillion from iis competitors

Our integrated business model s tllustrated on page 15

Support services

We are a leading international support services company with all

the skills and capabilines needed 1o manage, maintain and operate
builldings and infrastructure, notably for large property estates and for
transport and utility networks We also provide services to public and
private sector customers (o suppori the delivery of public services and
business objectives
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Construction services e Three geographies

We have sector leading construction capabilives in the UK, Middle We operate in the UK, Canada and the Middle East and

East and Canada, selectively focused on large, higher added-value North Africa, in which we target a number of market sectors,
contracts for cusiomers with whom we have or canbuild long term as described on the following pages

relationships

Project finance

We are one of the world’s ieading companies in delivering Public Private
Partnership projects, for which we use our sector leading expertise In
arranging project finance, combined with our construction and suppeort
services capabilities to deliver a wide range of asset-based services for
public sector customers

A balanced business
We have a resilent UK and international business mix well positioned
in markets offering good prospects for growth

1 Canada

/
3 M[gjdle
East and
“North Africa

Spht of revenue

1 Canada - 16%
2013 E671 Im™

2 UK-71%
2013 £2,878 2m'@

3 Middle East and
North Africa - 13%
2013 £5316m
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Market review

continued

UK

Key target market sectors

Support services
» Infrastructure services
- Rail
- Roads
- Telecommunlcanons
- Power distribution networks
> Ol sectorservices
* Property and facities management
- Central government
- Local authoriues
- Private sector
> Energyservices

Construction services
> Transport
- Roads
- Rail
- Airports
*> Defence
> Education
> Private sector

Public Private Partnership projects
> Health

> Defence
> Education

Revenue

£.2,6878.2m"

(202 £3 264 8m}
Percentage of total Group revenue

/1%

o

(2012 74%)

{1 Includes £33 3 mullion (2012 £16 9 millonl of revenue

generated cutside of the UK Middle Eastand
North Atnca and Canada

Canada

We have operated in Canada for 50 years and
have a well-established business targeting the
following key market sectors

Supportservices
> Infrastructure services
- Highways maintenance
- Power distribunion networks
b4 Oll seclar services
> Property and faclities management
- Health
- Defence
- Educauon
- Municipahnes

Construction services
* Transport

- Highways

- Rail

- Airports

- Power
» Health

Public Private Partnership projects
» Health

Revenue

£6/71.1m"

(2012 £6509m)

Percentage of total Group revenue

16%

(2012 15%)

{(2) Includes 210 7 milion {2012 £10 5 milion) of revenue
generated in the Caribbean

Middle East and North Africa (MENA)

We have operated in MENA for 40 years and
have well-established businesses targeting
the following key market sectors

Construction services
> Buildings and infrastruciure
- Oman
- Dubai
- Abu Dhabi
- Qatar
- Saudi Arabua

Support services
> Oilsector services
> Property and facihties management
» Infrastructure services
- Hhighways mainienance
> Energy services

Public Private Partnership (PPP) projects
¥ There s potential for PPP projects in
the region in the future notably inthe
health sector
> Achively bidding in the health sector
N Turkey

Revenue

£531.6m

{2012 £4871m)

Percentage of total Group revenue

13%

(2012 11%)
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Integrated business model
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22 Qutlook

Resources

We continue to invest In developing and attracung excellent people

to create a vibranl, diverse and flexible workforce, because this 1s
essential to the success of our business Consequently operational
excellence I1s one of our key strengths that is based on strong
management ieams and skilled and committed people who listen to
our customers 10 understand their needs and work with customers to
help shape the contracts they bring to market We then use our skills
and resources to destgn value-lor-money solutions to meet the specific
needs of each customer The ability to use our sector leadership in
sustainability to design sustanable solutions for our customers s
anncreasingly important resource and capability, which helps to
differentiate Cardlon from our competitors

We have a strong culture and an excellent irack record in managing
costs and improving efficiency Qur annual cost reduction and eticiency
pregrammes make a major contribution Lo operational excellence,
which enables us to win contracts on profitable terms With external
expenditure with supphers of some £3 billion a year, we have focused
on developing a best-in class supply-chain management team as this
i1s vital to managing our costs and delivering nght first nme services
for our customers A good example of our innovation in supply chain
managementis Carlion Direct Sourcing (CDS), a company we have
established in Chinato source producis directly from manufacturers
This cuts out the ‘middle men’ and enables us to buy in greater
volumes because COS supplies all our businesses worldwide




Integrated business model
Creating unique offerings

Integrated

solutions

>

>

>

Support services

Construction

PPP projects

15
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Sector-leading facles
management, infrastructure
services and energy services
Long-term contracts providing
good wisibility

Restlient revenue platform
Growth underpinned by public
sector outsourang

\\mm—’/_,/

Strong engineering capabilities
Selectively focused on quality
and delivery

Rigorous nsk management
Strong track record of
good-quality earnings
Positive cash flow dynamics

T T

Speciahst skifls that provide
a competitive advantage
Valuable equity investments,
recycled tc generate cash
and profit

Secures long-term support
services contracts

Secures goed-quality construction
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To support our strategy for growth we have refreshed our vision
and values

Ourvision

Tobe the trusted partner for providing services, delivering
infrastructure and creating places thai bring lasting benefus o
our custoemers and the communibies in which we live and work

Ourvalues

We care

> We respeci each other and we dothings safely and sustainably
It's good for our people our business and our local communities

We achieve together
» We value the contribution of each individual and we work together
to build strong open and trusting partnerships

We improve
> We listen, learn and adapt our ideas and experience into better
solutions and service for our customers

We deliver
> We set ourselves stretching goals, taking pride in doing a great job
and helping our customers and partners to succeed

Strategy
Our strategy is to achteve sustainable profitable growth by

> investing 1 our people and capabilities

> bullding long-term, trusted partnerships

> transferring knowledge and skills to new
and existing markets so we can expand
our services and infrastructure activities

> providing a selective high-quahity
construction capability

Risk management

Carilhion has ngorous operational nsk management policies and
processes to identify, mitigate and manage strategic Group-wede
risks and nisks specific to our individual business units and contracts,
including economic, social, environmental and ethical risks

Carillion has a Group Head of Risk who s responsible for

> Adwising on sirategic nsks atfecung the Group

> Conducting Independent nisk appraisals of alt projects prior to
them being subrmutied to the Major Projects Commuttee, which
ts a Commutiee of the Board with delegated authority to sanction
major commuments and transactions, including capnal
expenditure, major contracks and business acquisions and
disposals, up to specified levels of risk, beyond which they are
referred to the Board

> Overseeing risk iraining across the Group

Our nsk management processes are appled to every aspect of our
operations from choosing the geographies in which we operate, our
market sectors and the contracis for which we bid te the selection of
our customers partners and suppliers We also apply them to every
stage of a contract from its incepnion to completion, In order to deliver
value-for-money services for our customers and the cash backed profit
we expect

T¢-8E IDUBUISADD | ZE-€T ADUBULIOJIA] | zz-90 A8aeng | $0-10 MITAIIA0
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Vision, values, strategy
and risk management

continued




Operational nsk management

The Group's siructure for managing operational risk is lllustrated below

Carillion plc Annual Repart and Aecounts 2013

L

Carilhon plc Board

]

I Business Integrity Committee

I_

_{

Audn Commuttee

1

’” Major Projects Committee J

l Strategic Group-Wide Risks I

| Performance Review Meetings

L

Group Risk Forum ’

[ Business Unit Risk Managers

]_

———

T

Contract Risk Managers

M

Contract Performance Monitoring

l Tenders for New Contracts |

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s principal risks

Patentlal impact

Mitigation

Continuing to win contracts
in our existing and new
target markets and
geographies, consistent
with our strategy for growth
and on satisfactory terms
and conditions

Failure to achieve targets for
revenue growth, cash-backed
profits and earmings

- v v v

v

Continually analysing our markets to ensure we understand the
opportunities they offer

Listening to our customers to ensure we understand their needs
Continually seeking to differentiate our offering

1o ensure Il meets customers’ needs

implementing annual eficiency and cost reduction programmes
10 remain competitive

Behaving in accordance with our values to support our objective
of being the partner of choice for our customers

Managing major contracts to
ensure that they are delivered
on time, to budget and to the
required standards

Failure to achieve the margins
profits and the cash flows we expect
from contragts with consequent
damage to our brand reputation

w

v

v

Applying well defined selectity criteria fo ensure we take

on contracts only where we understand and can manage the
risks involved

Applying our ngorous policies and processes to monitor and
manage coniract performance

Ensuring we have high-qualty people delivering projects

Managing our pension
schemes to ensure that
schermne habilittes are within
arange appropriate tc our
capital base

Anincrease in habilities would reduce
Carilhon’s net assets and adversely
affect the market’s valuation of
Carnilhon and 1ts share price

v

-

The Group’s main defined benefit pension schemes have been
closed to future accrual

The Group’s main pension schemes have entered into a longevity
swap which hedges the hinancial nisks of future increases in the
longevity of 9,000 pensioners in these schemes (see page 31
Repgularly reviewing our investment policies to ensure that
employee and company contributions, together with scheme
benefuits, remain appropriate

Attraciing, developing and
retaining excellent people

Fallure to deliver high-quality services
10 our customers with consequent
effects on profits, brand reputation
and our ability 10 win new contracts
and achieve our targets for growth

Developing and implemening leadership personal development
and employee engagement programmes that encourage and
support all our people to achieve therr full potenual

Maintaining high standards
of performance in respect

of secunity, including cyber
security, Health & Safety and
other statutory requirements

Adverse effects on employee morale
leading to Increases in employee
dissansfacuion and employee
turnover rates, together with the

loss of customer, supplier and
pariner confidence and conseguent
damage to our brand reputation

Applying ngorous risk management processes supported

by robust business continuity plans

An ongoing commitment to “Target Zera’, our programme

to eliminate reportable acaidents, including implementing
management systems that conform to Occupanional Health &
Salety Assessment System 18001

implemenang thorough, mandatory staff training programmes to
support the delivery of our objectives and to ensure comphance
with our statutory obligations and policies in respect of ethics
and values

Selecting high quality
joint venture and supply
chain partners

Failure to deliver contracts on tme
and io budgei, with consequent
damaoce to our brand renutation

Applying selectivity criteria to ensure we choose partners and
suppliers that sausfy our standards for qualty, reliabihty and
financial statuliny
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2013 Key Performance Indicators
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How we performed in relation to the five Key Performance
Indicators we set for 2013

To be an employer of choice that attracts, develops and retains
excellent people

Asthe skills, knowledge and commitment of our people are
fundamental to Carillion’s success, we continued to focus on iImproving
employee engagement throughout 2C13 This included more extensive
and direct employee commumicanon, led by our Chief Executive,
Richard Howson, through his monthly newsletters to all employees and
regular telephone conference calls with up to 1,600 managers and
supervisors across the Group In 2013, we set up an international action
group to address the feedback receved through our annual employee
survey The Great Debate which has led to anumber of changes
including the introduction of improved flexible working arrangements
that are opento all We have also significantly improved maternity pay
arrangements to support our drive for greater diversity at all levels and
we will develop this further in 2014

We have continued our very successful Leadership and Futures
programmes underpinned by job-family career management, to
encourage people to make their careers with Carilion Through
apan Canllion working group we engaged our employees in
developing new company Values which are featured on page 17

of this report We have also refreshed The Great Debate survey

and our recently announced partnership with Barnardo’s, one of

the leading children s charities, wilt offer new opportumities for cur
people ta volunteer and engage with the communities in which we
waork, which cur people tell us makes Canllicn an attractive employer

To be a recognised leader in Health & Safety and sustainability
Qur objective of reducing acaidents to zero remains at the core of
our Health & Safety agenda and we target zero accidents each and
every day If an acaident does occur we ensure we learn from it and
target zero the next day We continue to Invest in programmes to
engage, educate and train all cur people backed by strong, visible
leadership, including Directors Safety Tours and Safety Action Groups,
together with safety audits Through our hazard reporung programme,
Don't Walk By" everyone in Carllion s encouraged to report for
immediate action anything they consider to be unsafe and in 2013
over 15 million Bon t Walk By reports were raised by employees and
subcontractors worldwide

In 2013 we changed our Key Performance Indicater from the
Acadent Frequency Rate based on the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases
and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations, to the Last Time Incident
Frequency Rate {LTIFR}, which s the internationally accepted measure
of performance - a change that we said we intended {0 make in our
2012 AnnualReport In 2013, our LTIFR per 200,000 hours worked
was 0 29, which represented a 44 per centimprovement on our
performance in 2012 when our LTIFR was O 52

We deeply regret thai one fatal accident occurred on a Carillion

work site 1n 2013, when an employee was fatally (njured as a result of a
vehicle from a public road losing control and entering the site while he
was carry:ng out highway maintenance work in Alberta, Canada This

personal tragedy has been deeply felt by all lus colleagues in Canillion

During 2013 two prosecutions of Carillion companies were completed
by the Office of Rail Regulation and the Health & Safety Executive

The first concerned a fatal acaident in 2003 when an employee was
crushed in moving parts of a rallway machine The second concerned
an accident to a matorcychst in 2010 when he collided with barriers
erected to manage traffic during highway maintenance work
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Canllion continues to be a recognised leader in sustainability in

our sector A key measure of this is our ranking in Business in the
Community s Corporate Responsibility Index In 2013, we achieved

the ‘Planum Big Tick’ ranking, a new ranking that sits above ‘Platinurmy’,
the ranking we received each year from 2008 to 2012 I1n 2013,

we also became one of the top 10 UK compamnies in tackling chmate
change, through our Carbon Disclosure Project™ {CDP) score of

‘Q2A° which placed us in both the CDP Disclosure and Performance
Leadership Indices

Our Annual Sustainabihty Report won the FTSE 250 Sustainability
Reporting category in this year s PwC Bwlding Public Trust Awards’
Through our proactive approach we esumate that we delivered
some £20 million of addmonal profit to the Graup in 2013 through
environmental and social sustainability savings inline with our
2020 sustainability strategy We reportin more detall on our
sustainabibty performance in the sustainabiity section of this report
on page 34 and in our Annual Sustainability Report which will be
published in April 2014

To improve customer satisfaction

In 2013, we formally adopted Net Promoter Score {NPS), an international
standard that allows us to measure customer satisfaction and
benchmark ourselves against other organisations and the wider
business warld Customers are asked in surveys and interviews to
indicate how | kely they are to recommend Carillion’s services to others
NPS’s range from -100 to +100 and our score 1n 2013 was +33, which
was ahead of our target of +30 We belleve our score compares
favourably with those of others in cur market sectors We also use the
NPS model to gather feedback and information tc help us improve the
services we provide for our customers

To reduce costs and improve etfficiency to support margins
Carillion has ongoing cost reduction and efficiency programmes across
alt our business units and central funciens Rigorous cost management
and a relenttess focus on efficiency have continued to support our
ability 10 provide customers with offerings that are attractive in terms

of price, as well as quality This was evidentin our ability to continue
winning contracts in 2013 in ine with our selective approach despite
challenging market conditions, while maintaiming our underlying
operaung margin at a healthy 5 6 per cent

To deliver cash-backed profit after adjusting for the

effect on working capital of having largely completed the
planned rescaling our UK construction activities 1n 2012

Strong cash management remains a priormy and this has been
particularly important during the rescaling of cur UK construction
actvines Contrary to our expectations at the beginning of 2013,

we had 10 continue rescaling our UK construcnon achivities throughout
the year in order io ensure these activinies remain aligned in size to
the UK market However, we believe that by the end of 2013 rescaling
was complete and thai the revenue run raie in UK construchion

had stabihsed This has resulted in a significant improvement in our
second-half working capital performance, with full year cash flow
from operations representing 75 per cent of full year underlying profit
from operations (2012 43 per cent) and second-half cash flow from
operations representing 128 per cent of second-half underlying

profit from operations {2012 44 per cent}

(I} CDPisanmernational nat for prolit orgamisanon providing the only globat

systern tor companies and cites o measure disclose manage and share vaal
environmenial information
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Outlook
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Order book plus probable orders

E 1 8 . Obn at 31 Decernber 2013 (2012 £181bn)

1 Construction services
(excluding the Middle East)
2013 £2 3bn /2012 £2 Obn

2 Middle East
consiruction services
2013 £09bn /2012 £0 8bn

3 Supportservices
2013 £136bn /2012 £131bn

4 Pubhc Private Partnership
projects
2013 £12bn /2012 £2 2bn

Pipeline of contract opportunities

£ 3 7. Sbn at 31 December 2013 (2012 £35 2bn)

1 Construction services
lexcluding the Middle East}
2013 £N10bn /2012 £107bn

2 Middle East
CONSITUCHION Services
2013 £131bn /2012 £11 4bn

3 Supportservices
2013 £10 4bn /2012 £11 5bn

4 Pubhic Private Partnership
projects
2013 £3 0Obn /2012 £16bn

Outlook

Despite difficult market conditions, we conunued to win substanual
new orders and probable orders in 2013 worth some £4 9 billion,
which 1s weil in excess of the Group’s revenue in 2013 A1 31 December
2013, the Group had orders and probable orders worth £18 O billion

{31 December 2012 £18 1billion) of which £16 4 billon related 10 signed

contracts and £1 6 billion te probable orders, which are contracts thar we
have a greater than 90 per cent probabulity of signing, where, for example,

we have been selected as the preferred bidder

This represented a very healthy work winning performance, given that
tn 2013 we removed from our order book £17 tullion of orders due to
the sale of equity Investments in Pubhic Private Partnership projects and
reduced expectations frorn Green Deal and Energy Company Obligation
contracts, and added £0 8 bilion of orders acquired with John Laing
Infrastructure Services We therefore continue to have good revenue
visibility, which s currently around 81 per cent of anticipated revenue
102014 (2012 75 per cent for 2013}

We were also selected for a number of large framework agreements in
the UK during 2013, for both support services and construction Although
we expect these frameworks to generate significant revenue for the
Group, we have notincluded themwathin our order book or probable
orders because they have no guaranteed revenue value untll contracts
are awarded under the framework agreements

The value of our pipeline of contract opportunities at the year end
increased to £375 bilhon (2012 £35 2 billion) which includes specific
contracts that have passed our inimal selectity criteria, and have either
come to market or are expected 1o come to market

Therefare, despite the fact that we expect our markets 1o remain
challenging in 2014 | believe we are now well positioned to resume top
line revenue growth by the end of 2014 More speafically, we expect to
resume full-year revenue growth in

> support services and
> construction services (excluding the Middle East)

We also expectto

> conunue growing annual revenue in Canada and inthe
Middle East and

> conunue winning Public Private Partnership projects in which we
can make equity investments that generate good financial returns
targeting an internal rate of return of 15 per cent

Across all our markets we will remain very selective in choosing the
contracts for which we bid in order to maintain margin discipline and we
will once again target cash-backed profit now that we have completed the
rescaling of our UK construction activities

Key Performance Indicators for 2014

To support our strategy and the delivery of our medium termtargets
for growth, we have set the following Key Performance Indicators
for 2014

» To develop and atiract excellent people to create a vibrant diverse
and flexible workforce

To be arecogmised leader in Health & Safety and Sustainability

To improve customer satisfaction

To reduce costs and improve efficiency to support margins

To deliver cash backed profit

v Y v v

Approved by order of the Board

S

Richard Howson

Group Chief Executive
5 March 2014
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Performance and financial review

Following the successful
rescaling of our UK

construction activities,
net borrowing has
reduced significantly from
the half-year position.

Richard Adam,
Group Finance Director

Financial reporting segments and analysis

Operating profit by financial reporting segment

Change from
2013 20120 2012
£m £m %
Supportservices nae 1209 -2
Public Private Partnership projects 584 338 473
Middle East construction services 192 290 34
Construchon services {excluding
the Middle East) 44 4 724 -39
2400 2561 -6
Group eliminations and
unallocated items {na (10 5) 7
Protit from operations betare Joint
Venrtures net financial expense and
taxation 2288 2456 -7
Share of Joint Ventures net
financial expense o1 (16 Q) +37
Share of Joint Ventures taxation (4 4) 17 159
Underlying profitfrom
operations™® 2143 2279 6
Intangible amortisation {192) (314) +36
Non recurring operating items {44 2} {26 -1.600
Reported profit from
operations 150 9 1939 22

M Paocts ad an adant aoafthae sswandoane

ARG IO fraanm a 24 Am mnan 1P



Group overview

Carillion s an integrated support services company with a substantial
portfolio of Public Privaie Partnership projects and extensive
construcuon capabilmes Having this wide range of skills and resources
enables the Group to delver fully integrated solutions for buildings and
infrastructure, from project finance through design and construction

to hifeime asset management, together with business support services
that add value for cur customers and the communities in which

we operate The group has operations in the UK, Canada and the
Middle Eastand North Africa as described on pages11and12

Total revenue reduced in 2013 to £4 1 billion (2012 £4 4 billion),
including revenue from Joint Ventures of £748 3 million

(2012 £736 6 million), primarily because of the rescaling of cur

UK construcion activities, which beganin 2010 We believe thatwe
have now completed this rescaling and that the revenue run-rate in
UK constructon had stabiised by the end of 2013 Total underlying
profit from operations™ reduced by six per centto £214 3millicn
12012 £2279 mulion'?) This included profit from Joint Ventures

ol £26 5 milion (2012 £34 3 milion), with the total underlying
operating margin'® maintained at 5 6 per ceni (2012 5 6 per cent?)

After a substantial increase in the net financial expense to £39 6 million
2012 £27 9 mithon™), underlying prohit before taxation™ was 13 per cent
lower at £174 7 mullion (2012 £200 0 mithon'#)

Intangible amortisation was £19 2 million (2012 £314 million) and
nen-recurring operating nems and non-operating items together
amourited to a charge of £44 9 milion (2012 £3 8 million)

leaving profit before taxation 33 per centlower at £110 6 million
(2012 £164 § million')

Canillion s providing 26 new schools for Wolverhampton City Councll
using a combinaucn of public and private finance that will transform
education for secondary-age siudents in the City
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The underlying Group taxation charge'® of £19 4 million

(2012 £20 1 million'®) when combired with a taxation charge on

foint Ventures of £4 4 million (2012 £1 7million} represented an
underlying effective tax rate of 13 per cent (2012 11 per cent'®) Proht after
tax reduced by 31 per cent to £106 3 millan {2012 £154 9 milion'®) After
nan-controling nterests of £6 1 millien (2012 £6 1 million,

profit attributable to Carillion shareholders was £100 2 million

(2012 £148 8 milion?} and basic earnings per share reduced by

33 per centto 23 3 pence (2012 34 6 pence'?)

Underlying cash flow fram operatnons® was £160 9 million and
represented 75 per cent of underlying profit from operations™

(2012 43 per cent?) This reflected a substanual improvement in
working capital in the second half, in which cash flow from operations
represented 128 per cent of underlying profit from operauons,

with net borrowing reducing from the half year position of

£270 8 million due to the rescaling of UK construction being
completed by the year end At 31 December 2013, net borrowing

was £215 2 million (2012 £155 8 rmillion)

{

After Joint Ventures net financial expense of £10 1 millon {2012 £16 0 milhon) and taxation
charge of £4 A milhon (2012 £17 millicn) and before intangible amortisation non recurnng
operabing ltems and non operaung items (see note 4 on page 87)

{2) Restated on adeption of the amendment 1014519 {see note 34 on page 112}

13) Betore Joint Ventures net financial expense and taxabion intangible amortisation

and non recurming aperatng items (see note 4 on page 87)

After Jont Vemures taxation charge of £4 4 million (2012 £17 million) and betore
intangible amortisation non recurring operating tems and non operatng items
(seenote 4 on page §7}

Before intangible amortisation pon recurning aperatingitems and non operanng iems
(see note 4 on page 87}

Belore pension defict recovery payments andnon recurring operating items and after
dridends recerved from Jont Ventures and proceeds on the disposal of Public Private
Partnerstup eguity investments

14

{5]

(&

Cardlion continues to be the fargest suppher of outsourced highways
mamntenance services in Canada where we deliver services for some
42,000 single-lane kilometres of highway
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Performance and financial review

continued

Support services

Change
2013 2009 from 2012
£m £m %
Revenue
- Group 2,029 4 21314
- Share of Joint Ventures 2Nns 2283
2,3009 23597 -2
Underlying operating profit?
- Group 928 1000
- Share of Joint Veniures 252 209
1180 1209 2

In this segment we report the results of our faciliies management
faclities services energy services, raill services road maintenance,
unlity services and consultancy businesses tn the UK Canada and
the Middle East

Although revenue in support services was two per cent lower than in
2012, we continued to wtn new contracts that have enabled us 10 make
good progress towards replacing the £400 million of annual revenue
lost as aresult of a number of energy services contracts ending

as expected due to changes in Government policy and legislation,
and because two contracis were taken in house for straiegic
reasons specific to the customers in question at the end of 2012
After adjusting for these specific issues, we have achieved underlying
growth despite disappoinuing acuvity tevels in the Green Deal and
Energy Company Obligation markets that have not grown as
expected and envisaged by the UK Government, which created

these new markets

However, we have had some success with EcoPod sales QOverthe
period from 2011 to 2013 Carillion acquired the exclusive worldwide
rights to sell and hicence EcoPod, a heatng system which combines
arange of technologies, including highly efficient cascade boilers with
biomass, ground source and gas absorption heat pumps and thermal
solar panels to deliver major energy savings EcoPod generated revenue,
including licence fees, of some £36 milion 1in 2013 and has delivered an
overall return on our investment of over two times which compares
favourably with the returns we expect from other investment decisions®

The operatng margin was maintained at 51 per cent with operatng
profik reduced, broadly in hne with the reduction in revenue

In 2013, we won new support services contracts and contract
extensions worth some £1 9 billion, with notable successes in markets
where we are seeking to develop and increase our presence, in line
with our strategy of diversifying our support services business in each
of our three geographies into sectors such as oil, power distnbution
and highways matntenance Inthe UK notable contract wins included
an extension to our contract with BT Openreach for Broadband Delivery
UK worth some £500 milllon overthree and a half years, a five-year
contract 1o provide facilities management services for Shell worth up
to £150 mithon, contracts for Network Rail warth over £120 million a
10-year contract for the Sussex Energy Saving Programme worth up

to £100 million, a strategic property services partnership for Stockport
Metropelitan Borough, minally worth over £100 million and a contract
worth some £100 mithon as a result of winning the concession
conitract to dehiver the Royal Liverpool Hospital Public Private
Partnership project

In Canada, where we have continued 10 grow our support services
business in 2013, we secured a number of significant contract wins,
including support services contracts in the oil and gas sector worth
some £125 million and a 12-year highway mainienance contract worth
over £100 mullion Inthe Middle East, where we also achieved signilicant
growth in support services in 2013, we won a contract for Shellin Qatar
worth some £17 milhon over three years, a highways maintenance
contract in Qatar worth some £36 million over three years and a
number of smaller faciines management contracts, reflecting the
growth we are seeing in the support services market across the

Middle East region

Consequently, the value of our support services order book and
probable orders at 31 December 2013 increased 10 £13 6 billion

(2012 £i31billion), despite removing some £600 million from the
order book in 2013, because of reduced expectavons from Green

Deal and Energy Company Obligation contracts We therefore have
good revenue wisibility of 78 per cent® of expected revenue for

2014 (2012 71 per cent for 2013} Although our pipeline of contract
opportunities had decreased at the year end to £10 4 billion

(2012 £11 5 bilhon), this was due to removing opportunities relating

to the Green Deal and Energy Company Obligatons in line with the
current outlook inthese markets However, the rest of our pipeline
remains strong and we expect to resume annual revenue growth in this
segment in 2014, with increased contnbutions from the UK Canada and
the Middle East

(I} Restated on adophion of the amendment to !AS 19 {see note 34 onpage 112)

(2} Beforeintangible amornusanon and non recurring operanng items

(3} Refer o note 2 on page B3 for further revenue and segmentahinformanon

(4} Based on expected revenue and secure and probable orders which exclude variable
work and re bids

ACarilion telent Joint Venture delivers a wide range of infrastructure services
for BT Openreach andin 2013 BT awarded the Joint Venture a £500 milhon
coniract extension for Broadband Delivery UK




Public Private Partnership projects

Change
2013 2012 from 2012
£m £m %
Revenue
- Group 23 13
- Share of Joint Ventures 2346 286 4
2369 2877 -18
Underlying operating profit”
- Group 46 0 173
- Share of Joint Ventures 124 165
58 4 338 +73

Inthis segment we report the financial returns generated by the
mvestments we make in Public Private Partnership (PPP) projecis in the
UK and Canada, including those from the sale of equity investments

Ourintegrated business model enables us to combine our capabilities
in projectfinance, design construction and hife nme asset management,
towin and deliver FPP projects in which we make equity iInvestments
and for which we also secure long-term support services contracts
and good-quality construction contracts

Carillion has fed the marketin recychng equity investments in PPP
projects, namely selling investments in mature projects {those that have
passed from construction into the operational phase) and remnvesting
the proceeds in new projects In 2013, we sold equity investments in
seven projects for cash proceeds of £151 2 million, which represented
an average discount rate of some seven per cent and generated a

pre tax profit of £44 6 million

In 2013 our nvestiments in PPP projects continued to perform well

and inine with our objective of achieving a 15 per cent internal rate of
return Revenue in 2013 reduced due to the effects of selling seven
equity investiments in 2012, as previously reported, together with the
effects of selling further investments in 2013 Operating profit increased,
because profit from the sale of equity tnvestments more than offset the
equity returns no longer receved from the investments sold

At31 December 2013, we had 19 PPP projects in which we had invested
£53 million of equity and nto which we are committed to make further
planned investments of £95 million The Directors’ valuation of these
investments at 31 December 2013, using a mine per cent discount rate,
was £68 million {2012 £173 milhion}, which reduced due to the effect of
selling invesiments during the year'?
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At 31 December 2013, the value of our order book plus probable orders
was some E1 2billion (2012 £2 2 bilion), with the reduction on 2012
agan due to the sale of equity investments in 2013 However 1he
cutlook for replerishing our portfolio of Invesiments 1s positive In
December 2013, we achieved financial close on the Royal Liverpool
Hospital project, in which we will invest £15 million of equity

Beyond this we have a good pipeline of opportunities, which by

the year end had increased substantally and contained projects that
could generate sarne £3 O bilhon {2012 £1 6 billion} of revenue in

this segment In Canada, we are shortlisted for three projects - North
Island Hospstal in Vancouver, Brinsh Columbia, Eninoak Kids Centre
for Treatment and Development tn Ontario and Swift Current Long
Term Care Facihty in Saskatchewan - in which we coutd invest up 1o
£12 million of equity Inthe UK we are shorthsted for the Aberdeen
Western Peripheral Route in which we could invest up 1o £30 million
of equity and in the Republic of Ireland we are shorthsted for a schools
projectin which we could invest £5 million of equity We also conunue
to look for opportunities to deploy our expertise in project finance in
new markets Duning the year we entered into a memorandum of
understanding as a precursor 1o becoming the preferred bidder for a
hospital project in Turkey in which we could investup to £35 million of
equity Beyond this we expect further opportunities in Canada and in
the UK to come to market in 2014, notably in the healthcare sector

() Before intangible amortisation and non recurning operating items
{2} Refer to note 2 en page 83 tor turther revenue and segmental information

The new Southmead Hospital in Bristolis a Pubiic Private Partinership
project being delivered by Carillan at a capital cost of over £400 milion
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Middle East construction services

Change
2013 2012 from 2012
£m £m %
Revenue
- Group 2503 2614
- Share of Joint Veniures 2332 2122
483 5 4736 +2
Underlying operating profit™
- Group 154 138
- Share of joint Ventures 38 152
19 2 290 34

In this segment we report the results of our budding and civil
engtneening activities in the Middle East and North Africa

Full-year revenue increased as the pace of contract awards improved
during the year, although there continued 1o be some shppage inrespect
of anumber of contracts that we have been targeting that we now expect
tc be awarded in 2014 Given that our strategy is to focus on large,

high quality projects, for customers for whom qualty and reliabiity are
paramount fluctuauons in Middle East construcuon revenue beiween
accounting penods s not unusuat and we expect to benehitin 2014 irom
projects that we originally expected to be awarded in 2013 Operating
profitreduced in 2013 due to cur operating margin reducing to

4 0 percent (2012 61 per cent} which continues to reflect the fact

that our markets across the region remain competitrve!?

During 2013, we won a number of substantial new contracts For
example in Oman, Canlhien Alavw won a £130 million contract to build
the Oman Convention and Exhibinon Centre and a £92 mullion contract
to build the Kempinski Wave Hotel In Abu Dhaby, our joint Venture
business Al Futtaim Carillion [AFC) won a £130 mullion contract to build
the Four Seasons Hotel and became preferred bidder for a £110 million
contract for the Hard Rock Hotel, for which we have signed a contract
since the year end In Dubai, AFC became the preferred bidder for a
£155 million contract to bulld the 'City Walk’ retail development Asa
result, the value of our order book and probable orders for Middle East
construction services increased to £0 9 billion at the year end (2012

£QC 8 bithon) Revenue visibility for 2014 1s 85 per cem™® (2012 94 per
cent for 2013} Our pipeline of contract opportunities also increased at
the year end to £13 1 billion {2012 £11 4 bilhon) with notable
epportunities In Oman Qatar and Saudi Arabia, and we expect 1o
deliver fusther revenue growth in this segment in 2014 Over the
medium term, we expect new opportunities in the United Arab
Emirates where, for example, Dubai’s success in being chosen to host
Expo 2020 will lead to adduronal investmentin buildings and
infrasiruciure Also, over the medium term we expect margins inthis
segment to increase and to reach our target of six per cent

{Il Beforeintang’ble amarnsaton and non recurrng operating items

{2] Refer to nate 2 on page 81 tor further revenue and segmentai information

{3} Based onexpectedrevenue and secure and probable arders which exclude variable
work and re bids.

A Carillion joint Venture 1s bullding a £395 million phase of the
Msheireb Downtown Doha project in Qatar for Msheireb Properties,
a subsidiary of Qatar Foundation for Education Science and
Community Development

Pari of the mulu-billion pound mixed-use Cairo Festival City
development thatis being built by Al Futtaim Carillion
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Construction services (excluding the Middle East)

Change
2013 2012 from 2012
fm fm %
Revenue
- Group 1,050 6 1,2721
- Share of joint Ventures 20 97
1,059 6 1,2818 -7
Underlying operating profit®
- Group 448 730
- Share of Joint Ventures {0 4) {06)
44 4 724 39

In this segment we report the results of our UK building, cvil engineering
and developments businesses together with those of cur construction
activities in Canada

Our performance n this segment continues to reflect the rescaling

of our UK construction activities that we announced in 2010 Through
this process we have epsured that these activines remain aligned in
size to the sectors of the UK market on which we have chosento focus,
namely on large, higher added-value contracts that can be delivered
only by contractors with the necessary scale and sector-leading
capabilities and on contracts for customers with whom we have, or can
build strong long-term relationships especially customers for whom
we prowvtde integrated solutions This focus has created a high quality
UK construction business and improved the overall guality and nisk
profile of our business

Contrary to our expectations at the beginning of 2013, the need

to rescale our UK construction activities continued throughout the year,
with total UK construcuon revenue reducing to around £0 8 billan in
201312012 £0 2 bilkon) However we now believe rescaling 13 complete
and that our revenue run-rate in UK construction had stabilised by the
year end and now has the potential for modest growth in the second
half of 2014 Our construction activities in Canada contributed some

£0 3 bilhon of revenue in 2013 which was slightly lower than in 2012,

as we continue to maintain a very selective approach to the contracis
tor which we bid, with a particular focus on bidding for Public Private
Partnership projects for which we expect contract awards to be made
n 2014

The reductton in operating profit reflected lower revenue and a reduction
noperating marginto 4 2 per cent (2012 5 6 per cent), which was in ine
with our expectations The margin was lower because some of the
factors that have contributed to higher margins, namely lower bid costs
the action we took to reduce overheads and favourable outturns on
contracts being completed, are temporary and therr effects are declining
Nevertheless we believe that our strategy of being very selective in terms
otthe contracts for which we bid will have a permanent benefit to margins
and we continue to expect our normalsed, long term margin to remain
above the industry average'?

We won a number of significant new contracts and frameworks

in 2013 Thesencluded a £400 million contract for the first phase

of the redevelopment of Battersea Power Station, the Public Private
Partnership project for the new Royal Liverpool Haspiial, which has
a construction value of some £335 millon and highways contracts
worth over £100 million In addition we secured a number of major
framework agreements ihe values of which have not been included
in our order book These included being selected by Manchester
Airports Group {MAG) as a strategic partner to deliver Airport City in
Manchester, which 1s potenually worth up to £580 million to Carilkon,
additonally as one of four contracters to deliver MAG's £800 million
Capnal Delivery Framework, as Sunderland City Counci! s strategic
partner to deliver 1ts £800 milion regeneranen programme and as one
of five contractors to deliver the £400 million National Capital Works
Framework for the UK Mirustry of Defence

As aresult of these contract wins, the value of orders and probable
orders at 31 December 2013 increased 1o £2 3 tilhon (2012 £2 0 bilhon},
and revenue visibility for 2014 1s currently 80 per cent™® (2012 72 per cent
for 2013) Qur pipeline of contract opporiunities at the year end was worth
£11 0 bilion (2012 £10 7 bilhon), which 13 also healthy given the current
size of our businesses n this segment We therefore expect 1o grow
revenue in this segment in 2014 with increased contributions from the

UK and from Canada

() Beforentangible amortisaton and non recurring operating items

(2] Referto nate 2 on page 83 for further revenue and segmental infarmation

(2} Based on expecied revenue and secure and probable erders which exclude vanable
workand re bids

Carillion has been selected by Manchester Awrports Group as a partner to
debver s £8C0 milion Arport City development at Manchester Arrport

Z[-8E PIUBUIAAOD ‘ ££-€7 OUBULIOLA ' zz-90 ABajens l S0-10 MITAIIAQ i

¥L1-E/ S[edueury ‘



30
Canlhion ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Performance and financial review

continued

Group income statement, cash flow and balance sheet items
Intangible amortisation

Intangible amorusaton of £19 2 midlion (2012 £31 4 mill:on) related

to the amortisation of intangible assets, largely arising from the
acqursitions of Eaga plc (since rebranded as Canilion Energy Services)
In 200, Alfred McAlpine plcin 2008 and Mowlem plc in 2006

Non-recurring operating items

The non-recurring cperating charge of £44 2 mifhon (2012 £2 6 million)
primanly comprised £42 9 million relating to the previously announced
restructuring of our energy services business and a £11 million payment
into the Canllion Energy Services Employee Share Scheme infieuof a
Canllion dividend of £11 milhon that was waived by the Eaga Partnership
Trusts which hold 3 92 per cent of the 1ssued share capital, which they
acquired as a result of the acquisition of Carillion Energy Services

in 2011 In addinen, we have amended two provisions relating to
oblgations entered into prior to the acquisition of Canllion Energy
Servicesin 20110

Non-operating items

The non operating charge of £6 7 million related te the acquisiion costs
of John Laing Integrated Services which was acquired by Canllion in
October 2013 Non-cperating costs in 2012 of £1 2 million consisted of
£0 9 milhon relating to the Bouchier Group acgwisition and non-core
bustness closure costs of £0 3 million

Net financial expense

The Group’s net financial expense of £39 6 million (2012 £279 million)
comprised the following items anet expense of £26 9 million

(2012 £21 5 million) Inrespect of borrovwangs and other habilites,

with the increase compared to 2012 due largely to higher borrowings
anetinterest charge in respect of defined benefit pension schemes of
£15 1 milien {2012 £13 8 million'?), and interest received in respect of
loans to PPP Joint Venture projects of £2 4 millon {2012 £7 4 million)

Taxation

The overall Group taxation charge for the year amounted to £4 3 million
(2012 £99 million®) and comprised a Group underlying taxation charge
of £19 4 million (2012 £20 1 mullion'?) being largely offset by a Group
taxatien credit of £5 9 million (2012 £9 3 milhon) in relanen to the
amortsation of intangible assets arising from business combinations
and a Greup taxation credit of £3 2 million (2012 £0 9 milion) in relation
to non-recurring operating items and non-operating items

The underlying Group taxation charge® of £19 4 million

(2012 £201 milion'?), when combined with a taxation charge on joint
Ventures of £4 4 million (2012 £1 7 mullion) represented an underlying
effective tax rate® of 13 per cent (2012 11 per cent'?) This s below the
UK standard rate of corporatian tax of 23 per cent for 2013, because
our profits i the Middle East and from the disposal of PPP equity

are subject to zero or low rates of tax and the utiisation of tax losses in
the UK that were largely inherited with the acquisitions of Mowlem plc
Alfred McAlpine plc and Eaga plc At 31 December 2013 the Group had
£275 mulion of corporate tax losses (2012 £250 million) that are
availlable 1o reduce future tax payments

Earnings per share

Underlying earmings per sharet® reduced by 14 per cent to 34 7 pence,
compared with the restated figure for 2012 of 40 4 pence®™ The
weighted average number of shares inissue in 2013 was 4301 milhion
(2012 4301 milhon)

Dividend

Carthon has a progressive dvidend palicy that aims to increase

the dividend per share broadly in line with growth in underlying
earnungs per share'?, subject to the investment needs of the business
The Board has recommended a final dividend of 12 O pence per share
far 2013, making the proposed full year dividend 175 pence per share
(2012 17 25 pence per share), an increase of one per cent on the total
paid in respect of 2012 The Board's deciston to recommend an increase
inthe dividend despite underlying earmings per share™ being lower in

2013, reflects its confidence in the Group’s resthence and abtlity to achueve
Anmd ra mrbiamad mmths s~

te mrnd ety et bt e Y

Cash flow
Summary of the Group’s cash flaw

2013 2018

£m fm

Underlying Group operatng profit 1878 1936
Deprecation and other non cash items 73 269
Working capital (66 4) (136 2]
Dvidends recewved from |oint Ventures 182 136
Underlying cash inflow from operations 1609 979
Detficit pension contributions {39 2) (302
integration and rationalisation costs (22 0) {28 6}
Interest tax and dvidends (90 9) (872
Net capital expenditure 27 2) (156
Acguisitions and disposals (28 6) (32 6)
Other 12 4) (8 8)
Change in net borrowing (59 4} {(1057)
Net borrowing atl January {155 8) (507
Net borrowing at 31 December (215 2) (155 8)

Strong cash management remains a priority and this has been
particularly important during the rescaling of our UK construction
activittes which inevitably resulted in an outflow of working capital
The working capital outftow of £66 4 mithon in 2313 included the
outflow relating to the final phase of rescaling UK construction,
together with a number of other smaller expecied outflows, offset

by some £100 2 million from the sale of equity iInvestments in Public
Private Partnership projects As we expected, there was a significant
improvement In our working capnal performance in the second half

of 2013 as the process of rescaling slowed towards completon around
the year end Consequently, cash conversion in 2013 improved, with
full-year cash flow from operations representing 75 per cent of full year
underlying profitfrem operations (2012 43 per cent*) and second-half
cash flow from operations representing 128 per cent of second balf
underlying profit (2012 44 per cent'?)

Deticit recovery payments ta the Group’s pension funds of £39 2 million
remain 1n ine with the agreement reached in 2010 with the Trustees of
the Group’s man defined benefit schemes The £22 0 million of
rationalisation costs primarily relate to the previously announced
restructuring of Canllion Energy Services Interest, tax and dividend
payments of E90 9 million included the increases in interest and
diwvidends payable Net capital expenditure of £27 2 milhon mainly
related to investment in the Group’s IT systems and in highways
maintenance vehicles and equipment in Canada The £28 6 milion
payment In respect of acquisinons and disposals primarily comprised
equity investments in Joint Ventures of £6 1 milhon, the net cost of
acquiring John Laing Integrated Services in Octaber 2013 of £14 1 millien
and a £6 9 million payment in respect of the second instalment for the
acquistion of a 49 per cent interest in the Bouchier Group which
completed in December 2012, in hne with the previously anncunced
agreement io pay the consideration of £20 9 milhon in instalmenis over
the period from December 2012 to January 2014

The above itermns together with other changes of £12 4 million, resulted in
an increase in net borrowing of £59 4 millian, leaving the Group with net
borrowing of £215 2 million at 3t December 2013 {2012 £155 8 million)

(1} Refer tonote 4 for further informaton

(2} Restated on adoption of the amendment 1o |AS 12 [see note 34 on page 112)

(3) The underlying results stated above are based on the definihons included in the key financial
figures on page 1




Balance sheet
Summary of the Group’s balance sheet

2013 20120
£m £m
Property, plant and equipment 128 2 1258
Intangible assets 1,5528 15366
Invesiments 159 3 2379
1,840 3 19003
Inventories, recervables and payables (3276) (456 7}
Net retirement benefit iabiliy {net of 1ax) {2951} (2699}
Other (16 8) {72)
Net operating assets 1,198 8 11665
Netborrowing (215 2} {155 8}
Net assets 983 6 10107
Average net borrowing {430 6} (3447}

There are four notable movements in the table above First the
movement in Investments reflects the sale of equity iInvestments

in Public Private Partnerships during 2013 Second, the movement
ininventories, receivables and payables reflects the change in working
capital descnibed inthe commentary on the summary cash flow
statement on page 30 Third, the increase inthe Group's net retirement
benefit habilty, which was primarily due to the positive impacts from
improved nvestment return and the change in the discount rate being
more than olfset by the increase in iabihties anising from an increase
inthe assumption on inflanon Fourth, the increase in average net
borrowing, which s largely due to the working capital movement
described above

Retirement benefits

Detailed information on the Group’s pension arrangements can be
found in note 31 on pages 108 1o 111 of the censolidated knanciat
statements The Group operates pensian arrangemenis for the benefit
of eligible employees The Group has a number of defined benefut
schemes and other post-retrement benefit arrangements which have
a total pension obligation amounting to £2,506 3 million {the habilies’}
Total pension assets relating ta these liabilmes are £2,136 2 milhon,
gwing a dehcit of £370 1 million before deferred tax and £295 1 mithon
after deferred tax

The Board devotes significant tme and resources to managing the
Group’s pension schemes and their inherent risks, through the
following committees

> A Board sub-commuttee whichis specifically tasked with
moniioring and managing defined benefit pension arrangements

> An executive commutee which reports to the Board Committee
and comprises the Group Finance Director, Group Financial
Coniroller and Group Head of Reward The executive commitiee
meets monthly to consider pensionissues and to oversee the
implementation of the Group’s policies in respect of defined
benefit pension arrangements

The Group operates the following polictes in respect of defined benefit
pension arrangements

> Defined benefit pensions should not be offered 10 employees
except where required under legislauen or 1o meet the
requirements of work winmung

> Where defined benefit pensions need io be offered to meet
tegislative or work-winning requirements, business protocols are
i place 10 manage the nisk involved and to ensure that the nisk and
costs are fully factored into pricing

> Investment risks should be montored and gradually reduced
commensurate with a balanced approach 1o risk and cost

In ine with these policies, the majority of the Group’s principal schemes
are closed 10 new entrants and members no longer accrue benelnts for
future service

kil
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We have also raken a further sigmificant siep towards reducing the

risks and potential habilities in respect of the Group’s main defined
benehit pension schemes In December 2013 the Group’s main pension
schemes entered nto a longevity swap which hedges the financial risks
of future increases in longevity The swap covers 9,000 pensioners
with a combined longewity hiability of around £1 billion, or some 40 per
cent of the total labilities in respect of these defined benefit schemes
As noted above the total deficit inciuded in the Group's balance sheet

at 31 December 2013 in relation to defined benefit schemes amounted
to £295 1 milbon after deferred tax (2012 £269 9 mullion}

The increase in the net defict since the end of 20121s primanly due

to the impact of an increase in market implied RPI inflation amounung to
approximately £180 million parually offset by an increase n the market
value of scheme assets of £124 million and the impact of an increase in
the discount raie of approximately £22 mdlion reflecting market bond
yield movernents

During 2013, discussions with the Trustees continued in respect of
valuations and revised funding arrangements for the Group’s principal
defined benefitschemes lt1s anucipaied that the valuatons and revised
funding arrangements will be concluded during the course of 2014

Following the acquisitien of John Laing Integrated Services, the Group
assumed responsibility for a defined beneiit pension scheme with an
acwuanal deficii of £0 3 mithon

The Group has committed funding arrangements across all its
defined benefit schemes which currently amount te £33 2 million
per annum, together with olher payments that arise Each scheme
has 11s own specific funding arrangement and these funding
arrangements will be reviewed following subsegquent valuatons

The key assumptions used i1 the Internationat Accounting Standard
(1A5)19 revised ‘Employee benefits’ dehcit position are summarised
below

2013 2012
%X %
Ciscountrate 460 455
Inflation
RP! 340 290
CPl 235 205
Salary increase 390 340
Average allocation of assets
Equities/properiy 52 48
Gilts 18 18
Corporate bonds 28 32
Cash 2 2

The discount rate of 4 60 per cent 1s based on AA bond yields
appropriate 1o the habihty durauon

The RPI inflation rate of 3 40 per centis based on the duration derived
market tmplied RPI

The pension habiliies of the Group are subject to fluctuations ansing
from changes in the key assumptions abave that are determined by
general market conditions, which are outside the control of the

Group In parucular, a 01 per cent reduction in the discount rate would
increase the overall pre tax deficit by around £44 mullion, whilsta

01 per centincrease in the inflation rate would increase the overall
pre-tax deficit by around £36 milhon

The Group’s ongoing total pensions charge against profit in 2013,
amounted to £34 4 million (2012 £30 4 milhon™)

(I} Restated lor the retrospective adjusiment (o provisional amourus recogrised on the
acquist 1on of the Bouchier Group n 2012
(2} Restaied on adaption of the amendments to |AS 19 (see note 34 snpage 112)
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Acquisition of [ohn Laing Integrated Services

The Group acquired John Laing Integrated Services {|LIS) on 18 October
2013 for a gross consideration of £17 5 million, which after adding
acquisition costs of £0 7 muthon and subtracting £4 1 million of cash on
the |LIS balance sheet at acquisition, resulted in a net cost of acquisinon of
£141mullion JLIS provides support services across the local government,
education, police, health, library and rail sectors and has enhanced our
capabilites in existing and new market sectors and created opporiunities
for growth

Share price

Canllion’s share price was 330 5 pence at the close of business on
31 December 2013, an increase of 4 3 per cent on the closing price
on 31 December 2012 of 317 0 pence Carillion delivered total
shareholder return in 2013 of 11 2 per cent, compared with the
return for the FTSE 350 of 20 5 per cent

Committed bank facilities and private placements

The Group has commutted bank facilities and private placement funds
of over £1 1 balhion This includes a £770 O milhon syndicated facility,
which was renewed in December 2013 The new facility, which was
oversubscribed, has been extended from March 2016 to March 2018
and as part of the renewal process the National Bank of Abu Dhab
became one of our syndicate banks, which we believe reflects the
Group’s strength and prospects for growthin the Middle East We also
have a £50 O rmillion facility maturing in April 2017 and a £15 0 million
facility that matures in March 2016, together with borrowing of

£303 7 millon under private placements expiring between 2017

and 2024

Funding and hiquidity

In addiion to Canthon plc’s principal borrowing faciliies and private
placement funding described above money market and short term
overdraft facilities are available to Carillion plc and certain subsidiaries
Cperating and finance leases are also employed to fund longer terrm
assets The quantum of commtted borrowing facilines avallable to the
Group 1s regularly reviewed by the Board and 15 designed 1o sausiy the
requiremenis of the Group’s business plan At 31 December 2013, the
Group had undrawn committed facilines amounting to £550 5 million
{2012 £288 6 million} This excludes the Group’s share of cash balances
amounting to £52 5 milion (2012 £49 4 million) wathin joinily controlled
operations which are outside of the Group’s facilities

Operational and financial risk management

Canllion has ngorous policies and processes in place to identfy
mitigate and manage strategic nsks and those specific to indwvdual
businesses and contracts, including economic, soctal envirenmental
and ethical nsks The Group’s risk management policies and processes,
together with the principal operauonal and finarcial risks to our UK and
overseas operations and the measures being taken to mitigaie and
manage them, are descnibed in detail on pages 17 and 19 The Board
regularly reviews the risks facing the Group to ensure they are

up to date and the appropriate measures are in place 10 mitigate and
manage them In summary, the Group’s principal risks are as follows
centinuing to win work In our existing and new target markets and
geographues delivering majer contracts successfully, managing our
pension schemes effectively, atiraciing, developing and retaining
excellent people, selecung high quality joint venture and supply chain
partners and ma:ntaining high standards of performance in respect

of security, including cyber security Health and Safety and other
statutory requirements

Treasury policy and financial nsk management

The Group has a centralised Treasury function whose primary role 1s
to manage funding lgquidity and financial risks In addition, Treasury
sources and administers contract bond and guarantee facilmes for
the Group Treasury s not a profit centre and does not enter into
speculauve transactions The Board sets policies wathin which Treasury
operates that ensure the most effective financing of the Group’s
operations and hmit exposure to inancral sk The areas of significant
tinancial nisk facing the Group relate to funding and liquidity,
counterparty risk, country risk, foreign exchange andinterest rates

Counterparty risk

The Group undertakes significant financal transactions only with
counterparties that have strong credit ratings Credi exposures to
counterparties are monitored regularly so that exposure to any one
counterparty 1s managed against Board approved hmiis, or approved
directly by the Board

Country rnisk

The Group has overseas activities in Canada, the Middle Eass, where
our operations are based in Abu Dhabi, Dubal, Oman and Qatar and
in Egypt, in which we have one project that accounted for less than

0 5 per cent of the Group’s 1otal revenue in 2013

Through our strategy of creaung a well-balanced and geographically
diversified business, we seek to muimimise the political and socio
economic risks 10 our business We also seek to mingale the risks
attendant on our overseas activities by ensuring that we operate only
where we can apply high standards of corporate governance and
corporate social respansibility and by regularly repatnating profits
and cash to the UK

The risk of political tnstabibity 1n Canada 1s judged to be mimimal, as
Canada has a stable parhamentary demecracy In the Middle East

we have deliberalely based our activities in countries with a histary

of social stability and we have been unaffected by the unrest seen
elsewhere in the Middle East While the potential for political unrest
and conllict in the Middle East and North Africa to recur or to spread
1o countries so far unalfected remains a possibiity we believe our
policy of focusing on countries with a history of stabiity, together

with our rigorous corporate governance and financial management
policies and processes, provides adequate mitigation against these
risks Furthermore our strategy in the Middle East and North Africa of
focusing on a small number of inancially robust customers has enabled
our businesses inthe region to matain healthy operating cash flows
and remain financally mdependent




Foreign exchange

The Group hedges all significant currency transaction exposures using
foreign exchange nsk managemeni techmiques In order to protect

the Group s balance sheet from the impact of exchange rate volaulity,
policy 1s 1o hedge foreign currency net assets using matching currency
leans equivalent to at least 60 per cent of the net asset value where
these assets exceed the equivalent of £10 million Prohits arising within
overseas subsidianes are not hedged unless itis planned to make a
distribution Such distributions are then treated as currency
transactions and hedged accordingly The Group’s US dollar
denormunated private placement financing 1s hedged using cross-
currency denvatives

The average and year end exchange rates used 1o translate the Group’s
overseas operations were as follows

Average YearEnd
£sierling 2013 2012 2013 2012
Middle East (US Daollar) 157 159 166 163
Oman (Rial) 060 o6l 064 063
UAE (Dirham) 577 584 608 597
Canada (Dollar) 162 159 176 162

Interest rates

The Group’s £770 0 million five-year syndicated borrowing faclity and
£65 0 million biateral borrowing facliues are at floatingrates of interest
linked to the London Interbank Offered Rate, the Canadian Dealer
Offered Rate or the Emirates Interbank Offered Rate The Group’s
£3037 million of private placement funding is at various fixed interest
rates as disclosed in note 20 on page 98

The Group has entered inio cross currency swaps and a fixed and
floating swap to fix or hedge interest rate risk In addition o the Group’s
private placement funding, certain longer-term assets have been
financed at fixed interestrates

Canllion has invesied equity in a number of Joint Veniure Special
Purpose Companies (SPC) 1o deliver Public Privaie Partnership projects
SPCs abtain funding for these projects in the form of long term bank
loans or corporate bonds withoui recourse 1o the Joint Venture
partners and secured on the assets of the SPC A number of SPCs have
entered into inierest rate derivatives as a means of hedging interest rate
risk These derivatives are interest rate swaps thai effectively fix the rate
of Interest payable
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Credit sk
An analysis of the Group’s credit nsk is provided in note 27 on pages
104 and 105

Going concern

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect
its future development performance and position, the financial position
of the Group, its cash flows, lquidity position and borraowing facilites
are described onpages 23 1o 33 entitled Performance and hinancial
review Inaddiion note 27 on pages 10210 106 of the financial
statements includes the Group s objectives policies and processes for
managing s capial, its financial nsk management objectives, details of
its financial nstruments and hedging actvities and its exposures ta
credit and hquidity nsk

The Group has considerable financial resources together with
long-term contracts with a number of customers and suppliers across
different geographuc areas andindustries As a consequence, the
Directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business
risks successiully despite the current uncertain economic outlook

In assessing the Company’s ability to conunue as a going concern

the Board reviews 18 month forecasts of the Group’s borrowing
requirements compared to available bank faciiies The forecasts are
based on the latest available Budgets and Busmess plans that have
been approved by the Board and adjusied where appropriate to reflect
known variations The Board applies sensitivity analysis to these
forecasts to assess the impact of potenual risks and opportunities in
order 1o provide addiional comfort on the level of headroom against
avaitable bank faclines The Board's review alsoincludes a forecast of
the covenants associated with the Group’s bank facilittes and private
placement funding i order to provide comfort that funding covenants
will conunue to be met

The Directors confirm that, after due consideration they have a
reasonable expectation thai the Company and the Group have
adequate resources lo continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that there are no material uncertainfies m
relaton to going concern of which they are aware For thrsreason
they conunue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

Richard Adam FCA

Group Finance Director
5March 2014
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Sustainability review

Our sustatnability strategy

Our sustainability wision 1s to be aleading sustainable business and
the leading sustainable support services company By working closely
with cusiomers and suppliers, we can deliver sustainable solutions by
contributing to the creation of alow carbon economy and supporiing
wibrant communities

Our 2020 sustanability strategy and programmes are an integral part
of our corporate strategy 1o dehver sustainable, profitable growth by
enabling us to win and retain contracts, attract and retain the best
people, enhance our reputation and reduce operating costs and risk

Bwilding a successful business

We believe that sustainability and profitability go hand in hand and

by adopting a responsible approach and creating wider benefits for
society, we can achieve greater commercial success This s the essence
of becoming a more sustainable business

Our strong focus on sustainability I1s a positive facter in winming

new work In 2013 we secured orders and probable orders worth

£4 9 billion Examples include the £400 milllon redevelopment of
London’s Battersea Power Stanon, she £335 million Public Private
Partnership projectto deliver the Royal Liverpool University Hospstal
and support services contracts worth some £100 mullion for
customersan the oll sector

There were important wins too for our businesses outside the UK
In Oman, we won a £130 million contract to buwld a new Convention
and Exhibimon Centre, in Qatar we won a further support services
contract for Shell and in Canada we secured highways maintenance
contracis worth some £170 milhon

Atthe heart of all our contracts 1s a commitmentto helping the local
communittes in which we work by creatng positive benefits and
legacies For example, we used our project to build the Library of
Birmingham to enable more than 300 unemployed people to gain
Jobs, 82 young people to undertake apprenticeships and 600
schoolchildren to participate In activity days

N

We made good progress on the demanding sustainability targets we
set for 2020, parucularly in reducing water consumption, increasing

Building a successful business the recycling of waste, engaging with suppliers, and supporting local
Objectives communities These areas are outlined inthe rest of this section and
Through our sector leadership and the contributions to profitabilizy a full account of our Independently verified progress aganst all our
made by sustainable efhiciencies value creation and waste elmination, targets can be found in our 2013 Sustainability Report
we willincrease shareholder value

Enabling low-carbon economies

Objectives

QOur services will help Canllion's customers work towards carbon
neutrality sotogeiher we become the lowest carbon producersin
our respechive sectors

<&

Supperting sustainable communities

- Objectives
d our leaderstup in creating employment and skills opportunimes
wx coupled with our understanding of the needs of our commiuniiies
will help us to make a net positive contribution everywhere we work

Leading the way n our sector

Objectives

We will be the benchmarkin sustainabiity and innovation
in turn driving demand as the senvice provider of choice
for customers

k3

Protecting the environment

Objectives

We will work with cur customers and supplers to be best in ¢lass
11 reducing waste managing use of water and raw matenals, and
protecung biodiversity wherever we operate

Prowiding better prospects for our people In 2013, Carilhon completed the stunming £157 mdlion New Library of
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We also achieved some notable successesina number of leading
performance indices

* We achieved our highest ever score in the Carbon Disclosure
Project’s {CDP} annual FTSE 350 Chmate Change Report,
which makes Carillion one of the top 10 comparnies inthe UK on
chmate change

> We achieved a Platunum Big Tick’ rating - the hughest possible
level - in the Business in the Community {BITC) Corporate
Responsibihty Index Award, and met our target to maintain our
previous year's score of 97 per cent

» We continue to be included in the FT$E4Good

There were ather notable highlights in 2013

» Our 2012 Annual Sustainability Report won the FTSE 250
Sustainability Reporting category at the PwC Building Public
Trust Awards

> Inthe Middle East and North Africa, Carilhon won the Arabia CSR
Award, the Construction Week Sustainability Award and the
Construction Week CSR Award

> Qurrecrutment arm, SkyBlue, won a RoSPA Gold Award 2013 for
‘Health and Safety”

> We offered 140 work placements ta homeless people through our
Business Action on Homelessness programme and have helped
maore than 3C0 people into work to date

Our 2020 sustainabibty sirategy 1s driven by the Carillion plc Board,
supporied by a Sustainability Advisory Comrmuttee The Committee
15 chaired by our Chief Executive, Richard Howson and comprises
our Group Finance Direcior, a number of senior managers and

two independent adviscrs, Dame Julia Cleverdon, Vice President

of Business in the Community (BITC) and Special Advisorto the
Prince’s Charnies, and Jonathon Porritt, Founder Director of Forum
forthe Future

Supporting the Sustainabily Adwisory Committee 1s the Group
Sustamability Forum, which comprises our semor business leaders
and s chaired by our Chief Sustainabiity Officer (CSO), David Picton,
who was formerly Carllion’s Supply Chain Development Director
until his appointrment as CS0 10 2013 The Forum’s remut includes
the dissermination of our sustainability strategy and policies to each
business unit All our businesses have sustainability objectives,
which form an integral part of therr annual business plans

Enabling low-carbon economies

By partnering with others, we are well placed to work on the global
challenge of cimate change to harness the opporiunities presented
by low carbon markets and to help ¢cormmunities and custorners
decarbenise through greater energy efficiency

Reducing fuel poverty in our communities 1s an important impetus
Through our work with the UK Department of Energy and Climate
Change, we have helped some 2 3 milhon households to cut domestic
bills in order 10 reduce fuel poverty risk

as
Carillion pl¢ Anrnual Report and Accounts 2013

Energy efficiency and carbon reduction are also an integral part of

the work we are doing to transformthe area around Battersea Power
Stanon tn London as part of our £400 million contract to deliver the first
phase of the area’s redevelopment that will incorporate energy-efficient
technolegy including a communal heating system The project willalso
leave a positive legacy in the community by generating up to 500 new
jobs, with the target of employing the majority of people from the local
community ncluding the long termunemployed 'n Canada, we are
providing more than 1,000 households in aboriginal communies

with much needed energy efficiency upgrades

Other examples of where we have used our expertise to reduce
carbon include Southmead Hospital inBristol, one of our Public Private
Partnership projects where we have achieved a BREEAM (Bulding
Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Methodology)
rating of ‘Excellent’, which 1s one of the highest ever scores for an acute
hospital in the UK, and sclar powered street lighting in Abu Dhaby,
which creates zero emissions

Carbon neutral or low carbon operations are increasingly imperiant
for our customers and we can contribute 10 this by using our
sustainable design and delivery experuse In 2013, we joined other
industry leaders and the UK Government 1o develop the Infrastructure
Carbon Review framework which aims to cut 24 million tonnes of
carbon from infrastructure projectsin the UK by 2050

In our own operaions, we are working towards becoming a carben
neutral business in 2015 and developing a complete view of the
direct and indirect carben emisstons from our global operations
From 2014 we will be tracking embodied carbon for certain projects
Our commitment to transparency and improvement contributed

to our highest-ever Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) score in 2013
Ourranking in the COP’s FTSE 350 Climate Change Report makes
us one of the 10 most progressive companies on cimate change

n the UK and aleader (n our sector

We summarise our global Greenhouse Gas Emissions {or 201310
the Report of the Directors on page 44

Protecting the environment

We want to move beyond reducing ourimpact on the environment to
make a positive contribution to society in the widest sense possible,
but this does not mean relaxing our efforts to improve our own
enwironmental performance We have anumber of ambitious strategic
targets and following an independent review by Forum for the Future
some of these will be revised to ensure that they are realisuc and drive
real positive impacts

Protecting the environment s integral to delivering contracts and
services for our customers During 2013, we met our target of diverting
91 per cent of our waste from landfill through a senes of acuon plans for
each of our business units and we coniinue to focus on our longer-term
goal of sending zero non-hazardous waste to landfill We also assess
and address biodversity nisk for every contract we undertake

GO-10 MIAIIAD |

7/-8E 9IUBLIAAGD | [€-£2 PIURULIONAG ‘ zz-90 A3aens ‘

¥T1-/ S[etOUBUL] ‘



36
Carillton ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Sustainability Review

continued

In the Uruted Arab Ermurates we have established the first plasterboard
‘take back’ scheme diverung over 5,000m? of plasterboard waste

from landfill andin Oman we have increased our umber recycling rate
by turring our imber waste into compost that has been used in the
landscaping of our projects Recognising that water scarcityis a
pressing concern in the region, we have continued to develop our
approach to reducing water consurmption and have introduced a Water
Use Permiton our projects which has helped to save 1 6 mithon litres of
water on one project alone

As amajor umber buyer and member of the Global Forest Trade
Network, we are committed to sourcing tmber responsibly We

aim to source all forest producis {including those sourced through
subcontractors) irom well-managed forests certihed 1o Forest
Stewardship Counal (FSC) Canllion’s joinery workshop in Oman s the
only operator in the country to have FSC ‘chan of custody’ certification

We also actively consider how our constructon projects may affect
local biodiversity Assessing the risks and developing Biodiversity
Action Plans s firmly engrained in our project planning Where
posstble, we also create or enhance habitats to encourage local
wildlife to flourish

Supporting sustainable communities

Helping the communities in which we operate to thrive, contnibutes

to the success of our business Reflecting this commitment, our Chief
Executive was appointed Chair of Business in the Community’s {BITC's)
Community Leadership team, which is aiming to develop pioneering
approaches that will facilitate investment by businesses in the most
vulnerable commurities

We continue to be the UK construction industry’s largest employer of
apprentices with up to 2,000 1n training each year in our 14 UK training
centres, or some 10 per cent of the apprenticeships in our sector

Through our flagship projects, we are creating sigrificant local
employment and commercial opportunities In addibon to projects
Iike the Library of Birmingham, we have many others where we are
providing similar opportunities We also seek to support businesses,
especially Small and Medium sized Enterprises local to our contracts
For example, 60 per cent of the supphers we use for Qur support
services contract for Oxfordshire County Counall are based locally

1n 2013 Carillion formed a new partnership with leading chitdren’s
th am v al danar c A8 0N ANAN h Al I ha
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We continue to support the BITC Business Action on Homelessness
campaign, and have now helped more than 300 people find work
through the Ready for Work scheme

In 2013, we formed a new parinership with leading children s charity
Barnarde’s and made an mitial donation of £20,000 Established nearly
150 years ago, the charity now has over 900 services and projects
across the UK and helps 200,000 children and their families each year
We will support Barnarde’s through sponsarship and fundraising
events, volunteering, mentoring and skills training We were also one of
the first 50 companies to stgn up to the UK Government’s Armed Forces
Corporate Covenant, a new voluntary pledge of support from
businesses to the Armed Forces community In Canillion Canada,
commuruty engagement has seen a 100 per cent increase in the hours
spent by our employees on voluntary work to help local communines
compared to 2012

In the United Arab Emirates we have become members of ENGAGE
Dubai (Dubai Chamber of Commerce employee volunteering
programme} and we have joined the Steering Committee through
which we are helping to increase the quality and quantity of employee
volunteering among the UAE’s business community In Qatar, we
developed and delivered our first environmental visual impact training
courses both forinternal and external communities, including the Hope
Qatar Centre for Special Needs, raising awareness of sustainability and
contributing to the development of our own people

in Canada, where work experience 1s often a prerequisite for a job,
we offer seven weeks of classroom tuihon followed by a nine-week
voluntary work placement We regularly place participants with our
support services team at the Brampton Civic Hospital, where two
students have become permanent employees

It1s impaortant for us to quantify and evaluate our contributions to the
communities 1n which we work in order to continue to improve our
engagement with, and the contributions we make, to the communities in
which we operate Working closely with orgamisations like Business in
the Communtity and Trading for Good helps us to support and develop
our contributions to making communities more sustainable and we will
say more about this in our first ‘Social value report’ that we intend to
publish later this year In addition to supporting communities through
our projects, we continue to contribute annually the equivalent of one
per cent of our pre tax profitin cash and in kind and 1n 2013 to chanities
and other good causes

Carithon employees in Qatar pictured vath some of the children and
homa thoa
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Providing better prospects for our people

Carillion employs more than 40,000 people and we remain committed
o investing in developing and attracting excellent people in order to
create avibrant, diverse and flexible workiorce

We are working with BITC to support its ‘Opportunity Now , which
seeks to improve gender balance, and ‘Race for Opportumty” which
relates to ethric diversity We are committed to helping women to move
into leadership posittons and aim to increase the proportion of our
semor managers who are female from 10 7 per cent i0 29 per cent

To support ihis, we have changed our maternity and paternuy policy

to include enhanced pay for mothers on maternity leave and we

are helping mothers returning to work to achieve a good work-lie
balance through better flexible workeng opportunities and supportive
internal networks

In 2013 we made significant progress in developing our e-learning
capabilibes, with our people completing 5 000 e learning traimng
modules, a five-fold increase on 2012

Through a range of programmes and training we are werlong hard to
achieve our targes of zero reportable acaidenis by making health and
safety a key personal performance objective for all our managers
Despite this, we deeply regret that one employee tragically lost bus life
on a Carilhon highways matntenance work site in Canada in July 2013,
when a vehicle passing the site on a public road lest control and entered
the sie

In 2014 a major new campaign focused on employee health, ‘Health
Like Safety’ 1s under way As part of our wider industry advocacy role
we are committed to the UK Cepartment of Health’s Responsibiity
Deal We have also pledged to optimise our procedures for managing
those with chronic conditions at work, to use SEQOHS (Safety Effective
Quahty Occupational Health Service) accredited occupational health
services and 1o Increase physecal actvity in the workplace Additicnally,
we are supporting the new Construction and Civil Engineering pledge
which focuses on managing the causes of occupational disease and
improving employee health and wellbeing

Carllion provides some 13 000 patent meals a day as part of the

L N e bttt T L L PP sl A fae BRI s pala
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Leading the way In our sector

Despite the last few years beng parucularly challenging for our indusiry,
we remam committed to developing cuting-edge, sustainable soluttons
for our customers and to collaborating wath our suppliers to deliver
great resufts and promote transparency throughout the supply chain

Collaboranon s central to our sustainability efforts and we are working
clasely with our suppliers to help them to reduce therr environmental
and social impacts A major example of this is the Supply Chain
Sustainability Schoal, of which Carillion 1s now a partner Thisis a

large scale, collaborative construction industry ininaiive to help
educate our suppliers on how to become more sustainable Some
2,250 professionals are members, representing 1,300 comparies

The school won both the ‘Corporate Responsibility” and the overall
award at the 2013 Chartered Institute of Purchasing and Supply {CIPS)
Supply Management Awards

Our contraci with the Barts Health NHS Trust across three Londen
hospital sites illustrates our approach to innovatcn in partnership

We provide catering, cleaning and general facilities services and have
awider sponsorship agreement with the Trust 1o encourage healthier
Inving 1 the London Borough of Tower Hamlets We reviewed the
commercial catering service we provide at the Royal London and
London Chest hospitals, engaging a diettian 1o evaluate our 160
recipes and adapting our ngredients and feod preparation technigues
Following a hygiene and healihy food assessment audit we receved

a gold ‘Food for Health’ award from Tower Hamlets Council

Find out more
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Governance
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Chairman’s introduction to
Corporate Governance

Dear Shareholder,

Inthis section of our Annual Report, we set out the measures we take,
and the resulis we have achieved, to ensure that high standards of
corporate governance continue to be the cornerstone of Carillion s
business This s essential 1o the scccess of our business and to giving
shareholders, customers, partners, supphers and the communities in
which we work the confidence they need as stakeholders in Carillion

Under the Board's direction, Canillion has put in place comprehensive
policies, management structures and processes that are applied
rigorausly to ensure that the company complies with the requirements
of the UK Corporate Governance Code But on sts own this is not
enough To achieve consistently high standards of corporate
governance we recognise that we need a culture throughout the
Group in which high standards of ethics and integrity are natural

and instinchive and that the behaviour of all our people reflects our
core values

Philip Rogerson,
Chairman

39
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Good corporate governance begins with having a Board whose
membership has an appropriate range of skills and experience,

gained from the seror executive roles they hold or have held,

in other companies and from their expenience as Non Executive
Directars of ather companies Carilfion has a strong, well-balanced
Board, comprising four male and two female Non Executive Directors,
and two male Executive Directors The performance of all Board
members 1s reviewed and assessed each year to ensure that each
member continues to make a strong and appropriate contribution to
the Board

A clear dwvision of responsibilities between thase of the Board

and those of the executive directors is also essential In achieving
high standards of carporate governance The Board is responstble
for setting the Group’s pelicies and procedures, for reviewing them
annually and, where appropriate, revising and updating them The
Executive Directors are responsible forimplemenung these policies
and the operating procedures and processes that support them

The assurance framework within which the Board operates 1s based
on management reports and presentations anvisits to the Group’s
operations and on meetings and discussiens with a wide range of
employees from across the Group This enables the Non-Executive
Directors to mantam a geod understanding of the Group’s businesses,
which 1s essental 1o the effective operaton of the Board

To create a culture In which high standards of ethics and integrity are
natural and instnctive, Carniflion promotes encourages and rewards
behaviours that reffect our core values using a vanety of measures,
starting with top-down leadership and supported by training, local

“values champions” and “values awards” Through an annual employee
survey known as The Great Debate, we give our people the opportunity

to provide feedback on a wide range of Issues that concern them and
to which Carillion 1s commutted to respond In addition managers
and supervisors also seek to engage with their people at all levels

to give themn a voice in determining how they work and how our
business develops

We also believe that high standards of ethics and integrity include
making the Health and Safety of our people and all those who are
affected by our operations the top priority Cariflion was the first

IN Its sector to set a target of zero acadents on allits work sites

To achieve this we have uncompromising policies and procedures,
rigorous training programmes, covering both processes and personal
behaviours, and we have empowered everyone in Carilion to stop
and report any activity that they believe to be unsafe

Carillion 1s also aleader in its sector in building a more sustanable
business, which goes beyond the requirements of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, in order to deliver services that create positive
impacts an the environment and on the communities in which we
operate This provides opportunities for our people to engage In
voluntary work to support charities and other organisanons in the
communities in which they live and work

In summary, the Board believes that through a combination of
comprehensive policies, rigorous processes, strong leadership
and measures designed to create a culture in which high standards
of ethics and integnity are instinctive, strong corporate governance
will continue to be the cornerstone of Carithon’s success

Adgo [Cgeto

Philip Rogerson

Chairman
5 March 2014
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Board of Directors

01 0z

01 Phalip Rogerson 4

Chairman

Philip was appointed to the Beard in Qctober
2004, becoming Chairman in May 2005 Hes
Chairman of both the Nominations Committee
and the Business Integrity Comrritiee Philipis
also Chairman of Bunzl plc and De La Rue plc
and Chairman of the Advisory Board of the
North and East London Commiss:oning
Support Unitaf the NHS He was an Executive
Director of BG plc from 1992 to 1998 latterly as
Deputy Chairman He s a Fellow of both the
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the
Institute of Corporate Treasurers Age 69

03

02 Richard Howson?

Group Chief Executive

Richard has been Group Chief Executive
since 1 January 2012 He served as the Chiet
Cperaung Officer from September 2010 to

31 December 201, having been appointed to
the Board in December 2009 as Executive
Director with responstbility for the Middie East,
Naorth Africa and UK Construction businesses,
and for the Group’s Health & Safery and
Sustainability programmes Prior ta his
appointment to the Board, Richard was
Managing Director of Carilion’s Middle East
and North Africa businesses, before which

he held senicr positions in the Group’s
Infrastructure and Bullding businesses
Richard has worked for the Company for

18 years He s a Fellow of the Institution of
Civil Engineers Age 45

04

03 Richard Adam

Group Finance Director

Richard was appointed Group Finance
Director in April 2007 He qualified as a
chartered accountant with KPMG in 1982 and
gained broad experience in a number of public
and private company finance director roles
fromthe age of 30 Immediately prior to
jeining Carilhon, Richard was Group Finance
Director of Associated Briush Ports Heldings
plc He has previously been a Non Executive
Director and the Chairrman of the Audit
Cornmuttee of SSL Internatonal plc Age 56

04 Phhp Green'234

Senior Independent Non-Executive
Directer and Chairman Designate
Appointed to the Board in June 2011, Philip

1s a member of the Audit, Nominations,
Remuneration and Business Integrity
Committees Philip was Chief Executive of
United Utilines Group PLC from 2006 to 2011
His earlier business experience includes
serving as Chief Executive of Royal P&O
Nedloyd, as a Director and Chief Cperating
Officer at Reuters Group PLC, and as a Chief
Operating Officer for Europe and Africa at
DHL He s Non-Executive Chairman of US
industnal services company BakerCorp and s
Chairman Designate of Willams & Glyn Bank
Limited Mr Green will stand down from the
Board of global integrated shipping services
provider Clarkson plc on 9 May 2014 Age 6O




a5 06

05 Andrew Dougal***

Non-Executive Director

Andrew was appointed to the Board in
October 201, and 1s Charrman of the Audnt
Committee and a member of the Nominations,
Remuneration and Business Integrity
Commuttees For five years until 2002
Andrew was Chief Executive of Hanson plc
the internatienal bulding matenals company,
after its demerger from Hanson, the
Anglo-amencan diversified indusinal group
where he was Group Finance Director He s
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
and Audit Chair of Creston plc and a
Non-Executive Director of Premier Farnell plc
Formerly hewas a Non Executive Director of
Taylor Wimpey plc and Taylor Woodrow ple
tor both of which he chaired the Audit
Committee, and BPB plc Mr Dougalis a
member of The Instiute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland and a member of its
Counail and Oversight Board Age 62

07

06 AlisonHorner'*3*

Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board in December 2013,
Alison 1s a member of the Audit, Nominations
Remuneration and Business Integnty
Committees Alison 1s Group Personnel
Director of Tesco, having joined the
organisationn 1999 In 2006, she was
appointed Tesco’s first female Operations
Director, and in 2011, she became the Group
Persannel Director and joined the Executive
Committee 1o lead 1its People Matters Group
for 525,000 colleagues worldwide Sheisa
Trustee of the Tesco Pension Scheme and,
untl 2011, was a Non Executive Director of
TescoBank Age 47

07 Steve Mogford'***

Non-Executive Director

Steve was appointed to the Board in
September 2006, and 1s 2 member of the
Audit, Nominaitons, Remuneration and
Business Integrity Committees Steve 15 Chiel
Executive of United Utilities Group PLC, which
he joined in March 2011 Before joining Urited
Uulites, Steve was appointed in May 2007 to
Finmeccamica, ltaly’s principal defence and
secunity company, as Chief Executive of Selex
Galleo From April 200010 May 2007 he was
a Chief Operatng Officer and a Director of
BAE Systems plc Age 57
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08

08 VandaMurray OBE'%**

Non-Executive Director

Vanda was appoinied to the Board in june
2005, and 1s Chairman of the Remuneratuon
Cormmittee and a member of the Audit,
Nominations and Business Integrity
Committees Vanda s the Seruor Non
Executive Director of Fenner plc and a
Non-Executive Director of Chemning Group
PLC, Manchester Airports Haldings Limited
and Microgen plc, where she 1s Remuneratuon
Commuttee Chair Vanda was Chief Executive
Officer of Blick pl¢ from 2001 to 2004, a
Director of Ultraframe ple from 2002 to

2006, and has also served as a Trustee and
Non-Executive Director of The Manufactuning
Institute She was appointed OBE in 2002 tor
Services 1o Industry and 1o Export, and s a
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing
Age 53

Board changes

Both our Chairman, Philip Rogerson, and
Vanda Murray will retire from the Board at
the Cormpany’s AGM on 7 May 2014 Philip
Rogerson will be succeeded as Charrman

by Philp Green, who 1s currently the Seror
Independent Non-Executive Director Steve
Mogford will succeed Philip Green as Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director

In addinen, Ceri Powell will join the Board as a
Non Executive Director on 2 April 2014 Cenis
Executive Vice President for Exploranon of
Royal Duich Shell Ceriwill serve onthe Audit,
Remuneranon, Mominations and Business
Integrity Committees
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Report of the Directors

The Directors’ report should be read in conjunction with the Charrman’s

statemen, the Strategic report the Performance and financial review,
the Corporate Governance report and the Remuneration report, which
are incorporated by reference in {and shall be deemed to form part of)
this report

The following specific 1ssues are discussed in the sections shown In
brackets

» achievements inrespect of the Group’s Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs} in 2013 and the KPIs set for 2014 {Strategic report
- see pages 20 and 21)

> financial performance in 2013 (Performance and financial review
- see pages 23to 33)

> principal operatonal risks and risk management (Strategic report
- see pagesi7to19)

» treasury policy and hnancial isk management {Performance and
financial review - see page 32)

> social, community and environmental 1ssues (Sustainability report
- see pages 34 to 37)

> resources and employees (Strategic report see page 14 and Report
of the Directors - see pages 42 and 43}

Analysis of revenue and net assets by operating segment and
geographical location are given in note 2 on pages 83 10 86

Share capital
Carillion has only one class of shares, with one vote for every share

Profits and dividends
The consolidated iIncome statement s shown on page 74 Profit before
tax was £10 & milken {2012 £164 8 million)

A 2013 intenim dividend of 5 5 pence per ordinary share

(2012 5 4 pence) was paid in November 2013 It 1s proposed to pay a
final dividend of 12 O pence per ordinary share {2012 11 85 pence) on
13 june 2014 to shareholders on the regster at the close of business
on 16 May 2014 The payment of these 2013 interim and final dividends
amountsto £75 2 mullion (2012 £729 rmillion)

A dwvidend reinvestmenti plan {DRIP) wall also be ofiered allowing
shareholders a convenient means of reinvesting their dividends in the
Company by buying further shares [f required, a DRIP applicaton form
1s avallable from the share registrar, Equiniti (see page 121 for cantact
detalls)

Directors

The Directors of the Company who served during 2013 are shown on
page 61 of the Remuneration repart Biographical detalls for each
Director at 31 Decemnber 2013 are given on pages 40 and 4]

In accordance with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance

Code, all Drrectors will offer themselves either for election or re-election

at the Annual General Meeting on 7 May 2014 Richard Adam and
Richard Howson have contracts of service which are subjectto one
year’s notice of terminahion by the Company

The interests of the Directors and their fammilies in the share capital of
the Company are shown inthe Report of the Directors on page 44

Indemnity

To the extent permitted by the Companies Acts, the Company may
indemnity any Director, Secretary or other officer of the Company
against any hability and may purchase and maintain insurance against
any habilty The Company purchased and maintained throughout 2013
Drrectors’ and Officers’ habiity insurance

Conflicts of interest

The Company’s Articles of Assoaation permit the Board to consider
and, if 1t sees {it, to authonse situations where a Director has an interest
that conflicts, or may possibly confhict, with the interests of the
Company The Board considers that the procedures it has in place for
reporung and considering conflicts of interest are effeciive

Key contractualarrangements

There are no persons with whom the Group er Company has
contractual or other arrangements, whom are deemed to be essential
to the business of the Group or Company

Employees
Information relating to employee numbers and remuneration is given
innote 6 on page 88

Carillion’s core values as detalled on page 17 help to differennate
Canllion from its competitars by creating a culture in which everyone
in Carilien s encouraged to understand the needs of their customers
and to work in partnership with customers and suppliers to deliver
high-quality, value for-money services

Employees are key to achieving Carillion’s business strategy and the
Group 1s committed to iImprowving thesr skills through training and
development and through nurturing a culture in which employees teel
valued for the contributions they make to the Company and motivated
to achieve therr full patential

Itis Carilhon’s atmito foster a working environment in whuch all
employees are treated with courtesy dignity and respect Carithon
strives continually to elirminate all bias and unlawful discriminaton in
relation to job applicants, employees business partners and members
of the public Employees who become disabled are, wherever possible,
retrained or provided with equipment that enables them to continue
their employment

The objectives of Carllion’s Equal Opportunity and Diversity Policy
areto

» have a workiorce that represents and responds to the diversity of
customers and society in general

> improve safety and quality provided by a balanced and producuve
workforce

> reduce staff turnover, absenteeism and sickness levels

> prowide a fair working environment in which discriminasion will not
be tolerated

> create a working environment free from discrimination,
harassment, vicumisauon and bullying

> work towards finding ways for underrepresented groups to fully
realise their potennal within Canllion and take reasonable steps to
help such groups

» ensure that all employees are aware of the Equal Opportunities
and Diversity Policy and to provide any necessary ongoing training
10 enable them to meet their responsibiliies under it

> recognise the ments of developing a workforce that incorporates
the many diverse skills and backgrounds avadable from wathin the
1o1al population and, accordingly, will strive 10 be an orgamisatton
thatwill recogrise, value and understand diversity and provides all
employees with opportunities to develop and reach their full
potential

> ensure that all applicants are treated fairly dursng recruntment
processes and in accordance with relevant legistation and Codes
of Practice

> regularly review procedures and selection criteria for promotion to
ensure thai individuals are selected and treated according to their
individual abilities and merits




Canllion places great importance on open and regular communication
with employees through both formal and informal processes As part of
this commitment a Group publication, ‘Spectrum’, 15 produced on a
regular basis for all employees

The views of employees on matiers affecting their interests and the
success of Canlhon are also sought through “The Great Debate’, ‘People
Forums’, "Team Talks’, Chief Executive’s Leadership Teamn lunches, and
one-to-one meenngs between employees and their line managers

‘The Great Debate’ 1s a major exercise involving a wide range of
employees that form a stausucally significant sample The results of
each Great Debate’ are used to inform and guide the development of
work related imtiatives as part of Canllron’s strategy to be an employer
of choice “The Great Debate’ forms partof the Group’s ongoing
programme 1o

> engage with employees to improve motivation and morale

> empower employees to contribute to the Group’s development
both as an employer and as a business

> demonstrate Carillion’s commitment to listeming to, and
responding to, the views of its employees

In 2013, Carillion set up an international action group to address the
teedback recerved through The Great Debate which has led to a number
of changes including the introduction of improved flexible working
arrangements that are open to al}

Carilien also involves engages and consults with employees through
‘People Forums’, which give employees an opportunity 1o express their
views on business 1ssues The main objectives of the ‘People Forums’
areto

improve employee information and consultation

help employees feel more involved and valued

support the continued education and development of employees
tmprove business performance by improving the awareness of
employees to the business climate in which they operate

> help employees to be responsive and better prepared for change

L R

*Team Talks’, whtch are held monthly, provide Carilhon employees with
a face-to-face commurucation with their ine managers and facilitate
two-way communicaton, discussion and feedback They focus onlocal
1ssues and key corporate messages One-to one meetings between
individual employees and their ine managers are also held to discuss
performance and progress in order to help all employees to develop
and reach therr full potentral

Employees can also exchange best practice information via
BusinessXchange and Yammer on the Group intranet

Carilhion seeks to involve all employees in its cutting edge programmes
to integrate safety into every aspect of the Group’s operahons and to
improve its environmenial performance, including the understanding
and application of the principles of sustanability For example, amajor
new campaign focused on employee health, ‘Health Like Safety” was
launched in 2014

Further information on Healih & Safety 1s given inthe Strategic review
on page 2t and on Sustainability in the Sustainability review on pages
341037

Capital and shareholders

As at 31 December 2013, the 1ssued share capnal of the Company
comprised a single class of ordinary shares of 50 pence each

Details of shares issued dunng the year and cutstanding options

are gwen 1n Notes 23 and 25 on pages 100 and 101 to the consolidaied
financtal statements which form part of this report Details of the
share incentivesin place are also provided on pages 64 and €5 of the
Remuneration report
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On a show of hands at a general meeting of the Company, every holder
of ordinary shares presentin person or by proxy and enutled to vote
shall have one vote and, on a poll, every holder of ordinary shares
presentin persen or by proxy and entitled to vote shall have one vote
for every ordinary share held

The notice of Annual General Meeting specifies deadlines for exercising
voung rights and appointing a proxy or proxies to vote in relation to
resolutions to be put to the Annual General Meeting All proxy votes

are counted and the numbers for, against or wathheld in relaton to each
resolution are announced and pubhshed on the Company’s website
after the meeting

There are no restrictions on the transter of ordinary shares in the
Company other than n relaton to certain restrictions that are imposed
from tme to ume by laws and regulations (for example insider trading
laws) In addibon, pursuant 1o the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authonty, Directors and certain officers and employees of the Group
require the approval of the Company to deal in ordinary shares of the
Company

The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders
that restrict the transfer of shares or voung rights artached to the shares

Substantial share interests

As at 5 March 2014, the Company had recewved formal notification of the
following holdings of voting rights 1n tis shares under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty

Nature % of issued

ofinteres:  share capital held

Ameriprise Financial Inc and its group Direct 006
Indirect 482

Total 488

Eaga Partnership Trusts Direct 196
Indirect 196

Total 392

F&C Asset Mangement plc Indirect 447
HBOS ple Direct 191
Indirect 308

Total 499

Schroders plc Indwect 497
Standard Life Investments Lid Direct 295
Indwrect 202

Total 497

Templeton Global Adwsors Limited Indwrect 522
UBS Investment Bank Direct 312

Change of control

A number of agreements take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of
control of the Company following a takeover bid, such asloan
agreements and share incentive plans

Carillon’s man credit faciliies ineluding the £770 milion Syndicated
Mulucurrency Revolving Credit Facility, contain a provision such that in
the event of a change of control any lender may, within a 30 day
consultation period and if it so requires, notify the Company that it
wishes to cancel iis commitment Any such cancellaton of commitment
and the repaymenit of any outstanding borrowings will occur on the
date falling three days after the expiry of the consultation period
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Report of the Directors

continued

Charitable and political contributions

Payments for charitable purposes rade by the Group duning the year
ended 31 December 2013 amounted to £200,000 (2012 £200,000)
The primary beneficianes of these chantable donations were The
Wildhfe Trust, Business in the Community CRASH, Barnarde’s and
Walking With The Wounded

Carillion launched its new national chanty partnership in December 2013,
with Barnardo’s one of the UK's leading children’s charities Formedin
1867, Barnardo’s now has over 900 services and projects based in local
communities across the UK and supports thousands of disadvantaged
children and their families every year with help ranging from emergency
accommodaton to counselling and raining This new charity partnership
aligns with Carillion’s sustainability strategy and in particular the
commitment to building sustatnable communities It means that Carillion
will be working closely with Barnardo’s to support the chary through
volunteening and fundraising, and «t provides opportunities for Canlhan
people to play a partin their local communities and join togesher with
colleagues, customers, supphers, friends and family to help young people
across the UK Carillion people have the skills and experuse that Barnardo’s
needs in volunteers project management, fraining, mentoring and
coaching, plus practical construction and services skills which can be
purto great use on arange of projects There will also be more strategic
opportunities to work with Barnardo’s which 1s extensively involved
inthe social care, educauon and jusuce sectors, as wellas beinga
provider of training and apprenticeships to young people

To mark the launch of the new partnership a donation of £20,000

was made 10 Barnardo’s and earmarked for its Invisible Walls Project
{Birmingham) which supports children and families affected by
imprisonment Based on successful work that Barnardo s has
established ait HMP Parc in South Wales, the Birmingham project aims
to supportfamilies in the local commurity By working with prisoners
to maintain family contact and improve visitor facilities (so that prison
visits are less fnightening for children), Barnardo’s hopes to turn arcund
the ives of children affected by parental imprisonment The work will
also contribute to existing rehabilitation programimes

The Cardlion Group also contributes the equivalent of one per cent of
profits per annum in cash or in-kind {staff ume on community projects}
to commurnity activities and is a corporate member of Business in

the Community

The Company and its subsidiaries made no political donations during
the period under review

Financial instruments

Informanon on the Canllion Group’s use of financial iInstruments,
tinancial sk management objectives and policies and exposure IS
given in note 27 on pages 102 to 106 of the consolidated financial
statements

Directors’ share interests

Ordinary shares

The beneficial interests of the Directors, their immediate families and
connected personsin the ordinary share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2013 are shown below

As at As at
1]January 31 December
2013 2013
Fully pard 50p ordinary shares owned Number Number
Executive Director
Richard Adam 157,004 18,238
Richard Howson 67,572 85,34
Non-Executive Directors
Andrew Dougal 5,000 5000
Philip Green 10,000 10,000
Alison Horner® N2 Nul
Steve Mogford Nil Nil
Vanda Murray 12300 12,300
Philip Rogerson 39,630 39,630

Mt Ahson Horner was anpointed ta the Board in December 2013

Additional information for shareholders

With regard to the appaintment and replacement of Directors, the
Company 1s governed by s Articles of Association, the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related legislaton
The Arucles of Association may be amended by special resolution

of the shareholders The powers of the Board are described in the
Corporate Governance reporton pages 45 to 49

Annual General Meetin

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 12 noon on 7 May 2014

at Austin Court, 80 Cambridge Street, Birmingham Bl 2NP The notice
of the Annual General Meeting accornpantes this Annual Report

and Accounts

Included in the AGM business s the proposal to renew the authority
for the Companyto purchase its own shares As at 31 December 2013,
the Company had authority from shareholders for the purchase of
43,025,462 of 115 own shares

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors of Canllion plc confirm that at the date of this Report of
the Directors and as far as they are individually aware, theres no
relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware and each
Director has taken all reasonable steps to ascertain any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of
this information

Auditor

KPMG Audit Pl have notfied the Company that 1t has instigated an
orderly wind-down of the business The Board has decided to put
KPMG LLP forward to be appeinted as auditor and resolutions to
appoint KPMG LLP as auditor and to authorise the Directors to
determine its remuneration will therefore be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

In the table below, we report CO; emissions from the sources required
under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Director’s
Report Regulations 2013) We have used the GHG reporting protocol
to calculate our GHG emissions for 2013, based on data gathered to
fulfil our requirements under the CRC Energy Eificiency scheme and
on emisston factors from the UK Government’s GHG Conversion
Factors for Company Reporting 2014 We have quoted figures for

all sources whose costs are included in the ¢consolidated finanaal
statements We do not record "fugitive emisstons’ as these are not
part of our core operatons

Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Data for the period
1january to 31 December 2013

Emissions from CO;lonnes
Combustion of fuel and operation of facilines {Scope 1} 157,293
Eleciricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for

own use {Scope 2) 15786
Transport, paper and cthers including etectrioty

gas (WTT) and electrnicity (WTT) (Scope 3) 16,24
Chosen intensity metric

Ermissions (tonnes} per million (£) revenue 474

Approved by order of the Board

E’-‘C\.Gfd Tctpla
Richard Tapp

Secretary
5March 2014

Cocas Tc«,




Corporate Governance report

Governance

The Board is firmly commutied to the highest standards of corporate
governance and considers that good governance commences with
an effective Board providing strong and respected leadership

The Non-Executive Directors bring their wide experience to the
boardroom 1o both support and develop business strategy and
aperanons and to constructively challenge the Executive Direciors
In addition the Beoard evaluation process which we iniroduced in
2002 supports the culture of constructive challenge and confirms
that Non-Executive Directors are independentin their judgement

During the year to 31 December 2013 as detailed below and in the
Remuneration report on page 53, the Company compled fully with the
requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code (September 2012)
except as explained in the section ennitled ‘External Audit Tendening’ on
page 52 of the Report of the Audit Commuttee, where the requirements
and associated transinanal arrangements of various regulatory bodies
are stll being established

Ethics and Business Integnity Policy

The Board remains commitied ta maintaining high standards of ethics
and business integrity throughout the organisation recognising this to
be essential to both Group performance and reputanon

Carillion s committed to the preservation of its reputation and integrity
through compliance with applicable faws, regulations and ethical
standards across all territories in which it gperates

Canlhon’s clear and unequivocal approach to busmness integnty and
ethics underlies the Group’s core values as detalled on page 17 The
Ethics and Integrity Pohcy 1s designed to ensure that Carillion conducts
its business to the highest ethical standards

The Ethics and Business Integrity Policy sets out the standards and
behawiours that all Carilhion employees are expected 10 meet wherever
inthe world we operate The way Carflion delivers this policy 15
reflected in the way the Group competes for business and delivers

its services, focused on quality, value for money and the reliabihity

and reputation of its employees

The policy 1s

Prohibition of fraud, bribery and corruption Carillion takes extremely
seriously the preventuon and detection of fraud, bribery and corruption
and any other fraudulent or corrupt activity [t will not tolerate thers

i any form The Board s fully commutted to promoting a zero
tolerance approach across the Canllion Group There s a Fraud

Pohcy in existence

Gifts and hospitality It s prohibited for a Cardlion employee to offer

or receive gifts or hospitahity that could influence or be perceived to be
capable of influencing the outcome of transactions or decisions relating
to Canllion’s business There 1s a Gifts and Hosputality Policy

Insider trading Those who have access to mside information are
adwised of therr responsibilines under the insider deahing rules
There s a Carlhion Insider Dealing Code

Conthcts of interest All Canllion employees must disciose or seek
direction on any 1ssues that could potenually confhict with their
responsibilities to the Company There s a Conflicts of Interest Policy
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Ethical procurement Carillion seeks to ensure that 1t maintains its
ethical standards and behaves respectfully when working with others
The relatienships with Carillion’s suppliers and business pariners are
based on the principle of fair and honest deahngs at all umes and in all
ways Canllion expectsiis supphers and busimess associates and joint
venture partners to extend the same high standards to all others with
whom they do business, including employees subcontractors and
other third parttes There s a Purchasing and Supply Chain Code of
Ethics and a Sustainable Suppher Charter

Competition Carilhon plc, us subsidiaries and associated companies
under Carilhon control have a policy that alt business activities are
carried outin full cormphance with competition laws - the laws which
preveni anti-competitive behaviour Competinon law prevents
companies from carrying out any activities that restrict competition
and makes iflegal activities such as price fixing, unfair pricing, market
sharing and refusal to supply custemers There 1s a Competition
Compliance Guide

Money laundering Carillion aims to maimtain high standards of conduct
by preventing crimmnal activity through money laundering There 1z a
Money Laundering Policy

Respect for Human Rights Carillion supports the belief that human
rights are universal and adheres 1o the principles of human rights in

its operations Carillion supports the United Nations Declaration on
Human Rights and works hard to ensure that in all areas of interacuon
with its employees, chents, suppliers, third parties, interviewees and
joint venture parties that everyone is protected and treated absolutely
fairly Carilhon has a Health & Satety Policy and an Equal Opportanities
and Dwersity Policy

Law and regulation Carillion respects the rule of law in all our dealings
and has rminimum standard compliance with all law and regulation to
which 1ts businesses are subject Canlhon has legal compliance
programmes for

» European Union and United Kingdom Competition Laws
> Bribery Act 2010

> Canadian Criminal Code C46

> Corruption of Foreign Public Oiticials Act {Canada)

Ethics and Compliance Office As aresponse to the introduction of

the Bribery Act 2010, the Eshics and Comphance Office was estabhshed
1in 2010 This Office reviews and monitors compliance and ensures

that Canllion maintains high ethucal standards It reports to the
Business Integnity Commuittee on key global comphance risks

and functional activity

Reporting, disclosure and whistleblowing All of Canillion’s employees
have a responssbility to protect Carillion’s assets, including information
and goodwili as well as property Carillion encourages its people to
raise genuine concerns about malpractice at the earhest possible stage
and n the rightway There 1s a Whistleblowing Policy and an Ethucs and
Business Integrity Incident Response Plan

This Ethics and Business Integrity Policy 1s apphed by all Carillion’s
businesses through a senes of detailed procedures They allow
Carlion to carry into pracuce its reputanon for conducting business
to the highest ethical standards, which are essentral to its relanonships
with customers business partners, employees, shareholders and

the public The detalled procedures reflect the way Canllion competes
tor business through the quality and value of ns work and through the
reliability and reputation of its people

The Ethics and Business Integrity Policy 1s overseen by the Business
Integrity Committee, and its implementation 1s reviewed annually by
the Board
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Directors
The Board

Main principle

There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the head of
the Company between the running of the Board and the executive
responsibility for the running of the Company s business Noone
individual should have unfettered powers of decision

As pari of their role as members of a unitary Board, Non-Executive
Directors should constructively challenge and help develop proposals
on strategy

The Company 1s led by a Board comprising two Executive and six
Non-Executive Directors The Chairman and each of the Non-Executive
Directors are considered to be independent of management They
each have substannal relevant experience and have no business

or other relanonship that could materally interfere wath their
independent judgement Philip Green 15 the Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Both our Chairman, Philip Rogerson and Vanda Murray will retire from
the Board at the Company’s AGM on 7 May 2014 Philip Rogerson wilt
be succeeded as Charrman by Phulip Green Steve Mogford will succeed
Philip Green as Sentor Independent Non-Execunve Director

In additton, Ceri Powell will join the Board as a Non Executive Director
on 2 April 2014 Ceri1s Executive Vice President for Exploration of Royal
Dutch Shell

Chief Executive’s Leadership Team

In discharging his responsibiliies Richard Howson, the Group Chief
Executive, 1s assisted by the Chuef Execunve s Leadership Team (CELT)
which meets every month The CELT 1s a management and strategy
ferum whichis chaired by MrHowson Its primary respensibilities
include strategy development operational and financial management
and the executive management of the Group’s businesses In addiion
to Mr Howson, the CELT comprises the Group Finance Director, the
Managing Directors of the Business Units, the Group Development and
Strategy Dhirector, the Group HR Direcior and the Company Secretary
and Director of Legal Services

Main principle
All Directors should be submitted for re-election at regular intervals,
subject 1o continued satsfactory performance

All Directors are subject to annual re-election

Main principle

The Board and 11s committees should have the appropriate balance of
skills, experience independence and knowledge of the Company 10
enable them to discharge their respecnve duties and responstbihues
effecuvely

The Board should undertake a formal and rigorous annual evaluation
of its own performance and that of its committees and individual
directors

Board and committee performance evaluation

In 2013, a detalled performance evaluation of the Board, the commirttees
and each Director was conducted as it has been in each of the last

12 years

The 2013 Board pertormance evaluation involved an external faciltator,
Lintstock Limited { Lintstock’), a London-based corporate advisory firm
Lintsiock has, for a number of years, supplied software to the Company
Secretanat for the provision of anline questionnaires used for Board
performance evaluation Other than this, Lintstock does not provide
any services 1o Canlhon and acted as an independeni facilitator for the
Board evaluation

Lintstock initially engaged with the Chairman and the Company
Secretary to set the contexi for the 2013 evaluation and subsequently
reviewed and reported on the performance of the Carillion Board
and Commuittees during 2013

Directors completed online quesnonnaires addressing

Board composition

The role of Directors and the Board

Effectiveness of Board meetings

The Committee structure and Commuttee performance
Strategy

Succession planning and human resource management
Monitering perfermance

Leadership and culture

Directors remuneration

Management of subsidiary companies

Relations with shareholders

Board accountability and audit

Prionies tor change

v W W W Y VY VY VY VY VY Y v Y

Separate questionnaires covered the operation and effectiveness of
the Board’s Committees The performance of the Chairman and each
Director was reviewed as part of the Board evaluation process

The online process ensures the anonymity of respondents and thus
openness and a frank exchange of views

Atthe January 2014 Board meenng, the Directors reviewed the results
of the evaluation The findings confirmed that, amongst a number
ofthings

> 1he balance of skills and expertise amongst the Board members
was highly rated

> the effectrveness with which the skills and expertise amongst
the Non-Executive Directors were drawn upon to support the
strategic direction of the Company was positively rated

> the Board s knowledge and understanding of the markets
in which the Group operates was highly rated

» the role of the Board in setting strategy was seen to be
clearly defined

> the key performance indicators provided to the Beard to
support the analysis of the performance of the business was
rated very highly

> the risk appetite of the Board was seen as appropriate and the
Board's management of the matn risks to the business was
rated positively

» the Board’s succession planning for Directors was highly rated,
as was the effectiveness with which the Board ensures that it
has visibility of potential successors for key positions within
the business

The key priorities for the Board 1n 2014 were identified as () managing
Chairman and Nen Executive Director rotation, (i} supporting senior
management and () addressing specific business challenges

The Board intends to continue to comply with the UK Corporate
Governance Code guidance that the evaluation should be externally
tacitated atleast every three years




Main principle
The Chairman s responsible for leadership of the Board and ensuring
s effectiveness on all aspects of its role

The division of responsibiliies between the Chairman and the Group
Chief Executive are as follows

> Therole of the Chairman is 10 provide contnunty, experience and
governance while the Group Chief Executive 1s responsible for
leading the Group and delivering its operational plans and strategy
» The Chairman s the ulumate steward of the business and the
guardian of the interests of all the shareholders The Chairman
and Group Chief Executive work together to provide effective and
complementary stewardship
> The Charrman
- takes overall responsibility for the composition and capability
of the Board
- consults regularly with the Group Chief Execunve and s
available for prowviding advice, counsel and supporito the
Group Chuef Executive
» The Group Chief Executive
- manages the Group’s day-to-day activities
- prepares and presents to the Board strategic options for growth
wn shareholder value
- sets the operating plans and budgets required to deliver the
agreed strategy
- ensures that the Group has in place appropriate risk management
and control mechanisms

Main principle
All Directors should be able to allocate sufficient ime 1o the Company
to discharge their responsibiliies effectively

The Board had a programme of 10 meetings 1n 2013 In addition, the
Charrman holds meetings with the Non Executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present and, at least once a year, the Non-Executive
Directors meet without the Chairman present

The Board generally meets in Central London, but at least one Board
meeting each year is held at one of the Group’s overseas locations
letherin the Middle East or Canadal, which gives the Directors the
opportunity 1o review the operations and to meet local management

Main activities of the Board in the year to 31 December 2013
In 2013, the Board dealt with the following matters

Health & Safety

Sustainability policy and practce

Presentations on the business units’ performance and strategy
Group sirategy

Risk managemeni

Full and half year inanoal statementis

Forecasts and budgeis

Regulatory announcements

Dividends

Monthly management results

Work winntng

Three year business plan

Board commuttee reports

Review of pohaies such as ethics and bustness integrity
Deleganon of autherines

AGM business

Major projects

VWYY Y Y Y Y Y WYY YV WYY VY
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Acquisitions and dispasals

Regulatory issues and briefings
Succession planning

Directors’ share deahngs

Review of conflicis of nterest

Site visits to operations

Meenng local management and employees

L L R

A formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board for consideration
and decision s maintained These matters include

* Statutory issues such as the approval of final and interim
financial statements and the recommendation of dividends
Appointments to, and removals from, the Board

The terms of reference and membership of Board commuitees
Approval of Group strategy and annual budgets

Approval of authority levels, financial and treasury policies
Authorisation for any acquisition or disposal

Review of the internal control arrangements and risk
managemeni strategies

> Review of corporate governance arrangements

vV WV VY VY

The Executive Directors and the Carilion subsidiary companies
operate within clearly defined hmuts of authority delegated by the Board
and any matters outside of these limits must be referred to the Board
tar consideration

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary, who s responsible
to the Board for ensuning that agreed procedures and applicable rules
and regulations are observed The Board approves the appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary

Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice when necessary, atthe expense of the Company

The Board 1s provided with regular and imely information on the
financial performance of businesses within the Group, and of the Group
as a whole, together with reporis on trading matters, markets, Health &
Safety, sustainability and other relevant issues

Documents are made available to all Directors five working days in
advance of the Board meeting Since late 2010, the Board has used a
secure efectromic portal to receive Board papers The portal provides
information in a imely and secure manner, enabling the Directors to
receive Board papers quickly and to access them wvia tablet computers
wherever they may be

In pursuit of best practce, the Canllion pfc Board receives presentations
on governance and regulatory matters

Attendance at meetings in 2013
The number oi scheduled Board and Committee meetings attended
by each Diwrector during 2013 was as follows

Business
Audint  Remuneration Nominawons Integrity
Board Cammiltee Committee  Commiitee Committes

Number of
meetings held 10 4 3 3 3
Richard Adam 0 - - - -
Andrew Dougal 0o 4 3 3 3
Philip Green 0 4 3 2 3
Alison Horner” 1 1 1 1 1
Richard Howson 10 - - 3 -
Steve Mogford 10 3" 3 3 3
Vanda Murray 10 4 3 3 3
Philip Rogerson 10 - - 2 3

Alison Horner was appointed 1o the Board in December 2013

Mr Moglerd was unable to attend the December meeung of the Audit Commitiee due to
regularery commizments

Mr Rogersan was unable to attend the December Nominations Committee meeting

as he was hosting a Rayal wisit to anather company of which he s charman

£ M Green ook no partin the December Mominatons Committee meeting which

-
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Board Committees

The principal Board Committees are the Audit Commuttee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nominations Committee and the Business
Integrty Committee The Company Secretary acts as secretary to each of
these committees

The terms of reference of each of the Board Committees are available
on the Carillion website at www carillionplc com or on request from
the Company Secretary

Audit Committee
Andrew Dougal, Chairman
Phihp Green

Ahson Horner

Steve Mogford

Vanda Murray

The Audit Committee consists entirely of ndependent Non-Executive
Directors The Chairman of the Audit Commitiee has recent and
relevant financial experience Appointments o the Committee are
made by the Board

Andrew Dougal 1s a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Scotland and 1s a member ofits Council and Oversight Board He was
appointed to the Audit Committee in October 2011 Andrew was Chief
Execunive of Hanson plc, the international building materials company,
after its demerger trom Hanson, the Anglo American diversihed
industrial group, where he was Group Finance Director Andrew is
Chairman of the Audit Commuttee of Creston plc and a member of the
Premier Farnell plc Audit Committee He has previously been Audit
Commuttee Chairman at Taylor Wimpey plc and Taylor Weoodrow plc

Philip Green was appointed to the Audit Commuittee in june 2011 Philip
was Chief Executive of United Utilities Group PLC from 2006 to 2011
His earlier business experience includes serving as Chief Executive of
Royal P&40 Nedlloyd and Chief Operating Officer at Reuters Group PLC
Philip 1s Non Executive Chairman of BakerCorp and Chairman
Designate of Wilhams & Glyn Bank Limited

Alison Horner was appointed to the Audit Committee in December
2013 Alisonis Group Personnel Director of Tesco

Steve Mogford was appomnted to the Audit Committee in September
2006 Steve is Chief Executive of Unned Utihties Group PLC Priorto
this appointment Steve was Chief Executive of Selex Galileo

Vanda Murray was appomnted to the Audit Cornmittee in July 2005
Vanda is the Semor Non-Executive Director of Fernner plcand a
Non-Executive Direcior of Chemring Group PLC, Micregen plc and
Manchester Airports Holdings Limited

The Report of the Audit Committee can be found on pages 50 to 52

Remuneration Committee
Vanda Murray, Chairman
Andrew Dougal

Philip Green

Alison Horner

Steve Mogford

The Committee consists entirely of Independent Non-Executive
Directors and determines and makes recommendations on the Group’s
remuneration policy and framework to recrui, retain and reward
Executive Directors and senior executives

The Reruneration Committee 1s assisted in its work by Janet Dawson,
Group HR Director, by Philip Rogerson, the Chairman and by Richard
Howson, the Group Chief Executive The Group Chief Executive 15
consulted on the remuneration of those who report directly to hum and
also of other senior executives No Executive Director or employee is
present or takes part in discussions in respect of matters relating
directly to thew own remuneration

The Remuneration Report can be found on pages 53 to 68

Nominations Committee
Philip Rogerson, Charrman
Andrew Dougal

Philip Green

Alison Horner

Richard Howson

Steve Mogford

Vanda Murray

The Committes reviews the structure size, composition, balance of skills,
knowledge and experience of the Beard and makes recommendations to
the Board with regard to any changes that are deemed desirable The
Committee also reviews succession planning fo ensure that processes and
plans are in place with regard to both Board and senior appamtments

The appointment of a Director 1s a matter for resolution by the Board
as a whole, taking advice from the Nominations Committee

Forthe Board appointment of Alison Horner, the Nominations Committee
has used the services of the executive recrutment consultants The Lygon
Group Detalls of potential candidates are provided by the consuftants
and initially reviewed by a sub-commuttee of the Nomunations Cormmuiitee
Meetings with selected candidates are then held wath the Direciors
Subsequently, the Norminations Commuttee meets to recommend

an appointment, which 1s then proposed tc the Board for approval

The fees of Non Executive Directors are determined by the Board as a
whale, taking into account the commitment required and participation
in the work of committees and other advisory services inrelation to
the business of the Group In adwvising the Board on such fees, itis the
policy of the Executive Directors to seek independent external advice
concerning the appropriateness of the amounts by comparison with
general practice The leve! of fees currently payable to the Non-
Executive Directorsis based on independent external advice

The remuneration of the Directors is dealt with in the Remuneration
report on pages 53to 68




Business Integrity Committee
Philip Rogerson, Chairman
Andrew Dougal

Philip Green

Alison Horner

Steve Mogford

Vanda Murray

The Commitiee reviews and oversees the implementation of the
Group s Ethics and Business Integrity Policy, monitors the Group’s
compliance with relevant legislation such as the Bribery Act 2010 and
the Competition Act, ensures that the Group’s commumication and
training programmes on ethics and business integrity are effective in
reinforaing ethical values and good practice, and reviews the policies
and pracuce In respeci of business ethics and integnity in relation to the
commencement of Operanons in any new country or territory in which
the Company has not previausly operated

Other Board matters

Board diversity

Carillon recogmises the impartance of gender diversity throughout the
Group Currently, two of Canllion’s eight Board members are female
The Board aims to have a broad range of skilis, backgrounds and
experience While Carilion will continue to follow a policy of ensuring
that the best people are appoinied for the relevant roles, the beneiits

of greater diversity are recognised and will continue to be taken account
of when considering any particular appointment

Ceri Powell will join the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 2 April
2014 Cen s Executive Vice President for Exploration of Royal Dutch
She!l Following Cerni’s appotntment, and the retirement from the Board
of Philip Rogerson and Vanda Murray on 7 May 2014, the Board will
compnse seven directors of whom two are women

Policy on external appointments

Recognising that external appoiniments can broaden experience and
knowledge and sc be of benefit to the Company, Executive Directors are
permitted aithe discrenon of the Board, to accept a imited number of
such appointments and retain the fees received for such appointments

Neither of the Executive Directors currently holds an external
appointment

Re-election of Directors

In accordance wiih the UK Corporate Governance Code, all Direciors
will submit themselves for either election or re elechion at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 7 May 2014 All have been subject to
formal performance evaluation and are effective members of the Board
who are committed to the role and to the ttme required for Board and,
where applicable Committee meetings and any other duties required
ofthem

The serwvice contracts of the Executive Directors and the letters of
appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are availabie for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal
business hours on any weekday [bank holidays excepted) and at the
Annual General Meenng

Induction and development of Directors

Main principle

All Directors should receve induction on joiming the Board and should
regularly update and refresh their skills and knowledge

The Board should be supplied in a timely manner with information in
aform and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties
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Direciors are provided with a comprehensive information pack on
joning the Company and are adwised of their legal and other duties and
obligatons as a director of a isted company In addition, all new
Direciors recerve induction on their appomtment covering such matters
as the operanon and activities of the Group, the role of the Board and
the Company’s corporate governance procedures Directors are also
briefed by the Company’s external advisers where appropnate, on
changes to legislation or regulation or market pracuice as welt as
receving briefings from business units throughout the year

The regular updating of Directors’ skills and knowledge 1s encouraged,
including 1n relation to envirenmental, sustainability and governance
matters, and a procedure has been established whereby the Company
Secretary s notified by Directors of therr requirements in this respect
Training for Directors is kept under review during the year

Relations with shareholders

Main principle

There should be a dialogue with shareholders based on the mutual
understanding of objectives The Board as a whole has responsibility
for ensuring that a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders takes place

The Board should use the AGM to communicate with investors and to
encourage their parncipation

The Executive Directors and the Director of Group Corporate Affars
meet regularly with representatives of major shareholders in order to
foster the mutual understanding of objectives Meetings are also held
with other shareholders and prospective sharehalders The details of
these meenngs are reported to the Board The Chairman and Senior
Independent Non-Execunve Director are available for meetings with
representatives of major shareholders as required

The Chairman and Company Secretary have also met with major
shareholders and fund managers to discuss governance matters

Private and institutional shareholders are encouraged to atiend the
Company’s Annual General Meeting

The Company comphes fully wath the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code in respect of the notice, contertt of agenda and
conduct of its Annual General Meetings The Chairmen of all the Board
Commitiees will be present arthe Annual General Meeting on 7 May
2014 to respond to shareholders’ questions

Heatth & safety and sustainability

A review of the Group’s progress on Health & Safety 1s provtded in the
Strategic review on page 21 and the Group’s Sustainability performance
1s contained in the Sustainability review on pages 34 1o 37

EL‘Cg.afd TQP'O
Richard Tapp

Secretary
SMarch 2014
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Report of the Audit Committee

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit Commitiee for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013 This report describes the
Committee’s ongoing responsibiliies and key tasks as well as its major
areas of activity over the last year

The key elements of our role are to review and report to the Board on
the Group s financial reporting, internal contral and nisk management
processes and the performance, independence and effectiveness of
the auditor, KPMG Audit Plc

The assurance framework required by the Audit Committee 1s provided
by complementary contributions from management reports, internal
and external audit reports and from risk management reports

As Chairman of the Commitiee, | have regular meetings with both the
Company’s external and internal auditors, Richard Adam, the Group
Finance Director and Robin Herzberg, the Group Head of Risk, in which
key issues relevant to the Commitiee’s work are discussed Inaddition,
I and my colleagues on the Committee visit contract operauons in both
the support services and construction areas of the business in order

to maintain a more detailed understanding of the Group’s businesses
which together with the reports we receive, facilitates the ongoing
effective operation of the Committee

In order to ensure that we remain at the forefront of best practice, the
Commuttee’s terms of reference are reviewed annually In 2013, the
terms of reference were updated in respect of The Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors’ Repori) Regulations 2013, which resulted
tn some munor changes The updated terms of reference can be viewed
at www carillionple com or a copy obtained on request from the
Company Secretary

Members’ attendance at meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2013

Meenng
Commitiee member atlendance
A Dougal (Chairman) 4
P Green 4
S Mogford™ 3
V Murray 4
AHorner™ 1

Mr Mogtord was unable to attend the December meeting of the Audit Committee due 10
regulatory commuments
Alison Horner was appointed as a Non Executive Director on | December 2013

The Committee benetits from the skills and experience gained by iis
members from current and former senior executive roles and from
therr expertence as Non-Executive Directors in other companies

Other attendees

We also have in attendance at meetings, by invitation of the Committee
the Chairman, Executve Directors, representatives of both the external
auditors (KPMG Audit Pic) and the internal auditors (Delontte LLP) and the
Group Head ol Risk The Comnutiee also meets privately with both the
external and internal audtors

The Commitiee 1s authorised by the Board to (i) seek any information
necessary to fulfilus duties, (n) call any member of staff to be questioned
ata meeting of the Committee as and when required and (i) obtain
independent legal, accounting or other professional adwice, at the
Company‘s expense, which mught be necessary for the fulfilment of
its duties

Main activities of the Audit Committee in the yearto
31 December 2013
The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows

> Monitoring and reviewing the Company’s internal and risk
management control systems on behalf of the Board

> Reviewing the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
including s annual and halt-year reports, interim management
statemenis and anv giher formal announcement relatng ro

> Reviewng the role and effectiveness of the internal audit funcrion,
the results of s audit work and the response of management

> Reviewing the scope and results of the external audit and 1ts cost
elfectveness

> Ensuring that the internal and external audit functions are
complementary

> Mormoring the independence and objectvity of the external auditors
and ensuning that the services provided lincluding non audit services)
have a proper balance between objectivity and value for money

» Recommendingto the Board, the appointment, reappointment or
removal of the external audiior

The Audit Commuttee met on four occasions in 2013 and dealt with the
following matters

Feb July August Dec
Financial reporting and significant
financial judgements
Full year results and associated
announcements .
Half-year results and associated
announcements .
Golng concern report . L
External audit
Review and consideration of the Audit
Memorandum [ -
Board representation letter . L
Evaluation of external audit function *
Re appoiniment recommendation to
the Board *
Fees for non-statutory audit activities []
Audit plan .
Year end audit plan update o
Committee meeung with external
auditor . . . .
Internal audit
Internal audit report L] [ [
Evaluanon of internal audit function L
2014 internal audi plan .
Peer review plan far 2014 .
Commuttee meeting with head of
internal audit . . .
Other
Annual review of terms of reference .
Annual evaluation of the Committee .
Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Financial
Conduct Authority’s Listing Rules and
Disclosure and Transparency Rules L L

In addition to the above meetngs in 2013, atits meeting in February 2014,
the Committee reviewed the Company’s financial statements and other
relevant disclosures in this 2013 Annual Report and Accounts

Financial reporting and significant judgements

The Committee 1s responsible for reviewing whether suitable accounting
policies have been adopted and whether management has made
approprtate esumates and judgementsin the preparation oi the
financial statements In respect of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013, the significant i1ssues reviewed and how these
1ssues were addressed are summansed below

Revenue and margin recognition

Note 32 on page 11l of the financial statements describes the estimation
techniques used by management to determine the amount of revenue and
costs to be recognised in relanon to construction and services contracts
{including hcensing ncomel Given the Company’s extensive portfclio of
contracts, a significant proportion of the Commuittee’s ime 1s spent on
reviewing contract judgements During 2013 the Commuttee reviewed
the positions and judgemenis taken by management on a number of
material contracts across the Group including the impact on working

ranital narfarmanrae and the accaccmoant Al hrancina inrAama theannh



Valuation of goodwill

Note 11 on page 92 of the financial statements describes the esimanon
techniques used by management to assess whether there has been an
imparment 1o the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets
The Committee considered and criscally reviewed the assumptions used
In management’s impairment calculations and considered the views of
the external auditor on this 1ssue This included a review of the sensitivity
analysis undertaken by management and the external auditor On the
basis of thisreview, the Commuttee agreed with management that no
impairment 1o goodwili was necessary

Non-recurring operating items

Note 4 on page 87 of the financial statements describes the nature of the
£42 9 milhon of nen recurring operating items recognised in relation to
restructuring costs in the year The Commitiee considered the accounting
treatment and disclosure af these costs inthe knancial statements
through a detailed review af management’s plans in refation to the
restructuring The Commuttee also sought the views of the external
auditor i relanon to the appropriateness of the accounting treatment
and disclosures On the basis of this review, the Committee concluded
that the accounting treatment and disclosures in relation to these
restruciuring costs were appropriate

Other matters considered by the Audit Committee

Cash flow and working capital

The Group’s processes for the management of cash flow and working
capital are key areas to which the Committee has paid particular attention
especially duning the penod over which the Group has been rescaling its
UK construction activines The Committee 1s saushied that these processes
have continued to work well, with the rescaling process successiully
completed by the end of 2013

Control environment
During 2013, there were a number of changes to the control environment,
with the outsouraing of some central shared services

Overall the Committee noted a smooth transition and an ongotng strong
control environment

Risk management and Internal Control

The Board 1s ulimately responsible for (i) determining the nature
and extent of the significant risks it 1s wilbng to take in achieving its
strategic objectives and, in this regard, the Board maintains risk
management and internal control systems and {1) that the Group’s
systemns for risk management and internal control are appropriate
and operating effectively

Additionally, the Board has established formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it should apply the corporate reporning,
risk management and internal centrol prinaples and for maintaining an
appropriate relanonship with the Company’s auditors

During the year the Audit Committee monitored and reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems including its risk
management procedures and reported thereon to the Board Itis
acknowledged that such systems can provide onty reasonable and
not absolute assurance against materia! misstatement or loss

The risk management and tnternal control procedures and environment
within the Carilhon Group are as follows

Risk management

The Group Head of Risk, Robin Herzberg 1s responsible for advising on
strategic risk issues across the Group, and for oversight of risk training
The Group Head of Risk 1s also respansible for carrying out an
independent appraisal of all projects before submission to the Major
Projects Commuitee (see below) This appraisal ensures that the
differentrating factors of the Group’s offer have been properly identihied,
thus maxirmising the opportunmes avalable, i also ivolves ensuring
that all inherent and residual risks associated with the project have been
properly identified and considered
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Management s responsible for the idennfication and evaluation of
significant risks apphcable to its areas of business together with the
design operanon and monitaring of suitable internal controls These
nisks are assessed on a continual basis and may be associated with a
vanety of internal or external sources, including contro! breakdowns,
disruption to information systems, compeltion, corporate sacal
responsibility, natural catastrophes and regulatory requirements
Management s supported in this process by a system of ‘peer reviews’,
under which the performance of individual contracts is reviewed by
experienced ieams Robust summarnes of the peerreview reports are
provided to, and reviewed by, the Audit Commuttee

Management is also responsible for imely and accurate reporting of
business performance and for ensuring compliance with the policies
set by the Board Regular performance review meeungs are held in
which senior managers report to the Executive Directors on business
performance nsk and internal control matters The results of these
meetings are presented to the Board

The Major Projects Comrmittee, a committee of the Board, acts as the
sanctioning body for majer commitments and transaciions mcluding
capital expenditure, major contracts and company and business
acquisiions and disposals This Committee has delegated autharity
up to specified levels of risk as determined by a risk assessment matrix
beyond which Board approval s required

In addition, practical guidance for all staff s mantaned in Group
policy and procedure documents regarding the authorisatien levels
for commitments, contract selectivity and bidding, the provision of
guarantees and management accounting as well as for reporting and
resolving suspected fraudulent activiues

The Board has a policy to prosecute individuals found to have defrauded
the Company orits subsidiaries To minimise the occurrence of fraud,
learning poinis for management are tdentied and action plans implemented

Employees are encouraged to raise genuine concerns about malpracuce
atthe earliest possible s1age and a confidenual Whistleblowing hothine
provided by an independent third party s available

A monthly report an issues raised on the Whistieblowing hotline and
subsequent nvestigations 1s compiled by the Whistleblowing and Fraud
Commuttee and forwarded to the Board

The Executive Directors report to the Board on material changes in

the busmess and the external environment that affect significant risks
The Groug Finance Director provides the Board with regular financial
nformation, which includes key periormance indicators and a summary
of sk These key performance indicators and risks are listed in the Strategrc
review on pages 21and 22 Where areas for improvement are identified,
the Board considers the recommendanons made by both the Executive
Drrectors and the Audit Commiitee

Internal controls

The Board s ulimately responsible for the Group’s system of internal control
This responsibility includes clearly determining the control environmeni and
reviewng annually the effectiveness of the internal control systern Howewver,
as previously stated, such a system can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matertal missiatement or loss

Deloste LLP provide the internal audu function for the Carilion Group

In accordance with the Turnbull Guidance for Directors ‘Internal Conirol
Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code’, the Board confirms that
there is an ongoing process for identifying, evatuating and managing
the significant nisks (both financial and non-financial and including
Corporate Social Responsibility nisks) faced by the Group (including joing
ventures and overseas businesses) The process has beenn place for the
year under review and up to the date of approval of the AnnualReport
and Accounts and i1s regularly reviewed by the Board
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Report of the Audit Committee

continued

Assurance over the design and operation of iInternal controls across the
Group 1s provided through a combtnation of techriques

> Internal audit carries out audits to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls over the key risks faced by the
business and reports its findings to management, the Executive
Directors and the Audit Committee The Audit Plan 1s presented to
and approved by the Audit Commuttee annually

> Recommendations to improve the systern of comrol are made by
Internal audit The implementation of these recommendations 1s
followed up and reported on quarterly

> Internal audit independently reviews the risk identification
procedures and control processes implemented by management

> Aprocess of Control Risk Self Assessment 1s used in the Group
where Directors and senior managers are required to detail and
cerufy controls in operation to ensure the control environmentin
their business areas is appropriate They also confirm annually, in
writing, that risk management processes and appropriaie conirols
are In place and are operating effectively

> Internal audit advises on aspects of the design and application of
internal controlsin key business projects and on policy and
procedure changes

Internal audit reports o the Audit Committee on a regular basis The
Audit Commiitee reviews the assurance procedures and ensures that the
level of confidence required by the Board s obtained it atso ensures the
financial reporting process is credible and reliable The Audit Committee
presents its findings to the Board regularly and the Head of Internal Audit
has direct access 1o the Audit Cornmitiee members

Any significantinternal control issues would be disclosed in this report
On the basis of the assurances given in 213, no disclosures in this
respect are required

Oversight of external audit

Both the Audit Commiitee and the Board place great emphasis on the
objectivity of the Group’s audnor, KPMG Audit Plc 1n their reporting
to shareholders

The KPMG Audit Plc Director 1s present at Audit Committee meetings
to ensure fult communication of matters relating to the audst

The scope of the lorthcoming year’s audit 1s discussed in advance by the
Audit Committee Audit fees are reviewed by the Audit Committee after
discussions between the businesses and the local KPMG Audit Pl offices
and are thenreferred to the Board for approval Rotation of Audit Directors’
responsibiities within KPMG Audnt Plc is required by their profession’s
ethical standards The current Audit Director responsible for the Carithon
engagementisin his fifth year of signing the report There 15 also rotation of
key members within the audit team

Assignments awarded to KPMG Audit Pl and its associates have been
and are subjectto controls by management that have been agreed by
the Audit Commuttee so that audit independence 1s not compromised
In summary the following procedures and controls are applied

> Audiirelated services as auditorthis is the main area of work of
KPMG Audit Pic and its associates I any addional accounting
supportis required then this 1s considered compettively

> Tax consulting in cases where they are bestsuited Carillion uses
KPMG Audit Pic and its associates but the Group also uses other
tax consultancies

> General and systems consulting all significant consulting projects
are subject to competitive tender

The Group Finance Director 1s required to give prior approval of non-audit
wark carried out by KPMG Audn Ple and its associates in excess of a
predetermined threshold In additton any suchwork incurring fees n
excess of £250,000 15 discussed with me prior to 11s commencement
These measures are designed to ensure that other potental providers
ofthe services required have been adequately considered Details of
audit and non-audrt fees paid to KPMG Audnt Ple can be found in note 3 on
page 87 In addinon, the Audit Committee 15 closely monitoring European
Unien proposals which are expected to prohibit the provision of certain
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These controls provide the Audit Commustee with adequate confidence
in the Independence of KPMG Audit Plc in their reporuing on the audit of
the Group

The overall performance of the auditor 1s reviewed annually by the
Audit Committee, which in addimon to the completion of a detailled
questionnaire by all of the Committee members, also takes tnio account
the views of management Feedback is then prowided to senior
members of KPMG Audit Plc unrelated to the audit This activity atso
forms part of KPMG Audit Plc's own system of quality control In each of
is meetings, the Audit Committee has discussions wrih the auditor,
without management being present, on the adequacy of controls and
onany jJudgemenital areas These discusstons have proved satisfactory

In its evaluation of the external audit function, the Commuttee concluded
that it was satisfied with the work of KPMG Audit Pic and that KPMG
Audit Ple continued to be effecve objectuve and independent
Accordingly, the Audt Committee recommended io the Board the
reappointment of KPMG and for this to be put to shareholders at the
2014 AGM The reappointment was approved by shareholders atthe
AGM held on 1 May 2013

External audit tendering

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 requires that FTSE 350
comparues should put the external audit contract out to tender at least
every 10 years or provide an explanation of why itis considered not
appropriate to do so Inaddition, it is likely that European Union legislation
will in due course require public interest entities 1o rotate audi firms after
an engagement peniod of 10 years, with such engagements being eligible
for an extension of a further 10 years, subject to a compentive tender
being undertaken by the entity These developments are also consisient
with the measures recommended by the UK's Compenton Commission,
tollownng its investigation 1nto the market for the provision of statutory
auditservices to large companies One of the main recommendations
from the Commussion’s findings 15 to require FTSE 350 companies to put
their statutory audit engagement out to tender at least every 10 years

KPMG Audit Plc was appointed as the Company’s auditor at its inception
111999 The Audi Commuttee continues to annually morutor and test
auditor ndependence through a range of measures Inaddiion KPMG's
performance s reviewed in detall annually as part of this review, the
Commitiee considers the scope of KPMG's work, their effectiveness

and the quality of reporting

Taking nto account the Board changes referred to inthe Chairman’s
Staternent (see page 5} that affect the composition of the Audit
Commitiee, the Commuttee concluded that in order to maintain and
ensure continuity during and immediately following this period of change
1t would not be appropriate to put the audit out to tender in 2014 The
Commitiee intends 1o keep this area under regular review as all of the
regulatory requwrements and the associated transitional arrangements
are more clearly established

Audit Committee members’ fees

The members of the Commutlee recewve fees as Non Executive Directors
that also reflect their membership of the Audit Comnuttee and other
Board committees There 1s also an additicnal fee for the rote of Chairman
ofthe Audit Commitiee Detals of remunerauion are given on page 61
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Andrew Dougal

Chatrman of the Audit Committee
5 March 2014




Remuneration report

Remuneration Committee Chairman's Letter
Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present our Directors’
Remuneraton report for 2013, which sets out the remuneranon pohcy
for the Direciors of Canllion and the amounts earned in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2013

The Report complies with the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Code ('the Code’) and the Financial Conduct Authority
Listing Rules To reflect the requirements of the revised remuneration
reporting regulations this repori is presented in two sections the
Directors” Remuneration Policy and the Annual Report on Remuneration
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy sets out the forward-ooking
remuneration pehicy Itwill be subject to a binding vote at the Annual
General Meeting The Annual Report on Remuneration provides detalls
of the amounts earned in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013
and how the Drirectors’ Remuneration Policy will be operated for the year
commencing | January 2014 This 1s subject to an advisory vote at the
2014 Annual General Meeting

2013 key decisions and incentive out-turns

Throughout the year, the Remuneranon Committee continued to
apply the remuneratron policy prudently with a strong alignment
to the interests of shareholders In this regard, the Remuneration
Commuttee feels strongly that rewards should be linked to both
Group and personal performance

To encourage behaviours which facilitate profitable growth and the
future development oi the business, for 2013, 50% of the annual bonus
oppertunity was based on Earnings Per Share ('EPS') performance,

25% was based on personaltargets and 25% was based on “siretch’
individual targets {indmidual strategic objectives that required a
significant level of performance 1o be achieved} As described inthe
business review section of this Annual Report, the trading condinons
within Carillion’s target markets continued to remain challenging and
consequently ne benus payments are to be made inrelation to the EPS
target However, as set out on page 63 both Exacutve Directors made
good progress against their personal and stretch individual targets for
2013 and consequently an annual bonus of 36 25% of base salary was
earned by Richard Howson and 42 5% of base salary was earned by
Richard Adam for the year ended 31 December 2013 50% of the bonus
earned s awarded in cash and 50% 1s awarded in shares which are
delerred for a three year period before vesting

Due to the challenging econom:c condiions in Carillion’s tndustry sectors
over the three year performance penodto 31 December 2013, the Group’s
annual average growth in EPSwas -4 7% Therefore no long-term
incentive awards vested under Canllion plc Leadership Equity Avward
Plan (the ‘LEAP’) Inrespect of the year ending 31 December 2013

The Rernuneration Cornmittee has also considered the base pay of

the Executive Directors and decided that in hine wath the approach to
employees base pay across the Group, no increase would be awarded
in 2014

Further details regarding base salary and bonus payments made 1o the
Execunve Directors are set out on page 62

Proposed changes in executive remuneration for 2014

The Remuneration Commuttee has continued to monitor executive
remuneration policy to take account of evolving market practice
whtlst also seeking to ensure that a stable framework is mainiained o
avoid making unnecessary and frequent changes to the structure of
pay Accordingly, the exysting remuneration policy and fundamental
structure of the package remains largely unchanged and the overall
quantum of the incentives has not changed
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The current LEAP rules expire in May 2016 However, with the introduction
of the binding vote on Directors” Remuneration Policy, the Remuneration
Committee 1s keen to ensure that its remuneraton arrangements are
appropriate, up to date, reflect best pracuice and are weli-positioned for
the enswing three years for which the policy vote will apply We have
therefore decided io seek approval tor anew set of rules 10 govern the
LEAP at the next Annual General Meeting in May 2014 The rules are
broadly similar to those already in place but have been updated to
ensure that they include governance provisions which have emerged
since the last set of rules was adopted A summary of the key terms of
the new rules Is set outin the notice of the Annual General Meeting

The purpose of the LEAP is to drive and reward the achievement of
longer-term objectives aligned closely to shareholders’ interests

To ensure that the performance metrics and targets for the LEAP are
consistent with the Group’s objectives, for 2014, the Remuneration
Committee 1s also propasing the addition of quantfiable and stretching
strategic objectives which will complement the financial objectives
already embedded in the LEAP These strategic objectives support our
focus onthree key areas of the business, growth, sustainability and
employee coniributon 1o the wider community For 2014, two-therds
of the LEAP award (up 10 100% of salary for Executive Directors) will
continue to be subject to the existing EPS and cash flow converston
performance targets and one third (up to 50% of salary for Executive
Directors) will be subject to strategic performance meirics that are
ahgned to Carilhon’s long term strategy

In the current economic envirenment the Remuneration Commuttee
recogmises that the EPS and cash flow conversion targets introduced

in 2012 are considered extremely challenging Nevertheless, the
Remuneration Commuttee recogrisesthe importance of mamntaining a
level of consistency with the changes made in 2012 The majority of any
2014 LEAP award will therefore continue to be subject to these targets
as set out on pages 56 and 57

For the avoidance of doubt, no changes are proposed to the maximum
LEAP opportunity which will remain at150% of salary annually and the
proportion of the award vesung for threshold performance remains at
25% of salary

The Remuneraton Cornmittee 15 not making any changes to the
annual bonus for 2014 The bonus design for 2014 will mirror that of
the 2013 scheme

We remain committed to a responsible approach in respect of executive
pay The Remuneration Committee will continue to actively engage with
and seeck to incorporate the views of its shareholders in any major
changes to the Executive Directors’ remuneration policy

N . beiiers

Vanda Murray OBE

Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee
5 March 2014
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continued

Directors’ Remuneration Pohcy

This part of the report sets out the Company’s Directors’ Remuneration
Policy which, subject to shareholder approval at the 2014 Annual
General Meeting, shall take binding effect irom the date of that meeting

Remuneration Policy table - Executive Directors

Element Purpose and link to strategy Operation
Base salary Core element of fixed remuneration thatprovides  Usually reviewed annually (but may be reviewed more frequently) with
the basis to recruit and retain talent necessary to any changes typically effective from 1 April The decisionis influenced by
delver the business strategy arange of factors including, but not hrmited to
Reflects individual skills, experience and the scope  » role, experience and perfermance,
of the executive’s responsibility > average change in broader workforce salary,
> total organsaticnal salary budgets and
Takes into account an individual’s performance > group profitability and prevaling market condinons
External benchmark data against companies of a similar size and
complexuy are also considered
Benefits To prowvide market-competitive benefits at a level Base salary 1s supplemeanted with a range of benefits based on the role
neededto attract and retamn talent necessary to and individual’s arcumstances
deliver the business strategy
These benefits include, but are not imited to, company car or car
allowance fuelbenefit and healthcare arrangements
Other benefits may be provided based onindividual circumstances,
such as, but not hmited to housing or relocation allowances travel
allowance or other expairiate benefits
Retirement benefits To provide market-competiive retrement benefits  The Company may make payments into an occupational pension {up to

at alevel needed to attract and resain talent
necessary to deitver the business strategy

the limit of pensionable pay) and/for a salary supplement The Company
operates a defined contribution plan for this purpose For salary in
excess of pensionable pay an allowance (set as a percentage of excess
pensionable pay) may be paid

Where contributions exceed HMRC limits for a tax free pension accrual,
Executive Directors have the choice of receving excess contributions as
a salary supplement (subject to tax and national insurance contributions)

In circumstances where there are histonical contractual commitments,
benetits in part may be provided through membership of the defined
benefit pension schemes operated by the Group but now closed
Deterred benefits from these schemes are based on pensionable
salary and service at the date of closure

Death-in service benefits are provided as part of membership of the
defined contribution plans based on contractual entitlement and on
alife-cover only basis of membership if applicable

Bonus and other benefits received by Executive Directors do not count
towards pensionable pay




Opportunity Performance metnics
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To avoid setting expectanions of Executive Directors and other employees,  N/A
no maximum base salary has been set under the Remunerattion Policy

Increases insalary will not normally exceed the range of increases
awarded to other employees inthe group However, larger increases
may be awarded in certain circumstances including, but not hmited to

> Increases i scope or responsibility, or

> anew Execunve Director being moved to market postigning over
nme

> where the Executive Director has fallen below the market
positioning, or

> other exceptional circumstances

Such increases may be implemented over such tme penod as the
Remuneration Commuitee deems appropriate

Whilst the Remuneration Committee has not set an absolute maximum N/A
on the level of benefits Executive Directors may receive, the value of

benefits 15 set at a level which the Remuneration Commuttee considers to

be apprepriately positioned taking into account relevant market levels

based on the nature and location of the role and individual circumstances

Pensionable pay 1s imited by an internal cap The Carillion cap commenced N/A
at the level of £110,000 for the tax year 2006 07 and rose in line with the
published increases in HMRC's Life Time Allowance to the current level

of £132 700 which has apphed since 2010 11 Future increases are at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee

Executive Directors recerve a contribution of up to 40% of basic salary paid
as a contribution to a pension plan or a taxable allowance as appropnate o
their individual circumstances

S0-10 MIAIAQ
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Remuneration report

continued

Remuneration Policy table - Executive Directors {continued)

Element Purpose and link to strategy Operation
Annual Drive and reward the achievement of annual Awards based on annual performance agawnst key financial and/or
performance bonus financial and/or strategic business targets and/or  strategic targets and/or the delivery of personal objectives

and deferred bonus
plan

delivery of personal objectives relevant to
Canllion’s long term strategic objectives

Prowide ahignment with shareholders’ interests

Compulsory deferral ot a proportion of bonus
earned, delivered m the Company’s shares,
supports the creation of long term susiainable
value, promotes share ownership and also
provides a retention element

Payments are determined by the Remuneration Commuitee after the
year end, based on performance agarnsttargeis set annually

The Remuneration Comsmittee may adjust the bonus pay out etther
up or down should the formulaic outcome be considered notto reftect
underlying business performance The circumstances where such a
change might be made are set out under the explanation of chosen
targets anc% how performance 1s measured below

Arleast 50% of any bonus earned s paid in cash and 50% 1s awarded in
shares which vest after three years {subjectto a de mimmus threshold
of £10,000)

Deferred share awards may be released earty on a change of control
{or other relevant event) or m ‘good leaver” circurnstances {as shown
on page 59)

The Remuneration Committee has the right to reduce any deferred
bonus awards which have notyet vested in relation to arcumstances of
corporate fallure which may have occurred at any ime before reduction
15 operated {ie a matus provision)

The Remuneration Committee may increase the number of shares
subject to a deferred share award 10 reflect dividends that would have
been paid over the deferral period on shares that vest, or make a cash
payment equal to the value of those additonal shares (‘Dividend
Equivalents’)

Long Term Incentive
- Carillion ple
Leadership Equity
Award Plan (LEAP)

Drive and reward the achievement of longer-term
objectives aligned closely to shareholders” interests

Retain key executives aver a longer-term
measurement period

Provide alignment with shareholders’ interests

Supports retention and promotes share ownership

The Remuneration Commuttee intends to make future long term
incentive awards under the 2014 LEAP o be approved by shareholders
atthe 2014 Annual General Meeting

Annual awards of conditional shares, restricted stock or nil cost options
(or similar cash equivalent) under the 2014 LEAP can be made with
vesting dependent on the achievement of performance conditions,
normally over athree year performance period

Targets, whilst streiching, do not encourage inappropriate business risks
to be 1aken

The Remuneration Commuttee has the right to reduce any LEAP awards
which have not yetvested in relation to circumstances of corporate
failure which may have occurred at any ime before the reducton s
operated (te a malus provision)

Awards under the LEAP may vest early on a change of control or other
relevant event) subject 1o sansfaction of the performance conditions
and pro-rating forime although the Remuneration Committee has
discretion to increase the extent of vestng having due regard to
performance over the period to vesting

As described on page 59, LEAP awards may also vest early in ‘good
leaver’ circumstances

The Remuneration Commuttee may make a dmdend equivalent payment
(‘Dividend Equivalents’) to reflect dividends that would have been paid
over the period to vesting on shares that vest This payment may be in
the form of addional shares or a cash payment equal to the value of
those addimonal shares




Opportunity
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Performance metrics

Up 10 100% of base salary

Targets are set annually reflecting the Group’s strategy and align with
key financial, strategic and/or individual objectives

Targets, whilst streiching, do not encourage mapprepriate business
risks to be taken

Atleast 50% of the bonus 1s assessed against key financial performance
meitrics of the business and the balance may be based on non financial
strategic measures and/or individual performance

Financial metrics

There 1s no mimimum payment at threshold performance, 50% of the
maxirmum potential for thig element of the bonus will vest for on-target
performance and all of the maximum potential will vest for maximum
performance

Non-financsal or individual metrics

Vesting of the non-financial or indwidual metrics will apply on a shding
scale between 0% and 100% based onthe Remunerauon Committee’s
assessment of the extent to which a non financial or ndividual
performance metric has been met

Under the new LEAP rules the overall maxirmum opporturity 15 200% of
salary in respect of a financial year

Normal maamum award 150% of salary in respect of a inancial year

Awards will vest subject to the achievement of performance assessed
over more than one financial year, normally three years against key
metrics aligned io the business strategy

Performance measures for the LEAP will be a combination of
finanaial measures, and/or straiegic performance metrics, including
(but not exclusively)

» earnings per share growth,
> cash flow conversion rate, and
> key strategic objectives

Weightings willbe as follows

> atleasttwo-thirds wili be based on financial metrics, and

» no more than one-third will be based on strategic performance
metrics

Financial metrics

For the achievement of the threshold levef of performance (the
minimum level of performance for vesiing to oceur] up to one sixth
of maximum opporturity will vest under each performance measure

For the achievement of the target level of performance up to 50% of the
maximum opporiunity will vest under each performance measure

For the achievement of the maximum level of performance [the highest
level ol performance that resulis in any vesting) 100% of the maximum
opportunity wall vest

Straight-ine vesting will usually apply between these levels of
performance

Strategic metrics
Vesting under the strategic element will apply on a shiding scale
between 0% and 100% for each measure to avord “cliff edge’ vesung

The Remuneration Commuttee must be sausfied that vesuing reflects
the underhang performance of the Company and retains the flexibility
to adjust the vesting amount 1o ensure itremarns appropriate 1o the
business performance delivered

SO-10 MmalAIdAD
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Remuneration policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors

Efement Approach of the Company

Chairman fees The remuneranon of the Chairman
of the Board 1s set by the
Remuneration Committee Fees
are set at a level which reflects the
skills, knowledge and experience
of the individual, whilst taking into
account appropriate market data

The fee 1s set as a fixed annual fee
and may be paid wholly or partly in
cash or Company shares

Non-Executive Director fees The Board as a whole I1s
responsible for deciding
Non Executive Directors fees
Fees are set taking into account
several factors including the size
and complexity of the business,
tees pard 1o Non Executive
Directors of UK listed companies
of a sirmilar size and complexity
and the expected time commitment
and contribution for the role

Fees are structured as a basic fee
with addmonal fees payable for
chairmanship or membership of
a committee or other additional
responsibilties

The fee s set as a fixed annual iee
and may be paid wholly or partly
in cash or Company shares

Overall fees paid 1o Directors will
remain within the himit set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association
of £500,000 per annum

Explanation of chosen performance measures and how

targets are set

The annual bonus s assessed against both financial and individual
targets determined by the Remuneranon Commitiee This incentivises
executives to focus on delivering the key financial goals of the Company
as well as specific strategic objectives for each Director which are
aligned to delivering the overall business strategy and to encourage
behaviours which facilitate profitable growih and the future
development of the business

Long-term performance measures are chosen by the Remuneration
Commuitee 10 provide a robust and transparent basis on which to
measure Carllion’s performance over the longer term and 1o provide
alignment with Canllon’s business strategy They are selected 1o be
algned with the interests of shareholders and to drive business
performance and link to the Group strategy whilst not encouraging
excessive nsk taking

The Remuneration Committee considers carefully the target ranges
to be attached to bonus and long-termincentive awards, taking into
account a number of factors which could include future growth
expectations, the market environment and the requirement [o set
stretching but achievable targets

The Commuttee retails the ability to adjust/or set different performance
measures if events occur (such as a change in strategy a maierial
acquisiion and/or a divestment of a Group business or a change in
prevaling market conditions) which cause the Committee to determine
that the measures are no longer appropriate and that amendment Is
required so that they achieve their original purpose

Pay policy for other employees

The remuneration policy applied to the Chief Executive s Leadership
Team and the mast senior executives In the Group is similar to the
policy for the Execunve Directors in that a significant element of
remuneration 1s dependent on Company and indwidual performance
The key principles of the remuneration philosophy are applied
consistently across the Group below this tevel, taking account of
senionty and logal market practice

Remuneration policy for new appointments

Inthe cases of hinng/appointing a new Executive Direclor, the
Remuneration Commiitee will typically align the remuneration package
with the above Remuneraton Policy However, the Remuneration
Committee retains the discretion to make payments or awards

which are cutside the Policy to facilitate the hiring of candidates of

the appropriate calibre required 1o implemeni the Group’s strategy
subject to the principles and limits set out below The individual wall
move over ime onle a remuneration package that s consistent with
the Policy set outinthe table above

In determining appropriate remuneration, the Remuneration
Commuttee will take into consideration all relevant factors (including the
quantum and nature of remuneration} to ensure that arrangements are
in the best interests of both Canillion and its shareholders This may, for
example, include (but 1s not imnted to) the following circumstances

> an nterim appontmentis made 1o fill an Executive Director role on
a shart-term basis,

> exceptional circumstances require that the Chairman or a
Non-Executive Director takes on an executive function on a
short term basis

» an Executive Director is recruited at a ime in the year when it
would be inappropriate to provide a bonus or long-term incentive
award for that year as there would not be sufficient tme to assess
performance Subject to the imit on vanable remuneration set out
below, the quantum in respect of the months employed during the
year may be transferred to the subsequent year so that reward s
provided cn a fair and appropriate basis,

» the Executive received benefits at his previous employer which the
Committee constders it appropnate to offer

The Committee may also zlter the performance measures, performance
period and vesting pertod of the annual benus or long-term incentive,
subject to the rules of the scheme, it the Commitiee determines that the
creurnstances of the recrutment ment such alteration The rationale will
be clearly explained

The Remuneration Committee may make an award in respect of hiring
to ‘buy out’ rernuneration arrangemenits forfeited on leaving a previous
employer In doing so the Remunerauon Commuttee will take account

of relevant factors regarding the forferted arrangements which may
include any performance conditions attached to awards forfeited (and
the ikehhood of meeting those condimons), the ime over which they
would have vested and the form of the awards (eg cash or shares)

It will generally seek to structure buy out awards on a comparable basis
to remuneration arrangements forfeired These payments or awards are
excluded from the maximum level of variable remuneration referred to
below, however, the Remuneranon Committee’s intention 15 that the
value awarded would be no higher than the expected value of the
forteited arrangements Where considered appropriate buy-out
awards will be subject to forfeiture or clawback on early departure

Where necessary, the Company will pay appropriate relocauon costs
The Remuneraton Committee will seek to ensure that no more 1s paid
than is necessary

The maximum level of variable remuneranon {excluding buy-out
awards) which may be awarded 10 a new Executve Director 1s 300%
of base salary Subject to this overall maximum variable remuneration,
ncentive awards may be granted within the first 12 months of
appointment above the normal maximum annual award opportunities
The Remuneration Comrmuttee will ensure that such awards are inked
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Any share awards referred 1o in this section will be granted as far as
possible under the Company’s existing share plans l{ necessary, and
subjecr1o the imits referred to above, in order to facilitate the awards
mentioned above the Commuttee may rely on exemption 9 4 2 of the
Listing Rules which allows for the grant of awards to facilitate, in
exceptional arcumstances, the recruitment of a Director

Where a position s fulfilled internally, any ongoing remuneratton
obligations or outstanding variable pay elements shall be allowed o
continue accerding to the original terms

Fees payable to a newly-appointed Chairman or Non-Executive Director
will be in ine with the fee policy in place at the ume of appointment

Service contracts

The Board's policy for current and new Executive Directors 1s that
service contracts are one-year rolling basis and have a notice period
that should not exceed one year

Date of Date of Nonce trom Nonce from

contract appointment the Company Directar

RichardHowson  8Dec2009 8Dec2009 12months  6months
Richard Adam 11Dec 2006 2Apr2007 i2months  6months

Non-Executive Directors are not employed under contacts of service,
but are generally appointed for fixed terms of three years renewable for
turther terms of one to three years, if both parties agree

Unexpired term

ancontract at

Date ol 31 Cecember

appointment 2013

Phiip Rogerson™ 10ct2004  4months
Phtip Green 1une 2011 5Smonths
Andrew Dougal 30ct201l 9 months
Alison Horner 1Dec2013  35months
Steven Mogford 55ep 2006 20 monhs
Vanda Murray® iJune 2005 4 monihs

* BothMr Ragerson and Mrs Murray will retire as Cirectors at the AGM on 7 May 2014

All Directors offer themselves for annual re-election at each AGM

in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code Service
contracts forthe Executive Directors and letters of appointment for the
Non-Executive Directors are available forinspection at the registered
office address of the Company

Payments for loss of office
The policy set out below prowides the framework for contracts for
Executive Directors

Element

Notice period on termination
by employing company
Termination payment

Policy
12 manths

Severance paymentsin relaton to
the service contract are imited to
no more than one year’s salary plus
benefits in kind (including company
car or car allowance and private
health insurance} and pension
contributions fwhich may include
salary supplerments)

Benefits provided in connection
with termination of employment
may also include, but are not limited
to, cutplacement and legal fees
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The Remuneration Commutiee
hasthe discretion to determine
appropriate bonus amounts

taking into consideration the
arcumsiances inwhich an Executive
Director leaves Typically for good
leavers’, bonus amounts (as
estimated by the Remuneration
Committee) will be pro rated for
ume In service to terrmination and
willbe subject to performance, paid
atthe usual tme ‘Good leavers’
typically include leavers due to
death, illness injury disability
redundancy, retirement with the
consent of the Company or any
other reason as determined by

the Remuneration Committee

Vesting of incentives
for leavers

> The vestng of share based
awards is governed by the
rules of the relevant incentive
plan as approved by
shareholders

> Underthe 2014 LEAP the
provisions for ‘good leavers’
provide that awards will vest at
the end of the normal vesiing
peried but the Remuneration
Commuttee has the discretion
to accelerate vesting tothe date
of cessaton of employment
if accelerated to the date of
cessation of employment
vesung will take account of
perlormance overthe pertod
10 the date of cessation of
employment and will be subject
to pro-rating for tme (although
the Rernuneraton Commutiee
has discretion to increase the
extent of vesting having due
regard to performance over
the period to vesting)

* Under the deferred bonus
plan, the provisions tor ‘good
leavers’ provide that deferred
share awards will be released
in full at the date of cessation
of employment

> Inercumsiances other than
good leavers awards will lapse

Were a buy out award to be made
under Listing Rule § 4 2then the
leaver provisions would be
deterrmined at the tme of the award

Richard Adarm's service agreement provides that in the period of 12 weeks
following a change of control of the Company if there has been a change
in bis duties, responsibilites, status or reporting line which 1s materially
less favourable to him he may confirm that such a change has taken

place oris proposed Following any such confirmation by Mr Adam his
employment will terminate and he will be recetve a payment infieu of
notice consisting of 12 months’ basic salary, car allowance {or taxable
value of the company car), pension coniributions and taxable value of
parucipauon inthe company’s private health insurance scherne

Richard Howson's service agreemeni contains a simitar provision in the
event of a change of control of the Company, except that his payment
1n liew of notice s subject to an obhgauon 1o mingate
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Under the terms of their engagement, the notice period to be given

by the Non-Executive Directors an the Company i1s six months and

the Company s obliged to give 12 months Discretion s retained to
terminate with or without due nouce or paying any payment in heu of
notice dependent on what I1s censidered 1o be in the best interests of the
Company In the parucular circumstances The Committee reserves the
right to make additional exit payments where such payments are made
in good faith in discharge of an existing legal obiganon [or by way of
damages for breach of such an abligauon) or by way of settlement or
compromise of any claim arising in connection with the termination of
a Director’s office or employment

Illustration of remuneration policy

This chart provides an llustration of the range of remuneration that may
be received by Execusive Directors in 2014 based on the assumptons
noted below

Assumptions.
Minimum performance

Fixed elements of remuneration
only - base salary, benefits and
pension only

Total fixed pay as above, plus
Assumes 50% of maximum pay-out
under the annual bonus (e 50%

of salary)

Assumes 50% of maximum pay-out
under the LEAP {ie 75% of salary)
Total fixed pay as above, plus
Assumes 100% of maximum
pay-out under the annual bonus

{ie 100% of salary)

Assumes 100% of maximum
pay-out under the LEAP (ie 150%

of salary)

Performance in line with
expectations

Maxtmum performance

Notes

1 Asrequired by theregulations the scenanios do notinclude any share price growth
assumpions or take into account any dnvidends thatmay be paid

2 Basesalarysthe latestknown salary lie the salary effective from 1 April 2014} and the
value for pension and benefits has been assumed 1o be equivalent 1o that included in the
single hgure calculanon on page 61

Wider workforce remuneration

When determining the remuneration arrangements for Executive
Directors, the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration, as a
matter of course, the pay and condiions of employees throughout the
Group In partcular the Remuneration Commiitee 1s kept informed en

» salary increase for the general employee populaton
» overall spend on annual bonus, and
> participation levels (n the annual bonus and share plans

Although no consultanon with employees takes place in relation to
determuing the remuneration policy for Directors the Group has
various ways of engaging employees collectively, as teams and one to
one A number of methods are common across all the Group (Team
Talk, Performance Development Reviews, Job Chat, Great Debate and
Chief Executive’s Leadership Team Lunches) and a number are business
or area specific [newslenters, dial mn consultation groups and socials)
The Beard receves updates and feedback on employee engagement

Existing contractual arrangements

The Remuneration Committee reserves the nightto make any
remuneration payments and payments for loss of office notwithstanding
that they are notinline with the Policy set out below where the terms of
the payment were agreed

(I} betore 27 June 2012 or

{1} at a time whenthe relevantindividual was not a Director of the
Cornpany and, in the opinion of the Remuneration Commitiee
the payment was notin constderanon for the individual becoming
a Director of the Company

Forthese purposes payments’ include the Remuneration Committeg
sabisfying awards of variable remuneration and, in relation to an award
over shares, the terms of the payment are ‘agreed’ at the nme the award
ts granted For the avoidance of doubt, the Remuneration Committee’s
discrenon includes discretion to determine, in accordance with the rules
of the current LEAP the extent to which awards under that plan may vest
in the event of a change of contro! or in a ‘good leaver” circumstance

Shareholder engagement

The Rermuneration Commuittee engages in regular dialogue with
shareholders to discuss and take feedback on its remuneration policy
and governance matters In particular, the Remuneration Commutiee
discusses any significant changes to the policy or the measures used to
assess performance

No sigruficant amendments were made to the Remuneranon Pohcy for
2014 and the Remuneration Committee did not therefore feel it necessary
to undertake a further consultatton exercise on its overall remuneranon
proposals However inthe interests of ensuning ongoing and transparent
dialogue with shareholders, the Remuneration Committee consulted
shareholders on changes to the performance condiions attaching to
LEAP awards for 2014 There were no other significant changes to the
Execunve Director Remuneration Policy proposed for 2014

The Remuneration Committee will cantinue 1o actively engage with and
seek to Incorporate the views of its shareholders in any major changes
to the Executive Director Remuneration Policy
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Carillion’s remuneration policy 1s to provide the Executive Directors with appropnate incentives to encourage enhanced performance ina manner
consistent with the Group’s objectives and to reward them in a fair and responsible manner for their individual contributions 1o the success of the

Group

Canllion’s remuneration philosophy is that reward should be used to incentivise Executive Directors in a manner that 1s consistent with the Group'’s
objectives The package has been designed based on the following key principles

Key focus

Remuneration policy

To attract, develop and retain excellent people

To reward all employees farrly according to their role, experience and
performance and with due regard to aciual and expected market

conditions and the financial perfarmance of the Group

Alignment with interests of shareholders

A substanual propornon of the package for the Execunve Directors is
delvered i the Company’s shares to ensure that the mterests of
Executives are aligned with shareholders This is further supported by
shareholding guidelines ensuring that a meaningful portion of each
Executive Director’s personal wealth 1s inked 1o the share price

performance

Pay for performance

A substantial proportion of Executive Director remuneration s variable
and hnked to the Group’s performance in particular, to the delivery of
sustained profitable growth and to the performance of the individual

Be arecognised leader in Health & Safety and sustainability

To ensure that remuneratnion arrangements support our sustainability
agenda, the quality of performance in terms of business results and
leadership s considered, ncluding achieving high standards in respect of
Carillion’s Health & Safety, environmental and social performance targets

This is further supported by the introduciion of strategic objectives

into the LEAP from 2014 which include speafic and quantifiable

sustainability metrics

Single figure of remuneranion for each Director

The remuneration of the Directors of Carilhon plc for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the previous year 1s setout in the tables below

This information has been audited

Long term Total
Director Salary/fees® Benefis™ Bonus® incentives Pension™  remuneration
Year ended 31 December 2013, £7000
Executive
Richard Howson 560 73 203 - 198 1,034
Richard Adam 450 2] 91 - 175 837
Total for Executive Directors 1,010 94 394 - 373 1,871
Non-Executive
Philip Rogerson 193 - - - _ 193
Philip Green 60 - - - - 60
Andrew Dougal 60 - - - - 60
Steve Mogford 50 - - - - 50
Vanda Murray 60 - - - - 60
Total for Non-Executive Directors 423 - - - - 423
Total 1433 94 394 - 373 2,294
Long term Total
Executive Salary/feesh Benehts™ Bonus™ incentives™® Pension* remuneraton
Year ended 31 December 2012, £000
Executive
Richard Howson 560 21 - - 210 79
Richard Adam 429 21 - - 153 603
Total for Executive Directors 989 42 - - 363 1,394
Non-Executive
Phulip Rogerson 192 - - - - 192
Philip Green 60 - - - - 60
Andrew Dougal 60 - - - - 60
Steve Mogford 50 - - - - 50
Vanda Murray 60 - - - - 60
Total for Non-Executive Directors 422 - - - - 422
Total 1,41 42 - - 363 1816
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Remuneration report

continued

The figures in the single-figure table above are derived from the following

(a) Salary and Fees The amount of salary/fees recerved in the year

{b) Benehts This 1s the taxable value of benefits recewved in the year This includes a car/car allowance fuel benefit and private medical
care For 2013 only itincludes £51,919 19 1in respect of a contractual gratwty earned by Richard Howson during his ume in
the UAE (alocal statutory pension provision}

{c) Bonus Bonus 1s the cash value of the bonus earned in respect of the year including the value of the deferred shares which must
be held for a mirvmum three year period A descripiion of performance aganst the objectives which apphed for the
frinancial year 1s provided on page 63
{d) Long-term Long-term incentives 1s the value of performance-related incentives vesting in respect of the financial year
Incentives

LEAP awards granted to Executive Directors prior to 2012 were based on growth in earmings per share against RPl as
discussed on page 64

For the year ended 31 December 2012 comparative figures, the LEAP awards in respect of the performance period
commencing t lanuary 2010 and ending 31 December 2012 lapsed infull

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2013, the Group’s annual average growth in EPS over the three year performance period
commencing 1 January 201t and ending 31 December 2013 was -4 7% therefore the LEAP awards in respect of the year
ending 31 December 2013 will also lapse in full

(e} Pension The pension figure represents the cash value of pension contributions received by the Executive Directors This includes
the Company’s contributions to the defined contribution pensson scheme and any salary supplement in ieu of a Company
pension contribution and the allowance paid for salary in excess of the internal cap on pensicnable salary

Individual elements of remuneration

Base salary and fees

Base salaries for individual Directors are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and are setwith reference to individual performance
experience and responsibilities within the Group as well as with reference to similar roles in comparable comparnies As reported inthe Company’s
previous Directors’ Remuneration Report, there were no salary increases for Executive Directors (n 2013 This information has been audited

For 2014 Richard Howson and Richard Adam did not receive an increase in salary

The base salaries for 2013 and 2014 are as set out below

2003 2014
base salary base salary” Increase
Richard Adam £450,000 £450,000 Nil
Richard Howson £560,000 £560,000 Nil

* 2014 base salanes are payable from 1 April 2014

The remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors, other than the Chairman, 1s deterrmined by the Board Fees reflect the responsibilines and
duties placed upon Non Executive Directors whilst also having regard to market pracuce The Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any
of the Group’s share incentive plans nor do they receive any benefits or pension contributions

Non Executive Director fees 2013 2014
Basic fee £50,000 £50,000
Addinonal fee for
- Chairmanship of the Remunerauon Committee £10,200 £10,200
- Charrmanship of the Audit Committee £10,200 £10,200
- Senior Independent Non Executive Director £10,200 £10,200

Philip Rogerson received a fee of £193,0001n 2013 and no increase 1s proposed for 2014 He does not recewve any addinonal fees for Committee
memberships On appointment as Charrman in 2014 Philip Green will receive a fee of £193,000 annually

2013 Annual Bonus
To encourage behaviours which facilitate profitable growth and future development of business, for 2013, the annual bonus was based on the
following performance targets This infermation has been audied

Executive Director Financial performance Personal performance
Richard Howson and Richard Adam 50% of salary based on achievernent and 25% of salary based on personal objectives
out performance of EPS target 25% of salary based on ‘stretch’ individual targets

The personal objectives and ‘stretch’ individual
targets of the Executive Directors were agreed by
the Remuneration Commuttee at the start of the
2013 financial year, and assessed in February 2014
to establish the extent to which they had been met
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Performance against targets

Financial performance

(up to 50% of salary) Target EPS of 40 O pence was not achieved and therefore no bonus was awarded for inancial performance
Personal cbjectives For 2013, these objectives included
{up to 25% of salary)

Richard Howson

Lead the Group’s Health & Safety and Sustainability sirategies and aim to deliver continuous improvement In

performance

Ensure effective succession management is in place for leadership populations across the Group

Maximise returns from work-winning opportunities and target continuous Improvement in
sansfaction metrics

Lead the ongoing development of the Group’s strategy in hne with its published objecives

Following its review in February 2014 the Committee concluded that Richard Howson had
personal objectives for 2013 to award 17 5 per cent of salary in respect of this element

Richard Adam

the Group’s customer

met sufficient of his

Maximise the Group’s operating performance by reference to underlying profit before 1ax, and cash flow conversion

Drive margin improvement through effective control of overhead costs

Ensure the Group maximises returns from its supply-chamn imbatives

Lead the Group’s investor relations programme and ensure the Group’s performance and other developments are

effectively communicated to its debt and equity investors

Following s review in February 2014, the Committee concluded that Richard Adam had met suffiaent of fus personal

objectves for 2013 1o award 17 5 per cent of salary in respect of this element

‘Stretch’ individual targets  For 2013, these objectuves included
{up to 25% of salary)
Richard Howson

Maximise returns from the Group’s work winmng activities and ensure that by 31 December 2013 the Group has

adequate levels of revenue visibility against its budgeted targets for 2014

Ensure strong and effective managementis in place to deliver the business plan targets across alt of the Group’s key

operatng entities

Drive contract performance improvements across the Group

Following its review in February 2014, the Committee concluded that Richard Howson had met sufficient of hrs stretch

abjectives for 2013 to award 18 75 per cent of salary in respect of this element

Richard Adam

Deliver sigmificant cost savings through a review of the Group’s back-office processing funchions

Implementimprovementinitiatives as required to maximise the performance of the Group

Target to deliver wnprovements in the Group’s performance on working capiial management, particularly during the

second half of 2013

Following its review 1 February 2014, the Commurtee concluded that Richard Adam had met sufficient of his stretch

objectives for 2013 to be awarded 25 per cent of salary in respect of this element

Annual bonus paymenis to Execunive Directors also have the following additional resirictions applied

> 50% of any bonus earned 1s deferred into shares in the Company for a period of three years under the deferred bonus

plan

> Amalus provision is operated which gives the Remuneratron Commuttee the night to reduce any deferred bonus awards which have not yet

vested in relafion to circumstances of corporate faslure which may have occurred at any ime before malus 1s operated

For 2013, the value of each Executive Directors’ annual bonus paid in cash and deferred into shares were as follows

Total annual bonus shownin
cotumn () of roral remuneranon

Cash payment Delerred inio shares 1able on page 61 inrespect of 2013
Richard Adam £95,625 £95625 £191 250
Richard Howson £101,500 £101 500 £203,000
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Remuneration report

continued

Summary of 2014 bonus operation

The Remuneration Committee 1s not making any changes to the annual banus policy and siructure for 2014 The bonus design for 2014 will mirror
that of the 20i3 scheme and the maximum annual bonus opportunity remains at 100% of base salary The Remuneration Commuttee considers
that the actual annual bonus targets are commercially sensitive and should therefore remamn confidential to the Company They provide our
competitors with insight Into our business plans, expectations and our strategic aciions However, the Remuneration Committee will continue

to disclose how the bonus pay-out delivered relates to performance against the targets on a retrospective basts

Value earned from long-term incentive awards

The Leadership Equity Award Plan (LEAP)

LEAP awards granted to Executive Directors prior to 2012 were based on growth in earnings per share against RPI as shown below This informaton
has been audited

Growth in earnings per share % ol bage salary
Levell RPI+3%pa 30% vesls
Level 2 RPI+ 7% pa 50% vests
Level3 RPI+12% pa 100% vests
Leve! 4 RPI + 25% pa Extra 50% vests

Levels1to 3 apply to all parucipants, Level 4 applies ta the Executive Directors

Performance against targets
EPS performance achieved in three-year performance period ic 31 December 2013 (4 7V% pa
% of 2011 award due to vest in Apnl 2014 Nil

Long-term incentives awarded during the financial year
The table below outlines awards made under the LEAP to Execunive Directors in 2013 This infermation has been audited

Award Number Face value Vesting Performance

basis of shares of the award at threshold penad

25% of 1]anuary 2013 to

4 April 2013 Richard Adam 150% of base salary 244 477 £675001 basesalary 31 December 2015
25% of 1fanuary 2013 10

4 Aprl 2013 Richard Howson 150% of base salary 304,238 £840,001 Dbasesalary 3t December 2015

* The face value i1s based on the 1ssue price at the date of grant of £2 761
The performance condiions for these LEAP awards are as follows

Annual compound growth in EPS element (100% of salary)

Growth in EPS will be measured based on the underlying basic earnings per share as disclosed in the relevant annual report and accounts This is
calculated belore intangible amortisation, non recurning operating ems and non-operating kems (and post any impairment of goodwill or
intangibles) The following EPS targets apply

Veshng (% of salary EPS

for Executive Directors) growth

Threshold 167% 6% pa
Target 50% 9% pa
Maximum 100% 12% pa

Average annual cash flow conversion rate element {50% of salary)
Calculated as the underlying cash flow from operations divided by the underlying profit from operatons as reported in the annual report and
accounts The annual cash flow conversion rate over the three year performance period will be averaged to provide a focus on the continued
sustained delivery of cash-backed profits The following cash conversion rate targets apply

Annual average

Vesting (% of salary cash llow

for Executive Durectors) Conversion rate

Threshold 83% 95%
Target 25% 100%

Maximum 50% 0%




Long-term incentive awards for 2014

It1s intended that the LEAP awards tor 2014 will be made under the new
LEAP being put to shareholders lor approval at the Annual General
Meeting The rules are broadly similar to those already in place but have
been updated to ensure that they include good governance provisions
which have emerged since the last set of rules was adopted A summary
of the key terms of the new rules are set outin the notice of the Annual
General Meeting

To ensure that the performance metrics and targets for the LEAP are
consistent with the Group’s objecnives, for 2014, the Remuneration
Commitiee 1s also proposing the addiion of quantifiable and stretchung
strategic objectives which will complement the financial objectives
already embedded in the LEAP These sirategic abjectives support our
focus on three key areas of the business growth, sustatnability and
employee coninbution to the wider community

In summary the structure of the LEAP awards for 2104 15 as follows

Performance
Share Plan award
paidn shares
{amount
dependentan
performance
achieved!)

1/3 ot maxamum {50% of salary) based an
average annual EPS growth

/3 ol maximum (50% of salary) based on cash
{low conversian rate over the three year
performance penod

143 of maximum {50% of salary)l based on
stralegic performance metrics that are aigned
to Carilhon s lang term strategy penod

YearOQ Year | Year 2 Year3

LEAP award

The majority of any 2014 LEAP award will therefore continue to be subject
ta the EPS and cash flow conversion targets, as set out in the table below

50% ol salary

Vesting (% of based an

maximum for 50% of salary annual average

Executive based on EPS cashilow

Direcrors) growth  conversion rate

Threshold 167% 6% pa 95%
Target 50% 9% pa 100%
Maximum 100% 12% pa N0%

One-third of any 2014 LEAP award will be subject to strategic
performance metrics that are aligned to the Company s sustainability
agenda and that drive shareholder value For 2014, this wili be based
on three quantifiable and stretching strategic measures that will
apply equally

> delivery of sustainabihty through measurable cost-saving and
efficiencies that will provide contributions to the Company’s
proht of £25 milion £30 million and £32 mitlionin 2014 2015
and 2016 respectively,

> dehivery of employee engagement in sustainability measured
through atarget of 25% of Canllion’s employees undertaking
community work in Company tme by the end of 2016, and

> sirategic growth measured through the achievement of secured
and probable, profitable new orders over the performance period
with a bock-to bill ratio of more than 1

The Remuneranon Commuttee will determine any shiding scale of
performance assessment to apply to each strategic element when the
grantis made Vesting under each sirategic element will be based on
an audited assessment of performance that will be provided to the
Remuneration Committee

In addiuon, the Remuneration Commiitee must be sausfied that the vesung
reflects the underlying performance of Carillion and retains the flexibility

to adjust the vesting amount ta ensure it remainappropriate Itis often not
possible to assess ihis formulaically and any adjustment will depend on the
nature tmung and materiahty of any conkributory factors
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In order to maintain transparency the Remuneration Committee will
disclose how the Company has performed againsi each of the strategic
metrics at the end of the performance period and will disclose any
adjustments made to ensure that vesting reflects appropriately the
underlying performance of the business

For the avaidance of doubt, no changes are proposed to the maximum
LEAP opportunity which will remarn ata policy of awarding 150 per cent
of salary annually and the proportion of the award vesung for threshald
performance remans at 25 per cent of salary

Total pension entitlements (including defined benefit schemes)
Pensionable salary 1s imited by an internal cap The Carllion cap
commenced at the level of £110,000 for the tax year 2006-07 and rose
in hne with the published increases in HMRC's Life Time Allowance to
the curreni fevel of £132,700 which has applied since 2010-11 Future
Increases are at the discretion of the Remuneranon Commuttee Salary
supplements are paid on salary over the internal cap

Executive Directors receve pension contributions and supplements up
to 40% of salary Executive Directors who parucipate in the Company’s
defined contribution plan are required to pay 10% of the earnings cap

Richard Howson i1s also a deferred member of the defined benefit
scheme The defined benehit scheme was closed to future agerual in
April 2009 and Executive Directors who were members of this scheme
became deferred pensioners Their deferred benefits are based on
pensionable salary and service at the date of closure Richard Howson
ts a deferred member of this scheme and details of the pension accrued
to himis included below

Change in accrued
Accruedpensronat  pension over 2013
31 December 2013/{2012) net of inflanen

E27407(£26,870) Nil {rl}

Normal
Retirement Date

3 August 2033

Richard Howson

1 Thepensionfigures use CPl{rather than RP to revalue deferred benetus from Vjanuary 201
inhine with legal adwice recewed from the legal advisors 1o the srusiee of the scheme

2 Theaccrued pension allows for nflation from the member s date cessation to future accrual
tothe current date consistent with the approach takenin prior years The benefitthe
member will receive on retrement will be based on statutory revaluauons which may differ

3 Flgures are calculated in hne withthe requirements effective from | October 2013

4 Prior year figures are shown in brackets.

As the defined benefit scheme is closed, early retirement benefits
{not on the grounds of ill health) are available from age 55 reduced for
early payment Inthe event of ill health early reurermnent the accrued
benefis may be paid at any age with or without a reduction for early
payment at the discrenion of the pension scheme trustees

Death-In service benehts are provided as part of membership of
these plans

Payments to past Directors
There were no payments made to past Directors during the period in
respeci to services provided to the Campany as a Director

Payments for loss of office
There were no payments for loss of office during the period
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Remuneration report

continued

Shareholding gwidelines and total shareholdings of Directors
To provide ahgnment with shareholders’ interests and 1o promote share ownership, each Executive Director 1s required to hold the net number
of shares acquired through the LEAP and, with effect from 1 January 2014, the deferred bonus plan until the value of therr total sharehalding is
equal to their annual salary The extent to which each Executve Director has met the shareholding guideline is shown in the table below This

information has been audited

Unvested
Current Subjectto Not subjectio
Shareholding shareholdings Owned performance performance Total as at
guwdehnes  [per cent of salary} Type outnight conditions condiions 3] Cecember 2013
Executive Directors
Richard Adam 100 per cent of salary n8,238 Shares 118,238 N/A N/A 118,238
99%" LEAP award N/A 638,550 N/A 638,550
DBP shares N/A N/A 61,008 61,008
Richard Howson 100 per cent of salary 85,341 Shares 85,341 N/A N/A 85,341
58%" LEAP award N/A 746,748 N/A 746,748
DBP shares N/A N/A 57,570 57,570
Non-Executive Directors
Philip Rogerson N/A N/A Shares 39,630 N/A N/A 39,630
Philip Green N/A N/A Shares 10,000 N/A N/A 10,000
Andrew Dougal N/A N/A Shares 5000 N/A N/A 5000
Alson Horner N/A N/A Shares Nil N/A N/A Nil
Steve Mogford N/A N/A Shares Nil N/A N/A Nil
Vanda Murray N/A N/A Shares 12,300 N/A N/A 12,300
* The current shareholdings as a percentage of salary are calculated using the clesing Canlhon pic share price on 4 March 201 of 378 pence
Outstanding directors’ share awards
The awards held by Executive Directors of the Company under LEAP as at 31 December 2013 are shown below
Asat LEAP awards Awards  Awardsf/options As at Mid market
llanuary  graniedduring  wvesungduning  lapsing during 31 December share price on
2013 the year theyear the year 2013 Date date of award
Number Number Number Number Number of award Pence
Richard Adam
LEAP 2010 (maximurmn} 192,090 - - 192,090 Nl 170310 3186
LEAP 2011 {maximum) 159,209 - - - 159,209 o804an 3844
LEAP 2012 imaximum} 234,864 - - - 234,864 050412 2874
LEAP 2013 (maximurmil - 244,477 - - 244,477 040413 2701
Richard Howson
LEAP 2010 (maximum} 138,888 - - 138,888 Nil 170310 3186
LEAP 201 Imaximum) 150,234 - - - 150,234 0804Mm 3844
LEAP 2012 imaximum) 292 276 - - - 292,776 050412 2874
LEAP 2013 imaximum] - 304 238 - - 304,238 040413 2701

Performance graph and table

The following graph shaws the TSR of Car:llion plc compared with the TSR of the FTSE 35Q (ndex The FTSE 350 was chosen as the comparator
group in order to dlustrate the Company’s TSR performance against a broad equity market index of the UK’s leading companies TSR 15 notused
as a performance measure tar any benefits provided to Executive Directors

TSR Performance 1 January 2013 - 31 December 2013

Rebased 10 100

TSR Performance 1 January 2009 - 31 December 2013

Rebased to 100
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Table of historic CEO data

Annual bonus

CEQ Single figure payout against  LEAP vesungrates

ofremuneration maxmum agalnsl maximum
Year CEQ {£.000) apportunity (%) apporiunity (%)
2013 Richard Howson 1,034 36 25% Nil
2012 Richard Howson 791 Nl Nil
201 Jehn McDanough 1,719 100% 21%
2010 John McDonough 1,512 24% 53%
2009 John McDonough 1,666 54% B5%

Percentage change in remuneration of Director undertaking the role of CEQ

The table below sets outin relaton to salary taxable benefits and annual bonus the increase in pay for Richard Howson compared to all UK
employees and the 1op 100 management roles between 2012 and 2013 The latter population provides a comparison that is based on a consistent
set of employees and 15 a fair representation of our worldwide employee base who are eligible to earn an annual bonus and recerve benefits that
are broadly consistent with those provided to the Chief Executive

Top 100 AllUK

CEOQ globally employees

Salary Nil 26¥% 217%
Taxable benefits Nil Nl Nil
Annual bonus 203,000 16,277 2,196

In 2013, bonuses were paid as shown above Since no bonus was paid in 2012, these have been shown as the percentage change for each category
year on year in order to produce a meaningful comparison

Relative importance of spend on pay
The foltowing table sets out the percentage change in dividends and the overall expenditure on pay (as a whole across the organisation}

2013 2012 Change
Dividends E752m £729m 32%
Overalt expenditure on pay £7510m £7650m (18)%

Dividends payable inrespect of the year ended 31 December 2012
Drvidends payable in respect of the year ended 31 December 20t3

The Remuneration Committee considers the spend on sustainability to be another significant use of profits and cash flow A summary of the
Company’s spend on sustainability can be found in the Sustainability review on pages 34 to 37 {with more details available in our 2013 Sustainability
Reportwhich will be published on our website in Aprd 2014)
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Remuneration report
continued

Remuneration Committee members and advisers
The Remuneration Commitiee is responsible for

setiing the framework and pelicy for remuneranon of the Executive Directors,

determining the remuneration packages for the Executive Directors and the Chairman,

monitoring the level and structure of remuneration for senior management and approving bonus paymenis, and

noung any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Group and ensuring that Executive Director remuneration practice
1s consistent with any such changes

L

The Remuneration Committee consisis exclusively of independent Non Executive Directors Vanda Murray, Steve Mogford, Philip Green and
Andrew Dougal lts terms of reference can be found on the Company’s website, www carillionplc com The Remuneration Committee determines
the policy for remuneration of the Executive Directors of Canthon ple and key members of the serwor management team

The Remuneration Committee s assisted in its work by the Group HR Director Richard Howsen, Graup Chief Executive, also assisted the
Remuneration Committee during the year The Group Chief Executive 15 consulted on the remuneration of those who report directly to im and
also of other semior executives No Executive Director or employee is present or takes partin discussions in respect of matters relating directly to
lhelr own remuneranon

Additionally, the Remuneration Commuttee uses Deloitte LLP to provide salary survey and benchmarking informauneon and external and internal
contextual information and analysis as required The Remuneration Commitiee took into account the Remuneration Consultants Group’s Code

of Conduct when reviewing the ongoing appointment of Deloitte as adviser to the Remuneration Committee Deloitte’s fees for providing such
advice are charged on a ime basis and amounted 1o £20,025 (2012 £20,163) for the year ended 31 December 2013 The Remuneration Committee
assesses from ime to ime whether this appaintment remains appropriate or should be put outto tender The Remuneration Committee undertook
such an assessment during the year and remains sausfied with Deloitte’s appointment as adwisers to the Remuneration Comrnittee Delonte, which
was appointed by the Remuneraion Committee in 2005, also provides certain specialist consultancy services and internal audit resource but
otherwise has no other connections with the Group The Remuneration Commitiee (s satisfied that the remuneration advice provided by Deloitte

1s objective and independent

The Remuneration Committee adopts the principles of good governance as set outin the UK Corporate Governance Code and complies with the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and Schedule 8 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (as amended in 2013} It met three times during the year and all members attended all meetings

Statement of voting at 2013 Annual General Meeting

Voteswithheld
Resalunon Text Votes tar % far Vaoles against %against  Toral votescast (abstentions)
Approval of Remuneratnon Report 257,157,227 92% 21616 032 8% 279,038,219 440113

Approved by order of the Board

N . berssioss

Vanda Murray OBE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
5 March 2014
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and
the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Direciors to prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements In
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and
have elected to prepare the Parent Company ftnancaial staternenis in
accordance with UK Accounung Standards

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are sansfied thai they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their
profitor loss for that period In preparing each of the Group and Parent
Company hinancial statements, the Directors are required to

» select sunable accountng policies and then apply them
consistently,

> make judgemenis and estimaies that are reasonable and prudent,

» forthe Group financial statements state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

> forthe Parent Company financial statements, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal depariures disclosed and explained
in the Parent Company financial statements, and

> prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless itis inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
Parent Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounung

records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company’s
transaciions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure
that iis finanaial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006

They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
opento them to safeguard ihe assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and otherirregularities

Under applicable law and regulanons, the Directors are also responsible
for preparing a Strategic Repart, Directors’ Report Directors’
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that
complies with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and iniegrity of
the corporate and finanoal information included on the Company’s
website Legislation inthe UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staiements may differ from legislation
inother junsdictions

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the
annual financial report

Each of the Directars ot Carillion ple whose names and functions
are set out on pages 40 and 41, confirms that to the best of his or
her knowledge

» the finanoal statements, prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards and contained in this 2013
Annual Report and Accounts, give atrue and fair view of the
assets, habiines, financial positton and profit of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidaton taken as a whole,

> the Strategic Report, ncluded in this 2013 Annual Reporiand
Accounts, Includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consohdation taken as a whole,
togeiher with a description of the principal risks and uncertaintes
thatthey face, and

» the 2013 Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance,
business madel and straiegy

Approved by order of the Board

Richard Adam FCA

Group Finance Director
5March 2014
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Independent auditor’s report to the

members of Carillion plc only

Opinions and conclusions ansing from our audit

1 Our opinion on the financial statements 1s unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Canllion ple for the year ended
31 December 2013 which compnise the Group Consolidated Income
Statement, the Group Consohidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets,
the Group Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group
Consohdated changes in Equity, the Group Consolidated Cash Flow
Staternent and the related notes In our opimion

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013
and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

» the Group finanaal statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS),

*» the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Accounung Standards, and

> the financial statements have been prepared in aceordance with the
requirements of the Comparies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Ariicle 4 of the 1AS Regulation

2 Our assessment of nisks of matenial misstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the hinancial staternents the risks
of matena! misstatement that had the greatest etfect on cur audit were as
follows

Revenue and margin recognition {total revenue £4,080 9 million)
Refer to page 50 {Repert of the Audit Committee), page 81 (Note 1
Significant accounting policies - Revenue recognition) and page 111 (Note
32 Accounting estimates and Judgernents - Revenue recognition)

Contract judgements

The nisk - The Group recognises revenue based on the stage of
completion of contracts by taking the proportion of costs incurred to the
balance sheet date compared to the estimated final costs of the contract at
completion and therefore relies on estimates in relation to the final
out-turn of costs on each contract Changes to these estirmates could give
nise to material variances in the amount of revenue and margin
recogrnised Cost contingencies may also be included in these estimates to
take account of specific nisks, or claims against the Group, anising within
each contract These contingencies are reviewed by the Groupon a
regularbasis throughout the contract life and adjusted where appropnate
Finally, variabions and claims are recognised on a contract by contract
basis where the Group believes the rights and obligations exist given the
progress of negonatons There 1s therefore a tugh degree of management
judgementin assessing the level of these contingencies recognising
variations and clarms, and estimarting the revenue recognised by the
Group with respect to the final cut-turn on coptracts

Ourresponse - We evaluated the controls designed and implemented by
the Group to provide assurance that the estmates used in assessing the
final out-turn of costs an each contract are appropriate We then selected
a sample of cantracts using a variety of guantitative and qualitative factors
to ensure that we assess and challenge the most significant and more
complex contract posimions Inthis area our audit procedures included,
amoeng others

* considering the financial performance of contracts against budget
and historicalirends and assessing the accuracy of the amounts
recognised in the financial statemenis,

> obtaining detailed position papers from the Group to support
estimates made, challenging these estimates with semior operational,
commercial and financial management and assessing whether or not
these estimates showed any evidence of management bias,

* assessing the recoverability of contract balances by way of
agreement ic third party certifications and confirmatons, and
comparing aganst the underlying books and records,

> completing a number of site visus across the UK, Middle Eastand
Canada, meeung local management and overseas auditors
physically cnspecting the stage of completion of individual projects
and identifying areas of complexity through observaton and
discussion with site personnel,

> challenging the Group’s judgement m respect of forecast contract
out-turn, quantum and allocanon of contingencies, seitlements and
the recoverability of contract balances with reference to our own
assessments, historical outcomes and industry norms,

> analysing correspendence and meeting minutes with customers
around variations and ¢laims, obtaining assessments of these from
the Group’s legal or techrucal experts, if applicable

> inspecung the contracis for key clauses, identfying relevant
coniractual mechamisms such as pain/gan” shares quidated
damages and success fees and assessing their impact on the
accuracy of the amounts recognised in the financial statements and

» assessing whether the amounts recognised in the financial
statements resulting from the estimates and assumptions apphed
represented a balanced view of the risks and opportunities across
the portfolio of contract pesitrons, and

> we also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
respect of these judgements

Other revenue judgements

The risk - The iming of revenue recognition from licence arrangements s
dependent on a number of criteria, including the estimated fair value of
any future revenue sireams These criteria state that revenue recognition
15 required to be consistent with the transfer of the risks and rewards to the
contract counterparty The Group’s estimate of the fair value of future
royalty streams s Judgemental and where this1s esumated as not
signifiicant then the deterrminable element of the sale income 1s recognised
immediately with contingent fuiure royalty revenue recognised when
earned lfthe far value of the future royalty stream 1s assessed as
signifscant this indicates that the risks and rewards of ownership have not
substantially transferred to the counterparty such that the determinable
element of revenue should be spread over an appropriate period Given
that the fair value assessments are based on a range of variables outside
of management’s control, this represents an area of judgernent

Qurresponse - Intransactions where there is a potential future royalty
stream we obtained and assessed the contraciual terms of the transaction
We also considered the Group’s assessment of the fair value attnbuted to
the fuiure royalty stream and challenged the assumptions appled with
reference to prevalling market data, including historical experience in
other territories




We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures for such
transactions in respect of the accounting policies adopted revenue
ncome recogrised in the penod and the key judgements and esumates
made by the Group in arriving at the conclusions

Valuation of goodwill (£1,449 7 million)

Refer 10 page 51 [Report of the Audi Commiitee), page 80 (Note 1
Significant accounting policies - Goodwill and other ntangible assets) and
pages 9210 93 (Note Il Intangible assets)

The risk - The Group’s balance sheetincludes goodwill principally arising
from historic acquistions inthe UK The nisk is that the aggregated book
value of the goodwill exceeds its recoverable amouni and therefore this
assetts impaired and should be written down invalue Due to the inherent
uncertanty involved in forecasting and discounting future cash flows,
which are the basis ¢f the assessment of recoverability, this 1s one of the
key judgemental areas for our audit Given the relative size of the goodul
in the Group balance sheet, relatively small changes in these assumptions
could give rise ro materal changes in the assessment of the carrying value
of goodwill

Qur response - The Group annually carries outan imparrment
assessment of goodwall using a value n use model which is based on
the net present value of the forecast earnings of the cash generaung unit
The value Inuse of each cash generaung unit ["CGU"} 1s calculated using
certain assumptions around discount rates, growth rates and cash

flow forecasts

Qur procedures inctuded, among others, assessing the key assumptions
applied by the Group in deterrmining the recoverable amounts of these
CGUs Inparticular, we ¢considered the consistency and appropriateness
of allocation of businesses 1nto CGUs and the underlying assumptions in
determining the cash flows and growth assumptions applied with
reference to historical forecasting accuracy, challenged the assumptions
used in the calculation of the discouns rates used by the Group, including
comparisons with external data sources and consideraton of the potennal
nsk of management bias, and performed our own sensitivity analysis,
including a reasonably prebable reduction sn assumed growth rates

and cash flows We also assessed whether the Group’s disclosures

(see Note 11) about the sensiwvity of the ouicome of the impairment
assessmentio changes in key assumptions appropriately reflected

the risks inherent in the valuaton of goodwill

Non-recurring operating and non-operating items {£44 9 milhion)
Refer to page 51 {(Report of the Audit Comrmuttee) and pages 87 and 88
(Note 4 Non recurring operating iterns and non operating tems)

The risk - The Group recognises adjusiments for non-recurring operaing
and non operating rtems to reconcile from operating profitunder EU-IFRS
to "underlying profit” Given the scrutiny of underlying profit by external
parties any adjustrnents remarm judgemental and are therefore subjectto
greater nsk Inthe current vear the Group has specifically recognised a net
£44 9 million in respect of non recurning operating and non operating
items 1n arrving at underlying profit

Our response - Inthis area our audit procedures included among others
obtaining a breakdown of costs recogrised inthe penod, agreeing
amounts back to available evidence, parucularly payrollrecords and
leasing documenration, and challenging the Group’s classificationin
respect of amounts separately disclosed as distinct from those which are
absorbed wathin operatng profit without separate disclosure We also
considered whether, (a) appropriate prominence 1s given in the Annual
Report to the EU IFRS financial information and related commentary
compared to the "underlying” inancial information and relased
commentary, {bl whether the EU-IFRS and “underlying” financial
information 1s reconciled wath sutficent prominence given to that
reconcihation, (c) whether the basis of the “underlying” financial
informanonis clearly and accurately described, and (d) whether the
“underlying” inancial information 1s not otherwise misleading in the form
and context in which it appears in the Annual Report

n
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3 Ourapphcation of materiality and an overview of the scope

of our audit

The materality for the financial statements as a whole was setat £13 0
milion This has been determined with reference to a benchmark of Group
profit betore taxation, which we consider to be one of the principal
constderations for members of the company in assessing financial
performance of the Group Materiality represents 8 5% of group profit
before taxation adjusted for the rationalisaron costs set out in Note 4
(Non-recurring operating tems and non operating tems) and It 8% of the
Group profit before taxation as disclosed on the face ot the income
statement

We agreed with the Audit Committee toreportto it separately each
correcied or uncorrected misstatement we identfied through our audit
with a value in excess of £9 7 million, other audit misstatemenis below
£9 7 milhon that we believe warranted separate reporting on qualitatve
grounds, and the aggregate of other corrected and uncorrected
misstaternents we identified through our audit with an individual value in
excess of £650,000

Audits for Group reporting purposes were performed by the Group audit
team in the United Kingdom and by component audit teams in Canada,
the United Arab Emirates, and Oman These audits covered over 94% of
total Group revenue, over 84% of Group profit before taxation, and over
89% of total Group assets

The audits undertaken for Group reporting purposes atthe key reporiing
components of the company were all performed to component matenality
levels These component materiahiy levels were set individually for each
component and ranged from £8 O rmilhion to £10 0 million

Detalled audit instructions were sent to all the auditors in these locations
These mstructions covered the significant audit areas that should be
covered by these audits (which included the relevant nisks of material
musstaternent detailed above) and set outthe information required to be
reporied back to the Group audit team The Group auditteam visited the
following locanons the United Kingdom Canada, the United Arab
Emirates, and Oman Telephone meetings were also held with the auditors
at these locations and the majonty of the other locations that were not
physically visited

4 Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act
2006 1s unmodified
In our opinion

> the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report o be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

> the informanon given inthe Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial staternents
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Independent auditor’s report to the

members of Carillion plc only

continued

5 We have nothing to report in respect of matters on which we are
required to report by exception

Under ISAs (UK and treland} we are required to report to you if, based on
the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have identified other
information in the annual report that contains a maiertal inconsistency with
either that knowledge or the financial statements, a matenial misstaternent
offact or that s otherwise misleading

In particufar, we are required to report 1o you if

> we have idenufied material inconsistencies beiween the knowledge
we acquired during our audit and the directors’ statement that they
consider that the annual report and finanaal statements taken as a
whole is far, balanced and understandable and provides the
informaton necessary for shareholdersto assess the Group's
performance, business mode! and strategy, or

> the Repori of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters commurucated by us to the audit commitiee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to reportto you if,
N our opirmon

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

> the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are notin agreement
with the accounting records and returns or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

> we have not received a% the information and explanations we require
for our audit

Under the Lisung Rules we are required 1o review

> the Direciors’ statemeni, set out on page 69, in relation to going
concern, and

> the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on page 45 relating
to the company’s compliance with the mine provisions of the 2010 UK
Corporate Governance Code specified for our review, and

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibihies

Scope of report and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement

{set out on page 69), the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true

and fair view A description of the scope of an audit of financial

staternents 1s provided on the Financial Reporung Council’s website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate This report is made solely to the
Company’s members as a body and 1s subject to important explanations
and disclaimers regarding our responsibilites, published on our website at
www kprng com/uk/audiscopeukco2013a which are incorporated into
thus report as if set outin full and should be read to provide an
understanding of the purpase ot this report, the work we have undertaken
and the basss of our opinions

el

Darren Turner

(Senor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Ple, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham

B4 6GH

5 March 2014
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Consolidated income staternent
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012¢

Note £m Em
Total revenue 4,0809 4,402 8
Less Share of jomntly controlied entives’ revenue (748 3) (736 6)
Group revenue 2 33326 3,666 2
Costof sales {2,984 6) (3,279 4)
Gross profit 3480 3868
Adminisirative expenses {268 2) (240 4)
Profit on disposal of Public Private Parinership equity investiments 446 132
Group operating profit 3 124 4 1596
Analysed between
Group operating profit before intangible amortisation and non recurring operating items 1878 1936
Intangible amorusanon'? 13 2) {314)
Non-recurring operating items® 4 (44 2) {26)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 2 265 343
Analysed between
Operating profit 410 520
Net inanaal expense {to1) {16 0)
Taxation (44) a7
Profit from operations 1509 1939
Analysed between
Profit from operatons before intangible amortisation and non recurring operating items 2143 2279
Intangible amortsation'? 019 2) {314)
Non recurring operaung items' 4 {44 2) {26)
Non-operating items 4 on (12
Net financial expense 5 (39 6) {279)
Analysed between
Financial income 77 153
Financial expense {47 3) {432)
Profit before taxation nos 1648
Analysed between
Profit before taxation, intangible amorusation, non recurring operating items and non-operatng iiems 1747 2000
Intangible amorusanon®? s 2 (314)
Nen-recurring operating items'” 4 (44 2) (28l
Non-operating liems 4 on a2
Taxation 7 (4 3) (99
Profit for the year 106 3 1549
Profit attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 100 2 148 8
Non-controlling interesis 61 61
Profit for the year 106 3 1549
Earnings per share 8
Basic 23 3p 34 6p
Diluted 23 2p 344p

{l] Restated on adopuon of the amendment 1 1AS 19 (see nate 34)
{2) Arnsing from business combinations
{3} Thisincludesntegraton and ranonalisaon costs and Eaga Parinerstup Trusts related charges {see note 4}
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012¢
£m £m £m £m
Profitfor the year 106 3 1549
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit habiliy (42 4 (587)
Taxation relating to stems that will not be reclassified (13) 84
(437) {50 3)
ttems that may be reclassified subsequently to profitor loss
Gain on hedge of net investment in foreign operations 33 15
Currency translation differences on foreign operations 05 5) (88
Movement in fair value of cash flow hedging dervatives {81 70
Reclassification of effective portion of cash flow hedging derivatives to profit 31 21
Increase in far value of available for sale assets - 49
Reclassification of fair value movements on dispesal of available for sale assets (15 6) -
Taxanon relanng to tems that may be reclassified 19 (0 4}
Share of recycled cash flow hedges within jointly controlled entines (net of taxation) 183 104
Share of change in fair value of effective cash flow hedges within jointly controited
entities (net of taxation) (21) 32}
az7 {0 6)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (56 4) {50 9)
Total comprehensive income for the year 499 1040
Attributable to
Equuty helders of the parent 44 2 979
Non controlling interests 57 61
499 1040

{1} Resiated onadopoon ol the amendment 10 IAS 19 [see note 341
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Equi Nan-
Share Share Translation Hedging  Fairvalue Merger  Retained shmholdc::‘ controlling Tota!
capital pramium reserve reserve reserve teserve  earnings funds interests equity
£m £m m £m £m £Em £m £m £m £m
Atl]anuary 2013 2151 22 {23 8) 215 158 4332 589 998 9 ne 10107
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - 100 2 100 2 61 106 3
Other comprehensive income
Net gain on hedge of netinvestrment
in foreign operations - - 33 - - - - 33 - 33
Currency translanon differences on
foreign operatons - - asmn - - - - asn (©4) (15 5)
Movementin {air value of cash flow
hedging dervatives - - - 61 - - - sn - (3]
Reclassification of effective poruon of
cash flow hedging derwvaunves to profit - - - 31 - - - n - 3
Reclassificanon of fair value movements
on disposal of avallable for sale assers - - - - (15 6} - - {15 6} - (15 6)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit habiity - - - - - - {42 4) (42 4) - (42 4)
Taxation - - 08 27 - - {13) 06 - 06
Share of recycled cash llow hedges within
jontly controlled entities {net of taxation) - - - 183 - - - 183 - 183
Share of change in fair value of effective cash
{low hedges within jointly controlled enuties
{net of taxation} - - - z1) - - - 2n - 21
Transfer between reserves (see note 24} - - - - - {18 6) 186 - - -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - (12 6) 159 {15 6) {18 6) 751 44 2 57 499
Transactions with owners
Contributions by and distributions
to owners
Acquisiion of own shares - - - - - - (22) 22 - 22
Equuity settled transactions (net of taxauon} - - - - - - 12 12 - 12
Cash settlement of vested equity settled
transactions - - - - - - (0 3) fo3) - (0 3)
Dividends pad - - - - - - (74 6) (74 6) 1) {7157)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - - {75 9) {75 9) (11 }] (7700
At 31 December 2013 2151 212 (36 4) (5 6] 02 414 6 3581 967 2 16 4 983 6
Atl)anuary 2012 2151 212 6N 237) 109 4646 3009 729 96 9825
Comprehensive income
Profu for the year® - - - - - - 148 8 148 8 &1 1549
Other comprehensive income
Net gain on hedge of netinvestment
in foreign operations - - 15 - - - - 15 - 15
Currency translation d fferences on
foreign operations - - e - - - - 88 - (38
Movement in fair value of cash flow
hedging derwvauves - - - 7n - - - 70 - )
Reclassificanon of effectve portuon of
cash flow hedging dervatives to profit - - - 2 - - - 21 - 21
Increase in fair value of available for
sale assets - - - - 49 - - 49 - 49
Remeasurement of net defined benefit hability™ - - - - - - {587 (587) - (587
Taxation™ - - 04 - - - 84 80 - 80
Share of recycled cash flow hedges within
fomntly controlled entities (net of taxation) - - - 104 - - - 104 - 104
Share ot change in farr value of effective
cash flow hedges within jointly controlled
entities (net of taxation) - - - 32 . - - 32 - 132
Transfer between reserves [see note 24) - - - - - (314) 314 - - -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - - {77 22 49 (314) 1299 979 61 1040
Transactions with owners
Contributions by and distributions
10 oOWners
Acquisition of own shares - - - - - - 30) 30 - 30
Equity settled transacuons (net of taxanon) - - - - - - 23 23 - 23
Cash settlement of vested equity settled
transactions - - - - - - {0 8) 08 - {0 8)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (70 4) (70 4) 82 (78 6)
Non-controlling interests acquired® - - - - - - - - 43 43
Total transactions with owners - B - - - - {719) M9 {39) {75 8)
At 31 December 2012 2151 22 (23 8) 121 5) 158 4332 3589 9989 na 10107
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013

n
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2013 20120
Note £m £fm

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 128 2 1258
Intangible assets 1 1,552 8 1,536 6
Retirement benefit assets 3 38 o7
Investments in jointly controlled entities 12 1520 176 4
Other investments 13 73 615
Deferred tax assets 14 126 123 8
Total non-current assets 1,956 7 2,024 8
Current assets
Inventories 15 48 6 553
Trade and other recevables 17 1,2123 115
Cash and cash equivalents 18 4137 6571
Dervative financial instruments 27 22 04
Current asset investments 18 24 25
Income tax receivable 40 108
Total current assets 1,683 2 18376
Total assets 3,639 9 3,8624
Current habilities
Borrowing 20 (22 5) (353)
DCervanve financial instruments 27 (13 2) 7n
Trade and other payables 21 {1,588 5) (1,614 6)
Provisions 22 {327) (270)
tncome tax payable 47 (38
Total current habilities {1,661 6) {I 687 8)
Non-current habilities
Borrowing 20 (606 4) {(7776)
Other payables 21 - 9n
Retrement benefithabiliues 31 (373 9) (3:17)
Deferred tax habilihes 14 (10 2} {16 3)
Provisions 22 {42) 92
Total non-current liabilities (994 7) 1,1639)
Total habilities (2,656 3) (2,8517)
Net assets 983 6 10107
Equity
Share capital 23 2151 2151
Share prermium 24 212 2i2
Translation reserve 24 (36 4) {23 8)
Hedging reserve 24 (5 6) {215
Fair value reserve 24 02 158
Merger reserve 24 414 6 4332
Retained earmings 24 3581 3589
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 9672 9989
Non-controlling interests 16 4 e
Total equity 983 6 10107

{1} Restated torthe retrospecnve adjustment to provisional amounts recognised on the acquisingn of the Bowuchier Group in 2012

The financial statements were approved ard of Directors on 5 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

Richard Adam FCA

Group Finance Director,
5 March 2014
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 20120
Note Em £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Group operating profit 124 4 1596
Depreciatian and amortisation 44 3 622
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 23 16
Profit on disposal of Public Private Partnership equity investments {44 6} 032}
Other non-cash movements (61} (55)
Non-recurnng operaung ltems 442 26
Operating prefit before changes in working capital 164 5 2073
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1R} 152
Increase in trade and other recewvables (123 8} (36 6)
Decrease intrade and other payables {40 6) (143 5)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations before penston deficit recovery payments
and rationalisation costs (10} 424
Deficit recovery payments to pension schemes (39 2} (30 2)
Rationalisation costs (22 0) (28 6)
Cashusedin operations (62 2) {16 4)
Financial income received n 158
Financial expense paid (309 {273)
Acguisition costs (10} 06
Taxation receipts 46 29
Net cash flows from operating activities (78 4} {25 6)
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of praperty, plant and equipment 09 27
Disposa!l of jointly controlled entity and other investments 30 1437 459
Diwidends recerved from jointly controlled ennities 182 136
Loan advance repayments recerved fremjointly controlled entities 29 B0
Disposal and closure of businesses 30 (0 3} (38)
Decrease In current assetinvestments 01 18
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 30 (20 3} (49)
Acquisition of intangible assets (65) 37
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (216) {14 6)
Acquisition of equity in and loan advances 1o jointly controlled enties 6"M (257)
Acquisition of other non-current asset investments 38 (30)
Net cash flows from investing activities 107 2 143
Cash flows from financing activities
{Repayment)/draw down of bank and other loans (M o} 2772
Repayment of finance lease habilities {16 7) {16 8)
Acquisition of own shares 22 (30)
Payment to employees in settlement of share options {03) ©8)
Dividends paid 1o equity holders of the parent (74 6) {70 4)
Dividends paid to non-contrelling interests {11 82
Net cash flows from financing activities {265 9) 178 0
{Decrease)/increase in net cash and cash equivalents 12371) 1667
Net cash and cash equivalents at 1 fanuary 652 2 4877
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on net cash and cash equivalents a7 (22)
Net cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 18 4104 652 2

[l Restated on adopuon of the amendment to 1AS 19 isee note 24)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

Carillion plc {the ‘Company’}is a company demiciled and incorporated
in the United Kingdom (UK) The consolidated financial statements

of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group’)

and the Group’s interest in jointly controlled entites

The consolidated financial statements were authonsed for issuance
on 5 March 2014

Statement of compfiance

The Group’s financial statements have been approved by the Directors
and prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU) The Company has
elected 10 prepare its finanoal statements in accordance with UK GAAP
These are presented on pages 114 1o 19

Basis of preparation

The following accountng policies have been apphed consisiently In
dealing with items which are considered matenal inrelaton io the
Group’s finanoal statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis based
on the assessment made by the Directors as described in the Operaung
and financial review on page 33

The financiat statements are presented in pounds sterling They are
prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets
and labilites are stated at their far vatue derivative financial
instruments, pension scheme assets, cash and cash equivalents and
financial instruments classiied as available for sale

The followwng standards and interpretatons have been adopted in 2013
as they are mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2013

* Amendment to International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1
‘Presentation of items of other comprehensive income’

> Amendment to International Accounting Standard (1AS) 19
Employee benefits’

* International Financial Reporung Standard (FRS) 13 “Fair value
measurement’

The amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of items of other comprehensive
Income’ increases the required level of disclosure within the statement
of comprehensive income The amendment requires terns within the
stalememnt of comprehensive iIncome to be analysed between items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and itemns that may
be reclassilied subsequently 1o profit or loss in accordance with the
respective IFRS to which the temrelates The amendment has been
applied retrospectively and hence the presentation of items in the
statement of comprehensive income has been restated to reflect the
change The amendment to lAS | has had no impact on profit, earnings
per share or net assets in the year ended 31 December 2013

The amendment to 1AS 19 "Employee benefits’ makes changes 1o the
recognition and measurement of the defined benefit pension expense
and termination benetts and disclosures relating to all employee
benefits The interest cost and expected return on scheme habilities
and assets used i the previous version of IAS 19 have been replaced
with a ‘net mierest’ amount which s calculated by applying a discour
rate to the net defined benefit obhigation This amendmenthasa
corresponding impact on remeasurement of net defined benedit hability
recognised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome with no overall
change to the net retrement benefit hability in the balance sheet
Furthermare, certain costs previously recorded as part of hinance
expenses have now been presented within administrative expenses
Comparative informaton has been restated for the effect of the
retrospective application of the amendment to IAS 19 as disclosed
innote 34

IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ establishes a single framework for
measuring far value thats required by other standards The standard
applies io both finanaal and non-finanaal items measured at fair value
The standard defines fair value on the basis of an "exit price’ and uses
a fairvalue hierarchy’, which resulis in a market-based, rather than
entity specific measurement The standard will impactupon the
measurement of fair value for certain assets and habiliues as well as
the associated disclosures The adoption of this standard has had no
material impact on profit, earrings per share or net assets in the year
ended 31 December 2013

The following standards and interpretations, which were not effective
as at 31 December 2013 and have not been early adopied by the Group,
will be adopted In future accounting periods

> Internationat Financial Reporting Standard {IFRS) 9 Financial
instruments'™

> International Finanaial Reporting Standard {IFRS) 10 Consolidated
financial statements”?

?» Internationat Financial Reporting Standard {IFRS) 11 "Joint
arrangements™?

> International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 12 Disclosure of
interests in other entines’™

None of ihe standards above are expecied to have a matenal impact
on the Group

Basts of consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

The conselidated financial staterments comprise the financial statements
of the Company and subsidiaries controlied by the Company drawn up
to 31 December 2013 Control exists when the Group has direct or
indireci power to govern the inancial and operating policies of an enuity
so as to obtain economuc benehits from its activities Subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control transfers to the Group unti the date that controf ceases The
financial statements for the vast majonty of subsidiaries used in the
preparation of the consohdated financial statements are prepared for
the same reporting year as the Company

The purchase method s used to account for the acquisiion of subsidiaries

(b} Jownt ventures

A joint venture Is a contraciual arrangement whereby the Group
undertakes an economic aciivity that s subject to joint contrel with third
parties The Group’s interests in jointly controlled eniities are accounted
tor using the equity method Under this method, the Group’s share of
the profits less losses of jaintly controlled entities 1s included in the
consohdated income statement and its Interests in their net assets s
included in investments in the consolidated balance sheet Where the
share of losses exceeds the interests inthe entity, the carrying amount
1s reduced to nil and recognition of further losses s discontnued The
Group’s interest in the entity 1s the carrying amount of the invesiment
together with any long-term interestthat in substance form part ofthe
net tnvestment in the entity

Financial statements of jointly controlled enuties are prepared for the
same reporung periods as the Greup except for Modern Housing
Solutions {Prime} Limited which has a 31March year end lts resulis are
included in the Group accounts based on addivonal financial statements
for the 12 months to 31 December 2013

Where a Group company 1s parly to a jointly controlled operation that
company accounts for the assets it controls, the habiliies and expenses
itincurs and its share of the income Such arrangements are reported in
the consoldated financgial statements on the same basis

(1} Notyerendorsed by the EU
{2} Ettectve datelfanuary 2014
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1 Sigmficant accounting pelicies (conunued)

Goodwll and other intangible assets

Goodwill arising on acquissians that have occurred since 1)anuary
2004 represents the difference between the fair value of the cost of
acquisiiton and the fair value of the identifiable assets, habihties and
conungent habiliies of an acquired entity For acquisiions completed
before 1]anuary 2010 atirtbutable costs of the acquisiion formed part
of goodwill For acquisitions completed after 1 January 2010, attnbutable
costs of acquisitton are expensed in the iIncome statement in the period
incurred Inrespect of acquisitions prior 1o 1 fanuary 2004, goodwillis
included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents the amount
recorded under previous Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuice

Positive goodwillis recognised as an asset in the consolidated balance
sheet and s subject to an annual impairment review Goodwill arising
on the acquisition of subsidiaries s recognised separately as an
intangible assetin the consoldated balance sheet Goodwill arising

on the acquisition of jointly controlled entities 1s included within the
carrying value of the invesiment Negative goodwll is recogmsed in
the income statement iImmediately

Otherintangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and imparrment losses Amortisation 1s based on the useful economic
hves of the assets concerned, which are prnincipally as follows

Computer software and hcences
> straight-line over three o five years

Customer contracts and lists

> Mowlem censumptien of economic benefits over 35 years

> Alfred McAlpine consumption of economic benefits over 12 years

* Vanbots Group consumption of economic benefits over five years

> Carillion Energy Services consumption of economic benefits over
four years

> John Laing Integrated Services consumption of economic benefis
over 25 years

For the purposes of impairrment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each
ol the Group’s cash-generating units expected 1o benefit from the
synergies of the combinauon Cash-generating units to which gooduill
has been allocated are tested for imparrment annually or more
frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be imparred
if the recoverable amount of the cash-generaung unit s less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss 1s allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then 10 other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit Animpairment loss recogrised for
goodwillis not reversed in a subsequent pertod

Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe are not subject to amorusauon
and are tested for impawrment at each balance sheet date Assets
subjectto depreciatton and amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable Animparrmentioss isrecogmsedinthe
ncome statement based on the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value less cosis to sell and value in use

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounied 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money and
the nsks specific to the asset

Other non-current asset investments

Other non-current asset investments are classified as avadable for sale
financial assets and are recognised at fair value Changes in fair value in
the year are recognised direcily inthe statlement of comprehensive
income Dividend income from invesiments is recognised in the income
statement when the right to receive payment s established

Construction contracts

When the outceme of a construcuon contract can be estimated rehably,
contract revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the degree
of completion of each contract, as measured by the proportion of total
costs at the balance sheet date to the esumated 1otal cost of the coniract

Insurance claims incentive payments, and varations arising from
construction contracts are included where they have been agreed with
the client

When the cutcome of a construction contract cannot be esumated
rehably, contract revenue i1s recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred where itis probable those costs will be recoverable

The principal estimation techmique used by the Group In atiributing
profiton contracts to a parucular period is the preparation of forecasts
on a contract by contract basis These focus on revenues and costs to
complete and enable an assessment 1o be made of the final our i of
each coniract Consistent contract review procedures are in place in
respect of contract forecasting

When itis probable that to1al contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised immediately Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred

Where costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses
exceed progress billings, the balance 1s shown as due from customers
on construction contracts within trade and other receivables Where
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recogrised losses, the balance 1s shown as due to customers on
construciion contracts within trade and other payables

Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred until the Group 1s
appointed preferred bidder or tormal notfication of the intention to
appointis received Prowvided the contract is expected 10 generate
suffhicient net cashiinflows 1o enable recovery and the award of the
conltract Is probable, pre contract costs incurred post the appointment
as preferred bidder are included in amounts owed by customers on
construction contracls

Where pre contract bid costs are rembursed at financial close, the
proceeds are ininally applied against the asset included in amounts
owed by customers on construction contracts Any excess recoveries
are carried forward as deferred income and released to profii over the
peried of the contract




1 Sigmficant accounting policies {continued}

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding
sales-related taxation, for services supplied to external customers It
also includes the Group’s proporuon of work carred out under jontly
controlled operateons during the year Revenue from the Group's
principal business streams i1s recognised on the following basis

> Revenue from service coniracls is recognised by reference to
services perlormed to date as a percentage of total services to be
performed

> Revenue from construction contracts s recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounung policy on construction contracts

> Revenue from the delivery of carbon-saving measures to utility
companies and other related activities 1s recognised at the date
of sale, exceptif services are to be provided over future pertods,
where the income 1s deferred and recogrised over the relevant
service period

> Revenue from the installaion of energy efficiency measures
such as central heating and other renewable technologies is
recognised by reference to the number of energy efficiency
measures instalted

» Revenue from the sale of a licence 1s recognised immediately where
an agreement s 1n substance, an outright sale For an outrightsale
to have occurred, the Group must have a signed non cancellable
contract have provided the licensee with the rights to freely exploit
its contractual rights have no significant ongoing delivery
oblgations to perform and have recerved a fee which is not
expecied o be subject to matenial adjustmeni based on future
actuvity Where there is an element of contingent revenue to such an
agreement, an assessment of the estimated fair value of this future
revenue is considered If this fair value 1s mimmal then the risks and
rewards of the agreement are considered to have been transferred
In full and therefore the determinable sale iIncome 1s recognised as
revenue immediately with any contingentrevenue recogrused as it
15 earned Sheould the contingent revenue be assessed as significant,
the sale income 1s recognised as revenue cver a period consistent
withthe life of the technology or other appropnate measure

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation 1s based on historical cost less the estimated restdual
valte, and the estimated economi¢ life of the assets concerned
Freehold land 1s not depreciated Property plant and equipmentis
depreciated in equal annual instalments over the period of ther
esttmated economic lives, which are principally as follows

Freehold buildings
Leasehold improvements
Plant, machinery and vehicles

40-50 years
Period of lease
Three-10 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the term of the lease or the expected useful life of the assets

Leasing
Operating lease rental charges are charged to the income statement an
astraight-ine basis over the life of each lease

Assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and
equipment at the lower of fair value at the date of acquisiion or present
value of the mirimum lease paymenis The capiial element of
outstanding finance leases 1s includedin knancial habilties The hnance
cost elemeni of rentals 1s charged 10 the income statement at a constant
periodic rate of charge on the outstanding obliganons

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw matenals and where apphicable, directlabour
costs and those overheads that have been tncurred in bringing the
inveniones to their iocaton and condition at balance sheet date
lnventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost s calculated using either the weighted average method or the
first-in first cut method
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Provision 1s made for obsolete slow moving or defecnive iems
where appropnate

Current assetinvestments
Current assetinvestments include cash balances held as deposit for
penods greater than three months and certain restricted cash balances

These balances have been excluded from cash in the Group’s batance
sheet and cash flow statement

Taxation

Income tax compnises current and deferred tax Income taxis
recognised in the income statlement except to the extent thai i relates
10 items recogmised directly in equity, m which case it ts recogmised
N equity

Current tax s the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet lability method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities for inancial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes The amouni of deferred iax provided is
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and habilines using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that 1t 1s probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be
utihsed Deferred tax assets are reduced 1o the extent thatit s no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Foreign currencies

In individual enuties, transactions denomunated i foreign currencies
are translated into the appropriate funcuianal currency and recorded
using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transacuon

On consolidation the balance sheets of overseas enulres are translated
into sterling at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date
Income statements and cash flows of overseas entities are translated
into sterling at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates at the
date of the transaction Gains or losses arising from the consolidation
of overseas enlties are recognised in the translanon reserve

Net invesiment hedging of overseas operations 1s achieved through
borrowings denominated inthe relevant foreign currencies Gains and
losses anising from the efiective portion of the hedges are recognised
in equity and ineffective portions are recognised immediately inthe
income statement

Employee benefits

(a) Reurement benetit obligattons

For defined contribution pension schemes operated by the Group,
amounts payable are charged to the income statement as they fall due

For defined benefit pension schemes, the 1AS 19 cost of providing
benefits 1s calculated annually by independent acluanes using the
defined accrued benefits method for schemes closed to future accrual
and the projected unit credit methed for ongoing schemes The charge
to the Income statement reflects the current service cost of such
obligations, and where applicable pastservice costs and s included
withun administrative expenses

The net interest expense in the income statement 1s calculated by
applying a discount rate to the net defined benefii obliganon Ceriain
cosis associated with the adminmistranon of the Group’s defined benefit
pensions schemes are included within administrative expenses

The reurement benefit obligation recogmsed m the balance sheet
represents the excess of the present value of the scheme liabilites
over the fair value of scheme assets When the calculation results
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Notes to the consolidated fiinancial statements

continued

1 Significant accounting pehicies (conunued)

Differences between the actual and expected returns on assets and
experience gams and losses ansing on scheme habihties during the
year, together with differences ansing from changes 10 assumpuions and
movements 1n minimum funding requirements are recognised in the
staterment of comprehensive income

The Group’s contributions to the scheme are paid in accordance with
the scheme rules and the recommendations of the actuary

{b) Other post-retirement benefit obhgauons

Certain Group companies provide post-reirement healthcare benefits
to their employees The expected costs of providing these benefus
are accrued over the period of employment and are calculated by
independent actuaries based on the present value of the expecied
ltabtlity

{c) Share-based payments

Members of the Group’s senior management team are entitled 10
parucipate in the Leadership Equity Award Plan (LEAP) and UK
employees are able to participate in the Sharesave scheme Under the
terms of the Group’s bonus arrangements, Executive Directors and
certain senior employees receive a proportien of their bonus in shares,
which are deferred for a period of up 10 three years

The fair value cfthe LEAP, Sharesave and deferred bonus arrangements
atthe date of grant are esumated using the Black-Schaoles pricing model
The fair value determined at grant date is expensed on a straight line
basis over the vestng period, based on an estimate of the number of
shares that will eventually vest and taking into account service and

non market conditions

The Group also operates a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) under which
qualifying Carilhon Energy Services partners may receive free shares
The fair value of the free shares are recognised as an expense in the
income statement over the vesting period of the shares

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised where the Group canstructs qualifying
assets All other borrowing costs are written off to the incore staiement
as incurred

Borrowing costs incurred by entiies relatng to the constructian of
assets in Public Private Partnership projects are capitalised unul the
relevant assets are brought nto operatonal use

Borrowing costs are charged to the income staiement ustng the
effective interest method

Share capital
The ordinary share capital of the Company 1s recorded at the proceeds
received net of directly attrnbutable incremental issue costs

Consideration paid for shares in the Company held by the Employee
Share Ownership Plan (ESOP} Trust are deducted from the retained
earnings reserve Where such shares subsequenily vestin the
employees under the terms of the Group’s share opuon schemes
or are sold, any consideration received 15 inciuded in the retained
earnlngs reserve

Provisions

A provision s recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a
present legal or construcuve obligaton as a result of a past event, and
where 1t s probable that an outflow will be required 1o settle the
cbligation

Provisions tor restructuring are recognised when the Group has an
approved restructunng plan that has either commenced er been
announced publicly Future operanng costs are not provided for

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument The prnincipal financial
assets and habilities of the Group are as follows

(a} Other non-current investments

Other non current investments relate 1o unquoted equity interests that
are not designated on inial recognition as at far value through the
mncome statement Instead, they are recognised at farr value with
movements 1n fair value recognised in the fair value reserve

{b) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are inmally recogrised at fair value and then are
stated at amorused cost

{c) Cash and cash equivalems

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at amortised
cost For the purpeses of the cash flow statement cash and cash
equivalenis comprise cash at bank and in hand, including bank deposits
with original maturines of three months or less

Bank overdrafts are also included as they are an iniegral part of the
Group’s cash management

{d) Current asset investments
Current asset Investments are carrred in the balance sheet at amortised
cost

(e} Trade payables
Trade payables are imally recogrised at fair value and then are stated
atamortsed cost

(f) Bank and other borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts and other loans are
recognised imitially at amortised cost less attributable transachion
costs All borrowings are subsequently stated at amarused cast with
the difference between inmal net proceeds and redempuion value
recognised in the income statement over the period to redemption

(g) Derivative financial instruments

Derwvatives are inially recognised at fair value on the date the contract
1s entered into and subsequently remeasured in future periods at their
far value The method of recognising the resulting change n fair value
1s dependent on whether the derwative s destgnated as a hedging
instrument

A number of the Group’s PPP jointly controlled entrties have entered
Into interest rate derivatives as a means of hedging interest rate risk
The effective part of the change in fair value of these derivatives s
recognised directly in equity Any ineffecuve porton is recognised
immediately in the income statement Amounts accumulated in equity
are recycled to the mcome statementn the peniods when the hedged
items will affect profit or loss The fair value of interest rate swaps is the
estimated amountthat the Group would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the balance sheet date

The Group also enters into forward contracts in order to hedge agamst

small and infrequent transactional foretgn currency exposures In cases
where these derivative instrumenis are sigruficant, hedge accounting is

applied as described above

Where hedge accounung s not applied, movements in fair value are
recognised in the income statement Farr values are based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date

Net borrowing
Net borrowing comprises cash and cash equivalenis together with bank
overdrafts and loans, finance leases and other loans
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2 Segmental reporting

Segmentinformanon 1s presenied in respect of the Group's strategic operatng segments The operaiing segment reporiing format reflecis the
differing economic characteristics and nature of the services provided by the Group and s the basis on which strategic operatng decisions are
made by the Group Chief Executive, who is the Group s chief operating deciston maker

Inter-segment pricing 1s determined on an arm’s length basis Segment results include nems directly autributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis, excep! finance items and income tax

Operating segments
The Group Is compnised of the following mamn operaung segments

Support services
Inthis segment we report the results, including licensing, of our faciities management, facilities services, energy services, rgad maintenance
rail services, utiliies services and consultancy businesses in the UK, Canada and the Middile East

Public Private Partnership projects
In this segment we report the equity rewurns on our Investing activities in Pubkic Private Partnership projects for Government butldings and
infrasiructure, mainly in the defence, health, education transport and secure accommodation sectors

Middle East construction services
In this segment we report the results of our building and cwil engineertng activiies in the Middle East and North Afnca

Construction services (excluding the Middle East)
In this segment we report the results of our UK building, civil engineering and developments businesses and our construction activities in Canada

Segmental revenue and profit

2013 20120
Operating Operaung
profit before profit before
Intangible intangible
amortisationand amortsabon and
non-recurring non recurring
Revenue  operating items Revanue operating items
£m Em £m £m
Support services'?
Group 2,029 4 928 21314 1000
Share of jointly controlled entities 275 252 2283 209
2,3009 neo 2,3597 1209
Inter segment 850 - 373 -
Total 2,3859 180 2,4470 1209
Public Private Partnership projects
Group 23 450 13 173
Share of jointly controlled entities 2346 12 4 286 4 16 5
2369 584 2877 338
Inter-segment - - - -
Total 2369 584 2877 338
Middle East construction services
Group 2503 154 2614 138
Share of jointly controlled entities 2332 38 2122 152
4835 152 4736 290
Inier-segment - - - -
Total 4835 192 4736 290
Construction services {excluding the Middle East}
Group 1,050 6 4438 1,2721 730
Share of jointly conirolled enuties 90 (0 4) 97 {0 6}
1,059 6 44 4 1,2818 724
Inter segment 21 - 32 -
Total 1,0617 44 4 1,285 0 724
Group eliminations and unallocated items (87 1) m 2} (905} 10 5)
Consolidated
Group 3,3326 1878 36662 193 6
Share of joinily controlled entitgs 7483 410 7366 520
Total 4,080 9 228 8 4,402 8 2456
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

2 segmental reporting (continued)
Segmental revenue and profit {contnued)
Reconailation of operating segment results 1o reported results

2013 20127
im £m
Group and share of jointly controlled entities’ operating profit before intangible amorusation
and non-recurring operating items 2288 2456
Net financial expense
- Group (39 6) (279
- Share of jointly controlled entues (11 16 0)
Share of jointly controlled entities” taxation 44 {17
Underlying profit before taxation 1747 2000
tntangible amorusation ansing from business combinations (19 2) {314}
Non recurring operating items (44 2) (26)
Non operaung items fon nal
Profit before taxation noe 1648
Taxation (4 3) {39)
Prohit for the year 1063 1549
{ll  Resiated on adopuen of the amendment 1o 1A5 19 (see note 34}
Intangible amortisation, non recurring operating items and non-operanng items arse 1n the following segments
2013 2012
Map-recurrtng Non recurnng
Intangible operating  Nen-operating Intangible aperating  Non operatng
amortisation items items amortisaion ems ems
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Support services arn (44 2) o7 (28 4) (26) {12}
Construction services {excluding the Middle East} 21 - - (30) - -
Total {19 2} (44 2} 07 (314) (26) (12)
Depreciation, amorusaton and capital expenditure arise in the followang segments 201 "oz
Depreciation and Capital Depreciationand Capital
amor d amaoriisation expenditure
£m Em £m fm
Support services (277 28 2) (407 13 6)
Middle East consiruction services (20} 13 2o an
Construction services {excluding the Middte East) 27} (14) 40) 035
Unallocated Group itemns {n 9l 2 9) (15 5) (121)
Total (44 3) {43 8) 62 2) (27 3)




2 Segmental reporting (continued)
Segmental net assets

85
Canrtllion ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013

2013 20120
Netoperating Net operating
Operating Operating assets/ Operating Operaung assets/
assets liabliimes (llabifitles} assets habdines iabiliies)
Em Em £m £m Em £m
Support services
Imangible assetst? 11,2707 - 12707 1,2578 - 1,2578
Operating assets 6426 - 6426 628 2 - 628 2
Investments ne - ns 98 - 98
Total operating asseis 1,9251 - 1,9251 1,895 8 - 18958
Total operating liabiliies - 6517) 6517) - (586 1) (5861
Net operating assets/{liabilities) 1,9251 {6517} 1,273 4 1,895 8 (586 1) 1,3097
Public Private Partnership projects
Operaling assets 26 - 26 68 - 68
Investments 360 - 360 Nn21 - h2i
Total operating assets 386 - 386 nge - N8 9
Total operating Iiabilines - (12 8) {12 8) - (178 (738}
Net operating assets/(habilities) 386 {12 8) 258 ng g (178) 1011
Middle East construction services
Operating assets 2158 - 275 2634 - 2634
Investments 76 2 - 76 2 730 - 730
Total operating assets 3520 - 3520 3364 - 3364
Total operating habilties - (256 8) (256 8} - (260 6) (260 6)
Net operating assets/(habilities) 3520 (256 B) 95 2 336 4 (260 6) 758
Construction services {excluding the Middle East)
Intangible assets* 258 4 - 258 4 2612 - 2612
Operaling assets 406 8 - 4068 3635 - 3635
Investments 353 - 353 430 - 430
Total cperating assets 7005 - 7005 6677 - 6677
Total operating liabilities - {652 8) (652 8) - {798 2) (798 2)
Net operating assets/{liabilities) 7005 {652 8) 477 6677 (798 2} (130 5)
Consolidated before Group items
Iniangible assets'? 1,5291 - 1,5291 15190 - 1,519 0
Operating assets 1,3278 - 1,3278 1,2619 - 12619
nvestments 1593 - 159 3 2379 - 2379
Total operating assets 3,016 2 - 3,016 2 3088 - 30188
Total operatng habilities - {1,574 1) {1,5741) - {1,6627) {1,662 7)
Net operating assets/(liabihities) before Group items 3,016 2 (1,574 1) 1,4421 3088 {1,6627) 1,3561
Group items
Deferred tax assets/(habilines) nze6 {10 2) 102 4 1238 {16 3) 1075
Net cash/{borrowing) 4137 {628 9} (215 2) 6571 (8129 (155 8)
Retrement benefits (gross of taxation) 38 {37139 (3701} o7 (3517) (35100
Income tax 40 (47} (o7 108 (38) 70
QOther 896 {64 5} 251 512 (43 469
Net assets/(habilities) 3,6399 (2,656 3} 983 6 3,862 4 (28517) 10107

{1} Restated for the retrospeciive adjustment to provisional amounts recogrised on the acquisition of the Bouchier Group in 2012

{2} Ansing frombusiness combinatens
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

2 Segmental reporting {continued)
Geographic information - by origin

2013 020

£m £m
United Kingdom
Total revenue from external customers 28449 3,247%
Less share of jointly controlled entiies’ revenue (376 N {394 6}
Group revenue from external customers 2,468 2 28533
Non-current assets 1,586 0 15867
Middle East and North Africa
Total revenue from external customers 5316 4871
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (250 9) (2257)
Group revenue from external customers 2807 2614
Non-current assets 805 781
Canada
Total revenue from external customers 6711 6509
Less share of jomily controlled entiies’ revenue (120 7) M6 3)
Group revenue from external customers 550 4 5346
Non-current assets 166 5 1740
Rest of the World
Total revenue from external customers 333 169
Less share of jointly controlled entizies’ revenue - -
Group revenue from external customers 333 169
Non-current assets - -
Conschdated
Total revenue from external customers 40809 44028
Less share of jointly controlled entities’ revenue (748 3) {736 6)
Group revenue from external customers 3,3326 3,666 2
Non-current assets
Total of geographtc analysis above 1,833 0 1,838 8
Retirement benefit assets 38 07
Other investments 73 615
Deferred tax assets n2e6 1238
Total non-current assets 1,956 7 20248
Revenue from the Group’s major customer, the UK Government, 1s shown below 2013 2012

£im £m
Suppaort services 8425 9241
Public Private Partnership projects 1213 175 4
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 706 4 9901

1,670 2 2,0896

1) Restated lor the retraspective adjustment to provisional amounts recogrised on the acquisition of the Bouchier Graup in 2012




87
Carillion ple Annual Report and Accounts 2013

3 Group operating profit

2013 2012
£m £m

Group operating profithas been arrived at after charging/{crediting)
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 215 271
Amortisation of Intangible assets 228 351
Impairment of trade receivables 02 13
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 23 16
Operating lease charges 13 42
Foreign exchange losses 06 06
Gain on denvative financial asseis and habiives held for irading {18} {13)
Auduors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company's audiior
- the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 03 03
- the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 09 09
Total audit fees 12 12
- audut related assurance services 01 01
- taxanon complance services 02 03
- other assurance services - 01
Total non audi fees 03 05

Carillion’s share of the fees paid to KPMG Audit Plc and its assoaiates by Group jointly controlled entiues in respect of audit services amounted
o £Q 2 milkon (2012 £0 2 mullion)

4 Non-recurring operating items and non-operating items
Non-recurring operating items

2013 2012
£m Em
Rationalisation of energy business (42 9) -
Eaga Partnership Trusts related charges an {2 6]
Costs of ntegration of John Laing Integrated Services (@ 5) -
{44 5) (26
Eaga Partnership Trusts National Insurance provision 142 -
Performance obligations on old energy schemes (13 9) -
03 -
Total {44 2) (26

Non recurring operating wems amounted to £44 2 millien (2012 £2 6 mdlion) and comprised the following

Rauonalisauon costs of £42 9 million {2012 Nil) relate to the restructuring of Carillion’s energy business and include redundancy, restructuring and
other costs relating 1o the Group's commiments under energy efficiency programmes, including the reassessment of the carrying value of assets
These costs arose as aresult of the Group’s decision to review the operational siructure of Canllion’s energy business in order to ensure that its
business model s better aligned to the current market conditions which are being affected by the slow start 1o the Green Deal and Energy Company
Obhgation market as described in the Strategy review on page 9 and the Performance and financal review on page 26

Eaga Partnership Trusts {EPT} related charges of £11 million (2012 £2 6 million] relate to a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) under which certain employees
are able to receive free shares ai the discretion of the EPT The cost of these shares is borne by the EPT through the waver of its entitlement to
dividends from its holding of Carillion ple shares However, under International Financial Reparting Standard 2 *Share-based payments’ the Group
is required to recogruse a non-cash charge in its income statement in relaion to awards made under the SIP Given that the Group does not control
the tring and quantum of any awards made under the SIP and i1 view of the tact that the cost of these awards 1sborne by the EPT, chargesin
relation to the awards are classified as non recurning operaung items

The acquisiion of John Lamg Integrated Services {JLIS) was completed on 18 October 2013 and £0 5 millien (2012 Ml of costs have been incurred
inintegratng the business into the Group

In addition, we have amended two prowvisions relating to obligations entered into prior to the Group’s acquisiion of Carillion Energy Services

in 2011 Following clarficanon of the tax treatment of certam potennal distributions to beneficiartes by the EPT, andin particular those beneficiartes who
are no longer employed by the Group, the prowision has been reduced by £14 2 million during the year The impact of this release was however parually
offsei by a separate £13 9 million increase nhabihues on onerous contracts associated withthe UK Government’s old energy efficiency programmes

Anincome 1ax credit of £9 2 mullion {2012 £0 6 milhon), relating to the above itlems has been included within taxation in the income statement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

4 Non-recurring operating items and non-operating items (continued)
Non-operating items

Non-operaung items of £0 7 million relate 1o adviser costs incurred on the acquisition of LIS Non operating costs in 2012 of £1 2 million consisted of
£0 9 million relanng to the Bouciwer Group acquisiion and non-care business closure costs of £0 3 milhon There 1s no income tax associated with

these costs {2012 £0 3 million)

5 Financialinceme and expense

2013 0120
Em £m
Financial iIncoime
Bank interest receivable 06 04
Qther interest receivable 71 149
77 153
Financial expense
interesi payable on bank loans and overdrafis (9 5) {115
Otherinterest payable and similar charges (227 {176}
Netinierest expense on defined bepeht pension obligations {151) (13 8}
(47 3} 43 2)
Net financial expense {39 6} {279)

Other interest payable and similar charges include Private Placement financing interest of £14 3 million (2012 £6 0 mullion), finance lease

charges of £1 2million (2012 £2 0 milbon} and the discount unwind associated with onerous lease provisions of £1 4 million {2012 £21 million;

No borrowing costs have been capnalised in either of the above years

6 Payrol! costs and employee numbers

2013 2002¢
Em £m
Wages and salanes 6576 670 8
Social security costs 578 615
Pension costs 344 304
Equity settled transactions {Group funded charges) 01 (O3}
Equity settled transactons (Eaga Partnership Trusts related charges) H 26
7510 7650

Pension costs represent amounts in respect of the Group’s UK and overseas schemes as descrnbed in note 31 and includes a charge of £23 2 million

{2012 £20 0 million) in respect of defined contribution schemes

Detalled mformation concerning Directors’ remuneration, including their pension benefits and long-term incentive arrangements, 1s set outin the

Remuneration Report on pages 53 to 68

The average number of employees during each year, including Directors was

2013 2012

Number Number

Support services 16,057 17,028
Public Private Partnership projects 24 26
Middle East construction services 6,614 6 551
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) 2,708 3193
Corporate centre 512 628
25,915 27,426

UK 16,149 17616
Overseas 9,766 9,810
25,915 27,426

In addiuon to the above there are 12,909 staff (2012 14,007) employed within the Group’s jointly controlled entiies located in the Middle East

{l} Restated on adopucn of the amendment 1o 1AS 19 isee nate 34}
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Recognisedn the income statement
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2013 2012%
£m £m
Current tax {credit)/expense
Currentyear
-UK (5 5) (34
- Qverseas 45 46
Adsustmenis for prior years
- UK 34 {4 3)
- Qverseas 06 (0 8)
Total current tax 30 (39)
Deferred tax {credit)/expense
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 54 91
Change of rate 40 V7
Adjustments for prior years |sn 30
Total deferred tax 13 138
Total Income tax expense in the income statement 43 99
Reconcihiation of effective tax rate
2013 2027
Em Em
Profit before tax 1nos6 1648
Tax of joimly controlled entiies 44 17
15 0 166 5
Income tax at UK standard corporation tax rate of 23 25% (2012 24 50%) 267 408
Permanent differences o1 06
Unrelieved trade losses 13 05
Capual terns not taxable/not deductible s o (32
Eftect of utilsation of brought forward tax losses zn (9 6}
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (3n 14 6}
Change in rate 40 17
Over provided in prior years 41 {4 6)
Deferred tax relating to prior year losses 11 (o o)
Total tax {including tax of jointly conirolled entities) 87 ne6
Tax of jointly controlled enuties {4 4) 17
Group INncome tax expense 43 59

Reduciions in the UK corporation tax rate io 21% (effeciive from 1 April 2014) and 20% (effectuive from 1 April 2015} were both substantively enacted
on 2 July 2013 Withinthe above deferred tax charge of £1 3 milhion is a charge of £4 0 mullion with respect to these changes in rate

Following the introduction of the foreign profits exemption in 2009, the profits earned in low tax junisdicions no longer require a provision for

axable temporary differences, the impact of which 1s included within ‘Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions’

The release of the over-provision relating to prior years of £4 | milhon {2012 £4 6 million) includes an amount of £11 milhon which 1s attributable
to the agreement of certain issues with the tax authorities Tax of jointly controlled entimes of £4 4 million 1n 2013 (2012 £17 milhon) includes a

£0 1 millien credit (2012 £2 5 mullion) arising from a review of the naiure of tax 1ssues in certain entines

Tax {asseti/llability recognised either in the statement of changes in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

2013 2002*
£m £m
Deferred tax on actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 13 (84)
Deferred tax on cash flow hedging dervatives 27 -
Current tax on foreign exchange translation adjusiments o 04
Tax recogrused in staiement oi comprehensive iIncome o6 (8 0}
Tax drrectly recognised in equity
- Current tax on equity settled transactons - (01
- Deferred tax on equity seitled transactions - 01
Total tax recognised in equity {0 6) 80}

Deferred tax on actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes of £1 3 milhon 1n 2013 includes a £10 8 millon charge in respect of the change

Intax rate to 20 per cent as substanuvely enacted on 2 July 2013

() Resiated on adoption of the amendment 10 1AS 19 (see note 34)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

8 Earnings pershare
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of earrings per share for the year ended 3t December 2013 is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent of
£100 2 million {2012 £148 8 million) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue of 430 1 million {2012 4301 milhien), calculated

as follows

In milhons of shares 2013 2012

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 43013 4303

Effect of own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Plan and Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust (0 2) {02)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 4301 4301

{b) Underlying performance

A recanciliation of profit before taxauon and basic earmngs per share, as reported in the income statement, to underlying protit before taxation and
earnmgs per share 1s set out below The adjustments made in arriving at the underlying performance measures are made to illustrate the impact of
the amortisation of iIntangible assets arsing from business combinations, non recurring operatng nems and non-operanng stems

2013 2012
Profit before tax Tax  Proftbeforezax Tax
£m £m £m Im
Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation as reported in the iIncome statement nos6 413 1648 9¢
Amorusanon of intangible assets ansing from busmess combinations 192 59 314 93
Non-recurnng operating items 442 92 26 06
Non-operating items 07 - 12 03
Underlying profit before taxation 1747 19 4 2000 201
Underlying taxation {19 4) (201)
Underlying profit attributable to non controlling interests (61) 61)
Underlying profit attributable to shareholders 149 2 1738
2013 20120
Pence Pence
per share per share
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share as reported in the income statement 233 346
Amortisation of intangible assets anising from business combinations 3 51
Non-recurring operatng items g1 05
Non-operating items 02 02
Underlying basic earnings per share 347 404
Underlying diluted earnings per share (post-tax basis) 345 402

{1l Restated on adoption of the amendment to A5 19 {see note 34)

(c) Diluted earnings per share

The calculanon of diluted earnings per share is based on profitas shown in note 8(a) and {b) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding calculated as follows

In mitlions of shares 2013 2012
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {see note 8(a) above) 4301 4301
Effect of share options in 1ssue 18 21
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {diluted) at 31 December 4319 4322
9 Davidends
The following dividends were paid by the Company
2003 2012
Pence Pence
£m per share £m per share
Previous year final dvdend s10 185 485 160
Current year intenim dividend 236 550 2i9 540
74 6 17 35 704 1700
The following dividends were proposed by the Company
2013 2012
Pence Pence
£m pershare £m per share
Interim 236 550 219 540
Final 516 12 00 510 185
752 17 50 729 17 25
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Plant,
Land and equipment
buildings and vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At1)anuary 2013 368 1097 146 5
Acquisibon of john Laing Integrated Services - 04 04
Addinons 25 314 339
Disposals (tn (16 3) 174
Effect of movermnenits in foreign exchange rates 26} (76) (10 2)
At 31 December 2013 356 Nn76 153 2
Depreciation and impairment losses
At January 2013 51 156 20.7
Deprecianon charge for the year 35 180 215
Disposals 05s) m 3) na)
Effect of movernents in forergn exchange rates nn (43} {5 4}
At 31 December 2013 70 180 250
At 1)anuary 2013 317 941 125 8
At 31 December 2013 286 996 128 2

Included in the net book value of plant, equipment and vehicles1s £41 4 million (2012 £38 4 million) i respect of assets held under finance leases

and hire purchase contracts The leased equipment secures lease cbligations as disclosed in note 20

Plant
Landand equipment
buildings and vehicles® Toral®
£m £m £m

Atljanuary 2012 374 1227 1601
Acquisition of the Bouchier Group 13 66 79
Addions 21 179 200
Disposals (23 {30 4) 1327)
Disposals arising from the sale of businesses {05 (44) (49
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates ft2) (27) 39
At 31 Decemnber 2012 368 1097 146 5
Depreciation and impairment losses
Atl)anuary 2012 41 218 259
Depreciation charge for the year 37 234 27N
Disposals (22) (26 3) {28 5)
Disposals arising from the sale of businesses - 0e) (16
Effect of movemenis in foreign exchange rates {0 5} a7 (22)
At31 December 2012 51 156 207
Net book value
Atljanuary 2002 333 1009 134 2
At 31 December 2012 317 941 125 8

{I} Resiated lor the retrospective adjusiment to provisionak amounts recogrised on the acquisitaon of the Beuchier Groupin 2012
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

1 Intangible assets

Customer Total aristng Computer
contracis  from business software and
Geoodwill andlists  combinations Licences Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Atljanuary 2013 1,4476 2Nno0 1,718 6 344 1,753 0
Acquisiton of John Laing Integrated Services 43 272 315 - s
Additions - - - 99 99
Disposals - - - (o83 (0 8)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates (22) - 22) {o4) (26)
At 31 December 2013 1,449 7 298 2 1,747 9 431 1,791 0
Amortisation and impairment losses
Atl]anuary 2013 - 1996 1996 168 216 4
Amortsation for the year - 192 192 36 228
Disposals - - - (08) (0 8)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates - - - 02 (02
At 31 December 2013 - 218 B 2188 194 238 2
Net book value
AtlJanuary 2013 1,447 6 714 1,519 0 176 1,536 6
At 31 December 2013 1,449 7 794 1,5291 237 15528

The provisional goodwill recognised on the acquisition of John Laing Integrated Services of £4 3 million represents the present value of future

synergies and growth prospects expecied from the business

Included in the net book value of computer software and Licences 15 £5 0 million (2012 £3 5 million) in respect of assets held under finance leases

The leased assets secure lease obliganons as disclosed in note 20

Customer Total anising Computer
cantracts from business software and
Goodwil® and hsis®  combinanons® licences Total"
£m £m Em Em fm
Cost
At January 2012 14313 2705 1,701 8 285 17303
Acquisition of the Bouchier Group 167 06 173 - 173
Addinons - - - 73 73
Disposals - - - "2 12
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 04 on {05) ©2 @7
At 31 December 2012 14476 2710 1,718 6 344 17530
Amortsation and impairment losses
AtlJanuary 2012 - 168 4 168 4 143 1827
Amortisation for the year - N4 314 37 351
Disposals - - - i an
Reclassification (to property, plant and equipment) - {02 (02 {01) {03)
At 31 December 2012 - 1996 1996 16 8 216 4
Net book value
At January 2012 1,4313 1021 156334 142 1,5476
At 31 December 2012 14476 714 1,519 0 176 1,536 6
Impawrment tests for cash-generating umits containing goodwill
The followng units bave sigrmificant amounts of goodwall
2013 201792
£m fm
Construction services (excluding the Middle East) segment
UK construction 2330 2330
Canada construciion 101 110
2431 244 0
Support services segment
UK services 1,191 2 1,869
Canadaservices 15 4 167
1,206 6 1,203 6
Total goodwill 1,4497 1,447 6

(1) Restated lor the retrospecinve adjustment to provisional amounts recognised on the acquisition of the Bauchigr Groupin 2012

(2} Restated following a review of the operanng structure of the business
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N Intangible assets (continued)

Eachyear and whenever events or a change in the economic environment indicates a risk of impairment, the Group reviews the value of goodwill
balances allocated 1o 1ts cash generaung units In the absence of any identfied impairment risks tests are performed based oninternal valuations
of each cash generating unit {CGU)

Management consider Support services, Pubhec Private Partnerships Projects, Middle East construction services and Construction services
(excluding the Middle Easth as distinct reportng segments Goodwill has been allocated to the apphicable cash-generating units {CGUs), withinthe
Construchion services {excluding the Middte East) and Support services reporting segments detalled above Our CGUs have been idenufied within
our reporting segments as those businesses that generate cash inflows largely independently of other businesses within the Group, and which
are subject to Independent management Following a review of the operating structure of the business, the Infrastructure Services CGU has been
combined with the Business Services CGU The combined CGU has been named the UK Serwices CGU and comprises the goodwill previously
allocated to the Business Services CGU and Infrastructure Services CGU

John Laing Integrated Services has been integrated into the Group’s Support Services reporung segment and consequently the goodwilland
customer coniracts and lists recogrused on this acquisition have been allocated to the UK serwices CGU

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations The value-in-use in 2013 was determined on a simiar
basisto 2012 The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculanons are those regarding the discountrates, growth rates and expecied changes
to revenue and direct costs during the period These assumptions were reviewed in 20131n the hght of the challenging econormic environment
The impact of the Comprehensive Spending Review an the financial stability of our customers partners and suppliers will be ringated by
continuing 1o apply rigorous selectivity criteria in relation to their financal stability, the secunty of project funding and coniractual terms

and conditions

Discount rates have been estimated based on pre tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the uime value of money and the risks
specific 1o the CGUs Whilst the Group has four CGUS, the risks and rewards associated with Construction services {excluding the Middle East) are
consistent, and therefore one discount rate has been applied to each CGU Similarly the risks and rewards encountered in the Support services
CGUs are consistent and therefore one discount rate has been applied to each CGU Management has derived a Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC) using the capital asset pricing model to determine the cost of equity and then weighting the overali cost of capital for the Group by equuty
and debt The WACC was then used to determine the pre-tax discount rates for each CGU The rate used to discount the torecast cash flows for the
CGUs in the Construction services (excluding the Middle East) was 10 0 per cent (2012 117 per cent) and for the CGUs in the Support services
segmentwas 8 8 per cent (2012 9 @ per cent)

The cash flows used to determine the value-in-use calculations are based upon the latest three year forecasts approved by management which
are based upon secured and probable orders and the Group's overall strategic direction The cash flows are extrapolated from year four, with 2
terminal value using a growth rate of 2 5 per cent This growth rate does not exceed the long-term industry average and reftects the synergies from
recent acquisitions

Carillion plc management has undertaken sensitnaty analysis on a number of the key assumptions in the value-in use calculations Sensitivity
analysis on the discount rate shows that the discount rate would have to increase to a minimum of 17 6 per cent for Construction services
{excluding the Middle East) and to a mimuimum of 14 7 per cent for Support services before an impairmentwas triggered in any CGU Sensiivity
analysis was applied 1o the cash flows used 1o determine the value in use by reducing the approved three year forecasts for the UK Construction
CGU by 21% and by 30% for the UK Services CGU together with an assumption of no growth in cash flows from year four onwards On the basis of
the sensiivity analysis undertaken in relation to cash flows, Carillion plc management concluded that there 1s a more than adequate amount of
headroom in the value in use calculations befere an iImpairment would be tnggered In addition Cardlion plc management has also considered
recoverable amounts on the basis of estimated cash flows tor the CGLs that were reported in 2012 and concluded that they exceeded their
recoverable amount

Overall as at 31 December 2013, based on internal valuatrons, Carillion plc management concluded that the recoverable value of the Group’s CGUs
exceeded their carrying amount

Amortisation charge

The amortisaton charge of £22 8 millton (2012 £351 million) is recogrised in adminmistrative expenses in the (ncome statement Amortisation
of the Intangible assets of £119 0 milion arising on the acquistion of Mowlem in 2006 will be 79 per cent complete by 2016, with the remaining
amortisation charge incurred over the following 25 years Amorusation of the imangible assets of £125 4 mithon ansing an the acquisition of
Alfred McAlpine i 2008 15 84 per cant complete at the end of 2013 with the remaining amorusation charge continuing until 2019 Amorusation
of the intangible asset of £29 4 million ansing on the acquisinon of Carilion Energy Services in 2011 will be completed in 2014 Amoruisation of
the mtangible asset of £27 2 miflion ansing on the acquisiton of jJohn Laing Integrated Services in the year will be 74 per cent complete by 2023
with the remaining amortisation charge conbnuing unil 2041
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

12 Investments in jointly controlled entities

Equity Loan Total
inve s a Goodwill Total
£m £m [ £m £m

Cost
Atljanuary 2013 822 510 1332 21 1353
Equity investments 06 - 06 - [+X 2
Disposals (6 8} (34 9) (Fi )] - @an
Netloans advanced - 26 26 - 26
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 19 (12} 3N - 3n
At 31 December 2013 741 175 816 21 937
Share of post-acquisition results
At1)anuary 2013 a1 - 411 - 411
Share of results for the year after taxation 265 - 265 - 265
Share of change in fair value of cash flow hedges {net of taxation) 21 - zn - 21
Disposals 131 - 1231 - 131
Distribunons received 8 2) - 18 2) - ns 2
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates (21} - 21 - 2n
At 31 December 2013 583 - 583 - 583
Net book value
At January 2013 1233 510 1743 21 176 4
At 31 December 2013 132 4 175 1499 21 1520

Equity investments of £0 6 milhon relate to the acquisiion in cash of interests 1n a number of jointly controlled entities engaged in land development

inCanada

During the year, the Group disposed of a number equity investmentsin jointly conrrolled entties engaged inland development in Canada and

Jjointly controlled enuues engaged in PPP acuvities as disclosed in note 30

Equity Loan Tosal
invesimenis advances INVESIMEnts Goodwll Toral
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
Arljanuary 2012 777 639 1416 21 1437
Equity investments 87 - 87 - 87
Disposals (36) {23 5} {271} - (271)
Netloans advanced - no no - o
Eftect of movements in foreign exchange rates (0 6) 04 {10} - {10}
At 3l December 2012 822 510 1332 21 1353
Share of post acquisition results
Atljanuary 2012 159 - 159 - 159
Share of results for the year after taxation 343 - 343 - 343
Share of change in fair value of cash flow hedges (net of taxation) (32 - 32} - (32
Disposals no - no - no
Drstributions received (138) - (13 6} - (13 6)
Effect of movemenis in foreign exchange rates (33 - (33) - (33
At 31 December 2012 a1 - 41 - 411
Net book value
Atl January 2012 936 639 1575 21 159 6
At 31 December 2012 1233 510 174 3 21 176 4

Equity investments of £8 7 millionincludes £0 7 rillion relating to the acquisiion m cash of interests in a number of jointly contralled entities

engagedin land development in Canada and £8 O million relating to the acquisition in cash of interests in a number of jointly conirolled entibes
engagedin PPP activiies During the year, the Group disposed of equity investments in jointly controlled eniiies engaged in land development in

Canada and a number of PPP jointly controlled entities as disclosed in note 30
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12 Investments (n jointly controlled entities (conunued)

20m3 2012

PPP PP
projects Other Total projects Other Tonal
£m Em £m £m fm £m
Non-current assets 5077 108 2 6159 9527 1033 10560
Cash 454 345 799 65 2 490 142
Other current assets 83 2553 2636 105 2 2199 3251
Share of gross assets 5614 3980 9594 11231 3722 14953
Currentborrowing {4 3) 02) {45) (10 0} {02 {102}
Currenthabilities 13 2) (204 1) (217 3) 63 3) 172 8) (2361}
Non-current borrowing (445 9) (28 3) (474 2) {841 6} (350} 876 &)
Non-current iabiliies na (52 5) (1239) (175 5) {49 4) (2249}
Prowistons (2 9} - {29) (38} - (38l
Share of gross habihihes {5377} {2851 {828 8) (1,094 2) (257 4} {1,351 &
Share of net assets excluding derivatives 237 n29 136 6 289 14 8 1437
Finanaial instrument derivaives (2 2} - 22) {18 3) - {18 3)
Share of net assets 215 nz29 134 4 106 148 1254
Loan advances 86 90 76 44Q 70 510
Total investment in jointly controlled entities 301 1219 1520 546 121 8 176 4

Financialinstrument dervatuves within PPP projects relate 1o interest rate swaps entered into by the jointly controlled entities concerned as
ameans of hedging interest rate risk and are stated net of deferred tax In accordance with Internauonal Accounting Standard 39 ‘Financial
instruments Recognition and measurement’, these derivatives are accounted tor as cash flow hedges with the effective portion of movements
in fair value each year recogrused in the hedging reserve and recycled on disposal

13 Other investments

fm
Fairvalue
Atl)anuary 2013 753
Additions 38
Disposals (58 3)
Fair value of equity inierests retained on pariuial disposals 03
At 31 December 2013 211
Impairment losses
AtlJanuary and 31 December 2013 138
Net book value
At January 2013 615
At 31 December 2013 73

Addimons in 2013 of £3 8 milion includes cash paid of £3 3 million in respect of a long-term stakeholder loan to the Green Deal Finance Company
Limited and £0 5 million in respect of Public Private Partnership subordinated debt in unquoted entities Disposals of £58 3 milhon relate
predomnantly 1o the disposal of the Group’s 12 5 per cent holding in Aspire Defence Holdings Limited, a Public Private Parinership unguoted entity
The farr value of equity interests retained on parual disposals anses on the partial disposal of equity imerests in live PPP projects which were
previously accounted tor as investments in jointly cantrolled entittes The equity interests retained at the date of disposal have been recognised
atfair value

f£m
Far value
AtlJanuary 2012 651
Acquisiion of the Bouchier Group o7
Additions 30
Disposals (14
Fair value of equity interests retained on partial disposals 30
Increase in fair vatue 49
At 31 December 2012 753
Impawrment losses
Atl]anuary and 31 December 2012 138
Net book value
Atlanuary 2012 513
Al 31 December 2012 615
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partial disposals arises on the partial disposal of equity interests in five PPP projecis which were previously accounted for as investments in jointly

controlled entities The equity interests retained at the date of disposal have been recognised at fair value

14 Deferred tax assets and habihities
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabihnies

Deferred tax assets and habiliies are attributable to temporary differences relaung 1o the following

Assets Liabilitles HNet
2013 20128 2013 20124 2013 2012%
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 196 138 - - 196 138
Intangible assets - - (15 8) (16 3) 58 (163
Liability for Nauonal Insurance on future Eaga Partnership
Trust's distributions 09 42 - - 09 42
Employee benefits 750 813 - 02 750 811
Working capital - 26 43 - (43) 26
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised 270 221 - - 270 221
Tax assets/{labiliues) 1225 1240 (201) (16 5) 1024 1075
Set off of tax {9 9) (0 2) 99 02 - -
Net tax assets/(habilities) 112 6 1238 {10 2) (16 3) 102 4 1075
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have notbeen recognised in respect of the following items
2013 2012
£m fm
Taxlosses 330 359

The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislaion Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses due to the lack of

certainty concerning the quantum and tming of future years’ taxable profuis of the companies concerned

Fallowing the introduction of the foreign profits exemption with effect from 1 July 2009, no deferred tax liability 1s required to be recognised in
relation to taxable temporary differences anising on unremitted earmngs from overseas businesses

Movements in temporary differences during the year are as follows

On acquisstion

Balance ofjchn Laing Balance

1january Integrated Recognised Recognised 31 December

20130 Services inincome tn equity 2013

£m &m £m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 138 01 57 - 196
Intangible assets {16 3) (54) 59 - {15 8)

Liability for Natuonal Insurance on future Eaga Partnership

Trust’s distributions 42 - (33) - 09
Employee benefits 81 01 {4 9} (13) 750
Working capital 26 - (96) 27 4 3)
Tax value ot carry forward losses recognised 221 - 49 - 270
107 5 (52} (13) t4 102 4

Balance Onacquisibon Batance

ljanuary ofthe Bouchier Recogrised Recogrnised 31 December
2012 Group® i ineome? In equizy!® 2012

£m £m £m £m £m

Property, plant and equipment 169 02 33 - 138
Intangible assets {25 5) on 93 - (16 3)

Liabikty for National Insurance on future Eaga Partnership

Trust’s distributions 43 - on - 42
Employee benefits 765 - (38) 84 811
Working capital 134 08 (e) - 26
Equity-settled ransacuons Q7 - {06} o -
Tax value of carry forward losses recognised 258 - (37) - 221
nzi 09 (13 8) 83 1075

{1} Restatedfor the retrospective adjustment to provisional amounts recogmsed on the acqusiien of the Bouchier Group 2012

{2) Restated on adoption of the amendment 1o IAS 19 (see note 34)

The UK Government’s Budget on 20 March 2013 announced that the UK corperation tax rate will reduce to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015
This reduction in the rate to 20% was substanuvely enacted on 2 July 2013 Accordingly the deferred tax asset at 31 December 2013 has been
calculated based on the rate of 20% substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
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15 Inventories

2013 2012
£m Em
Raw materials and consumables 224 227
Workin progress 262 272
Finished goods - 54
48 6 553
Development work in progress of £22 0 mithon {2012 £20 8 million} 1s expecied to be recovered atter more than 12 months
16 Construction contracts
Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date
2013 2002
£m Em
Due from customers for contraci work 3860 3436
Due to customers for coniract work 1mun {169 2}

The aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recogrised profits {less recogrised losses) for all contracts in progress ai the balance sheei date
was £4,527 6 millien {2012 £4,078 4 million} Advances recerved from customers relating to contracts in progress amounted 1o £99 Q million
(2012 £110 6 mullion)

The amount of constructon coniract revenue recognised as revenue in the year amounted to £1,300 9 million {2012 £1,533 5 mullion}

17 Trade and other receivables

2013 2027

£m £m

Trade recevables 2197 238)
Amounts owed by customers on construction contracts 386 0 3436
Other recevables and prepayments 482 3 415 2
Amounts owed by jointly controlled entties 1088 1077
Amounts owed under jointly controlled operanons 155 89
1,212 3 E

(I} Restated for the retrospective adjustment to provisional amounts recogmised on the acquisition of the Bouchier Group in 2012
At 3] December 2013, retentions of £61 2 million {2012 £53 8 mullion) relaung to canstruction contracts and other amounis recoverable after more
than one year of £75 9 mulhon (2012 £43 8 million) are included above as they are recoverable within the normal operatng cycle of the Group

18 Cash and cash equivalents and net borrowing
Cash and cash equivalents and net borrowing comprise

2013 2012
£m fm
Cash and cash equivalents 137 6571
Bank overdrafis 33 {49
Net cash and cash equivalents 410 4 652 2
Bankloans (292 3) (466 2)
Finance lease cbhgations (29 5) (34 5)
Other loans (303 8) (3073}
Net borrowing {215 2) {155 8)
Reconcihation of net cash flow to movement in net borrowing
2013 2012
£m fm
{Decreasel/increase nnet cash and cash equivalents (2377) 1667
Net cash and cash equivalents in subsidianes acquired 41} -
Repaymentfidraw down) of bank and cther loans 1mo {277 2)
Payment of inance lease habilites 167 168
Change in net borrowing resulting from cash flows (53 5) 937)
Net cash/{borrovwang) in subsidiaries acquired 41 (46
Finance lease additions {14 0) S0
Currency translanon differences 40 22
Change in net borrowing (59 4) (1osn
Net borrowing at 1 January {155 8) {507
Net borrowing at 31 December {215 2) {155 8)
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19 Current assetinvestments

2013 2012
im £Em
Current asset iInvestments 24 25

Current assel investments include cash balances held on deposit for periods greater than three months and certain restrnicted cash balances,
which are held at floating interest rates inked to the UK Bank Base Rate

20 Borrowing
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s interest bearing loans and borrowings For more information about
the Group’s exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 27

2013 2012
£m £m
Current habilities

Bank overdrafis 33 49
Bank loans 96 75
Finance lease obligations 95 225
Qiher loans 01 04
225 353

Non-current habilities
Bank loans 2827 4587
Finance lease obligauons 200 120
QOther loans 3037 3069
606 4 T776
Total barrowing 6289 8129

Non-current other loans in 2013 of £303 7 milhon relates to private placement financing at fixed rates of interest, as shown below

Currency Currency amount Sterling amount £Em Interestraie % Matuniy date
uss 250 i5i 385 November 2017

£ Sterling 490 490 438 September 2018
£ Sterling 75 175 362 August 2019
uss a0¢ 48 2 429 November 2019

£ Sterling 510 510 510 September 2021
£ Sterling 175 175 419 August 2022
uss 1400 843 486 November 2022

Us$ 350 211 501 November 2024

3037

In relanon o the US dollar denominated private placement financing, the Group has entered into cross currency dervative instruments that
correspond to the profile of the principal and interest repayments

Bank loans and overdrafts are largely unsecured and bear interest at floating rates linked to London Interbank Otfered Rate Within non current
bank loans of £282 7 mullion (2012 £2458 7 millon) are loans amounting to £6 8 mullion (2012 £2 6 mithon) which are secured onthe assets to
which they relaie Finance lease obligations are secured on the assets to which they relate

Finance lease lhiabilities
Finance lease habilites are payable as follows

Mintmum Minimum

lease fease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal
2013 2013 2012 2012 2012 2012
£m Em Em £m Em fm
Less than one year 105 10) 95 246 (21 225
Berween one and five years 184 ns) 169 g1 Q7 84
More than five years 32 ((+})] 31 40 04) 36
321 {2 6) 295 377 (32) 345

Under the terms of the lease agreements, no contingent renis are payable

21. Trade and other payables

200 20120
Current habilities Em £m
Trade payables 5419 6433
Amounts owed to customers on construction contracis 1011 169 2
Other tax and social secunity costs 607 367
Amounts owed to jointly controlled entines 488 553
Amounts owed under jointly conirolled operations 19 94
Other creditors 404 6 2631

Arrrnals and Adeferrad incame AN aan7
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21 Trade and other payables [conunued)
Withintrade and other payables are £2 9 million (2012 £15 5 mihon) of habiliies due in more than one year but are payable within the normal
operaung cycle of the Group All other trade and other payables are due within one year

2013 20127
Non-current habilities £m £m
Deferred consideration payable - 9]

) Restated tor the retrospective adjustment 1o provisional amounts recogrised on the acquistion of the Bouchier Groupin 2012

The deferred consideration payable m 2012 of £9 1 million relates to the acquisitton of the Bouchier Group and 1s payable in January 2014

22 Provisions

Oneraus EPT Onerous

Rationalisation leases N) contracts Tatal

£m £m Em £m £m

Atl)anuary 2013 12 166 184 - 362
Provisions created 259 10 - 139 408
Reclassificanion 04) 04 - - -
Unused provisions - (52} {14 2) - (19 4)
Discount unwind - 14 - - 14
Provisions utlised (157) 6 4} - - (221)
At 31 December 2013 no 78 42 139 369

Disclosed within

Current habidities no kY 42 139 327
Non current iabilizies - 42 - - 42
no 78 42 139 369

The rationahsaton provision at | January 2013 primarily relates io redundancy and other assocsated costs artsing from a review of the Group s
requirements following the acquisition of Carillion Energy Serwices {CES) in 2011 The provision created in the year of £25 9 mullion relates to the
restructuring of the Group's energy services business following changes in the Energy market, includmg the slow stari to the Green Deal market
and the delayed start in the Energy Company Obligation (ECO) market, and the cosis of integrauon of John Laing Integrated Services as disclosed in
note 4 The ratignalisation provision created includes redundancy, restructuring and other costs relating to the Group s commitments under energy
efficiency programmes These costs were incurred in the review of the operational structure of the energy business and the way it delivers services
in order o ensure 1115 aligned 10 the size of markets in which itoperates The majority of this provision was utilised duning the year, with the
remaining provision at 31 December 2013 of £11 ¢ million expecied 1o be fully utiised in the next 12 months

The onerous lease provision at | January and 31 December 2013 relates to a number of onerous leases acquired within Mowlem in 2006, Alfred
McAlpine in 2008 and CES in 2011 and provisions created for praperty interests retained on the disposal of Cardlion 1T Services Lumited and Enviros
Group Limited n 2009 The provision created in the year of £1 0 million relates to obligations arising from the restructuring of the Group’s energy
services business as described above The provision is expecied to be utilised over a period of three years

The Eaga Partnership Trust (EPT) NI provision at 1 January 2013 relales to the provision which was recognised on the acquistion of CES in 20110
connection wath future distnbutions o employees from the EPT which erystallises a Nanonal insurance cost to the Company Fellowing clarification of
the tax treatmeni of certam potential distributions 1o beneficiaries by the EPT, and in paruicular those beneftoaries who are no longer employed by the
Group the provision has been reduced by £14 2 million during the year and 1s included within non-recurning operatng items (see note 4) The
onerous contracts provision created in the year of £13 9 million relates 10 onerous contractual obligations entered into by CES prior 10 acquisiion
by Carilion and are no longer conunuing Whilst both the quantum and urming of settlernent of these contracts is unceriain, the provision created
reflects management’s best estimaie of the expenditure required to settle the present obligations Both of these tems are linked to obligatrons
entered into by CES prior to acquisition and estimates for both of these obliganons were inially made in the fair value acquisition balance sheet
during 2011 Given that these are substanual movemenis to these provisions we have highlighted these items separately in the non-recurring
operating items note {see note 4)

Onerous EPT
Rationahsanon leases NI Total
Em £m Em £m
At January 2012 191 276 184 651
Eifect of movements in foreign exchange rates {on - - on
Unused provisions - 37} - (37)
Discount unwind - 21 - 2]
Provisions utilised {178} {9 4} - (272)
At 31 December 2012 12 66 184 362
Disclosed within
Current liabihnes 12 74 184 270
Non current habilities - 92 - 92
12 i66 18 4 362
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23 Share capital

2013 2012
Number Number
milhon £m milhon £m
Issued and fully paid
As at ] January and 31 December 4303 2151 4303 2151

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carries no nght to fixed income

24 Reserves

Translation reserve

The translanon reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations as
well as from the translanon of iabilities that hedge the Group’s net investment in foreign operations The translaton reserve also includes any
related current taxation

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effeciive portion of the cumulative net change in fair value of cash tflow hedging nstrurnents related to hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred, together with any related deferred taxaton

Fair vatue reserve
The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of available for sale investments untl the mvestment 1s derecognised,
together with any related deferred taxation

Merger reserve

The merger reserve Initially arose on the demerger from Tarmac plc on 29 July 1999 The reserve increased on the acquisition of Mowlem an

23 February 2006, Alfred McAlpine on 12 February 2008 and Carilhon Energy Services on 21 April 2011, whereby the consideration tncluded

the issue of Cardlion plc shares The premium on the shares issued in relaton to these acquisiions has been credited to the merger reserve rather
than the share premium account in accordance with the Compames Act 2006 The £18 6 million (2012 £31 4 milhon} transfer to the retained
earnings reserve during the year represents the amortisation of intangible assets recognised on the Mowlem, Alfred McAlpine and Carillion Energy
Services acquisitions

Retained earnings

Retained earnings include the reserve for the Company’s own shares which comprises of the cost of the Company’s shares held by the Cardlion
Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) The shares held by the ESOP may subsequently be awarded to employees under the Group’s share
incenuve schemes The movements inthe reserve for own shares included within retained earnings are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Atljanuary - {02
Share options exercised {transfer to retained earnings) 14 14
Acquisition of own shares (14) (12)
At 31 December - -

At 31 December 2013, the ESOP held 7 (2012 250) of the Company’s shares and had a market value of £23 {2012 £793) During the year the
Company acquired 471 407 of its own shares for £1 4 mullon to meet the plan’s commitments The ESOP has elected to waive all dividends except
for atotal payment of 1 pence at the time each dividend 1s paid

In addition to the ESOP, the Company has also established a Quakifying Employee Share Ownership Trust {QUEST’) At 31 December 2013 the total
number of shares held by the QUEST amaunted to 84,593 {2012 129,979) and had a market value of £0 4 million (2012 £0 4 milkon) The QUEST
has elected to warve all dividends in excess of O Ol pence per share

During the year the Company also acquired 293,745 of its own shares for £0 8 million to facihtate an award under the Canllion Energy Services
Share Incentive Plan {SIP) for UK partners as disclosed innote 4 In addinon cash payments totalling £0 3 mulion were made to good leavers who
were entitled 1o receive shares underthe terms of the SIP Awards under the SIP vest immediately in relation 1o UK partners and therefore the cost
of these shares of £1 1 rillion has been charged directly to the retained earnings reserve The £0 8 million payment to acquire Carillion plc shares
15 tncluded within acquusition of own shares in the cash flow statement and the £0 3 million paid (o good leavers 1s included within payment to
employees in settlement of share oprions in the cash flow statement

25 Share-based payments

The Group has established a share option programme that enttles key management persennel and seror employees o shares in the Company
Full details of share oprion schemes can be found inthe Remuneration report on pages 53 to 68 In addinon, under the terms of the Group’s bonus
arrangements, sentor employees and Executive Directors receve a proportion of thewr bonus i shares which vest a year after the award in respect
of senior employees and three years after the award in respect of Executive Directors
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The terms and conditions of option schemes wathin the scope of IFRS 2 are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of shares

Number of Contractual life Exercise
Grant date instruments Vesting conditions af options price
LEAP option grant at 8 April 2011 699,270 Three years of service and increase in EPS 3years Wil
of RPl plus a mimimum of 3% over a rolling
three year persod
LEAP option grant at 11 April 2012 937,208 Three years of service and increase in EPS 3years Nl
of amumimum of 6% and operating cash
conversion of a mimimum of 95%
over arolling three year period
LEAP option grani at 4 April 2013 963 337 Three years of service and ncrease in EPS of Jyears Nil
aminimum of 6% and operating cash
converston of a mimimum of 95%
over arolling three year period
Deferred bonus scheme 118,578 Three years of service for Executive Directors 13 years Nl
and one year’s serwvice for senior employees
Total share options 2,718,393
The number and weighted average exercise prices of all of the Group’s share options is as iollows
Welghted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
2013 2013 2012 2012
Atlanuary 41 3,139,814 33p 3,858,975
Forfetted during the year - {906,304) - 1,203,998}
Exercised during the year 15 4p (831,882) - (1 216 570}
Granted duning the year - 1,316,765 - 1,701,407
At 31 December - 2,118,393 41p 3,139 814
Exercisable at the end of the year - - 227 3p 56,401

There were no share opuions exercisable at the end of 2013 The weighted average share price during the year was 290 6 pence

The fair value of services recewed in return for share options granted 1s measured based on a Black-Scholes model using the following assurmptions

2013 2012 2012
LEAP SIPInternatonal LEAR
Fair value of share options and assumptions
Fair value at grant date 2306p 2140p 2467p
Share price at grant date 276 1p 2529p 284 6p
Exercise price Nil Nil Nil
Expected volatility 1216% N59% H84%
Option life 3years 3years 3years
Expecied ddend yield 6 00% 557% 476%
Risk-free interest rate (based on nanonal governmen: bonds) 0 32% 019% 0 27%

The expected volauhty 1s based on the historic volanhity [calculated based on the weighted average remaining hfe of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatiity due to publicly available information

Employee expenses

2013 2012

Lm Em

Equity settled share options and deferred bonus shares granted in
201 - (03
2012 - -
2013 01 -
Total expense/{income) recognised as employee costs 01 (03

In additon io the above, a share option charge of £11 mililon has arisen for shares awarded under the Carillon Energy Services Share Incentive
Plan (SIP), which are wholly funded by the Eaga Partnership Trusts waived dividends and included in non-recurring operating items {see note 4)
Shares awarded under the SIP to UK partners vest immediately and therefore the share-based payment charge s recogmsed in full at the date of
award Shares awarded under the SIP to international partners have a three year vesting period and the share-based payment charge 1s recognised

over the vestng period

The expected life of the options 1s 1aken to be the full vesting period, as histarical exercise patterns have shewn this to be appropnate
The esumate of the number of shares that will eventually vest ignores the possibility that market conditions wll or wili not be achieved given
that these market conditions are already included in the far value of the opuons
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26 Guarantees and contingent liabilities

2013 2012

£m fm

Guarantees inrespect of borrowing in Construcuon services lexcluding the Middle East) joinily controlled entines 31 02
Guarantees in refation to deferred equity payments in PPP speaal purpose entiies 981 882
Guarantees in respect of letters of credit issued by banks in relaion 1o performance on contracts for PPP customers kLX) 89 2

Guarantees and counter indemmities have, (n the normal course of business, been given to financial institutions n respect of the provision of
performance and other contract related bonds and to certain defined benetit pension schemes in respect of deficitrecovery payments The Group
treats guarantees and counter indemnities of this nature as contingent babilities until such time as it becomes probable that the Group will be

required to make a payment under the terms of the arrangement

Claims under contracts and other agreements including joint arrangements, are outstanding in the normal course of business The Group, inthe
normal course of its activines, 15 the subject of certain legal proceedings The resolution of these proceedings s regarded as unlikely to succeed or

to have a material effect on the Group’s inancial posiion

There are no habilites of jointly controlled entities for which the Group is contingently liable

27 Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments

Financial
assets Fairvalue
Loansand Otherfinancial Available held hedging
receivables liabilities forsale tortrading instruments Total
31 December 2013 £m £m £m m £m £m
Financial assets
Non-current asset investments - - 73 - - 73
Cash and cash equivalents 4137 - - - - 4137
Current asset investmenis 24 - - - - 24
Trade receivables 2197 - - - - 2137
Dervatve financial instruments - - 22 - 22
Total 6358 - 13 22 - 6453
Financial habilities
Bank overdrafts - (33 - - - {3 3)
Bank loans - (292 3) - - - {292 3)
Finance lease obhgations - {29 5) - - - {29 5)
Other loans - (303 8) - - - (303 8)
Trade payables - 541 9) - - - (541 9)
Deferred consideratuon - {8 5) - - - (8 5)
Derwative inancial instruments - - - - (13 2} 13 2)
Total - (1,179 3) - - (13 2} {1,192 5)
Financal
asseis/ Fair value
Loansand Other financial? Available thabilmes) held hedging
receivables liabelitias for sale fortrading insiruments Total
31 December 2012 Em £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Non-current asset tnvestmernis - - 615 - - 615
Cash and cash equivalents 6571 - - - - 6571
Current asset iInvestments 25 - - - - 25
Trade recevables 2361 - - - - 2361
Dervative financial insiruments - - - 04 - 04
Total 8957 - 615 04 - 9576
Financial habilities
Bank overdralts - {49 - - - (49)
Bankicans - (466 2) - - - {466 2)
Finance lease obhgations - (34 5) - - - (34 5)
Other loans - (307 3) - - - (3073)
Trade payables - (643 3) - - - (643 3)
Deferred considerauon - (16 Q) - - - {i6 0)
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 70 71)
Total - (1,472 2) - - (71) {1,479 3)

(1} Restated lor the relrospective adjustment to prowsonal amounts recogrised on the acquisition of the Bouchier Group 1n 2012
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27 Financial instruments (continued}

Financial nsk management

Financial risk management 1s an integral part of the way the Group s managed In the course of 1ts business, the Group is exposed primarity
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, kquidity nisk and ereditrisk The overall aim of the Group’s financial risk management pohcies are
to mintmise potential adverse effects on financial performance and net assets There has been no change 1o the Group’s exposure to financiat
risk or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured

The Group’s treasury department manages the principal financial risks within policies and operating parameters approved by the Board of
Directors Treasury 1s not a profit centre and does not enter into speculative transactions

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates in a number of overseas regions, primarly the Middle Eastand Canada In order to protect the Group’s balance sheet
from the impact of foreign exchange rate volatility, foreign currency denominated net assets that exceed £10 milhon equivalent are hedged,
as a minimum, to at least 60 per cent of the net asset value Netinvestment hedging of overseas operations is achieved through borrowing
denominated in the relevant foreign currencies, or where this 1s not practicable, in a currency which the relevant currency closely follows

In 2012 the Group secured US$280 million of private placement finance at fixed interest rates from a number of United States of America based
investors in order to provide greater flexibility in relanon to the maturity profile of Group berrowing The Group has entered into 2 number of
financial dernvative contracts to hedge the exposure to foreign exchange rate volatility in relation to the associated capital and interest payments

Group policy 1s to recognise gains and losses trom the effective portions of hedges in equity and to recogmise ineffective portions immediately
inthe income statement

Profits anising within overseas operations are not hedged unless a distribution 1s planned Such distributions are then treated as currency
transactions and hedged accordingly

The Group has relanvely small and infrequent transactional foreign currency exposures Any indiwidual exposures that are significant are hedged
using forward contracts or other appropriate risk management techniques

Further detalls concerning the nisks associated with the overseas regions in which the Group operates can be found in the Performance and
financial review on page 32

Foreign currency exposure
The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing denominated in foreign currency is as follows

2013 2012

£m £rm

United States of America Dollar (184 0) (188 6)
Canadian Dollar (80 5} (907
United Arab Emirates Dirham (7 4} {(75)
Other {3 0) (30)
(274 9) (289 8)

Of the total foreign currency borrowing of £274 9 million (2012 £289 8 million} the amount of borrowing used for hedging averseas currency
net asset amourts to £78 4 million (2012 £83 7 million) The foreign exchange gain of £3 3 milion (2012 £1 5 million gain} on translaton of the
barrowing into sterling has been recognised in the translanon reserve as these hedging loans are effective hedges Exposure 10 United States of
America dollar denominated private placement borrowing included above amounting o £168 7 mullion (2012 £171 8 million) 1s hedged by

cross currency derivative instruments as disclosed on page 105

The Group does not have a significant amount of foreign currency exposure in respect of financial assets

Each movement of five per cent n exchange rates against sterling would have changed reported profit before tax and equity as follows

Five per centincrease Five percent decrease

Profit Equity Profit Equity

£m Em £m £m
United States of America Dollar - 07 - {0 8}
Canadian Dollar cn 27 01 29
Euro - 19 - {21}
United Arab Emirates Dirtham o1} (30) 01 34
OmanRial {0 5) {2.4) 06 27
Other {0 2) {12) 02 13

Interest rate nisk

The Group’s interest bearing debt 15 predominantly drawa from committed bank facihities 1o fund acquisimions and ongoing working capital
requrements In addiion, foreign currency denominated borrowings have been drawn under the facihties to hedge net assets of overseas
operatons Such borrowing is subject to floating rates of interest inked to London Interbank Offered Rate In addion the Group has secured
additional finance of £303 7 mithon from private placements at fixed rates of interest as disclosed tn note 20 The principal purpose of raising
this finance at fixed interest rates was to ensure that a proportion of the Group’s borrowing was not subject to floaung rates of interest which may
increase In additon, the Group entered inta a fixed rate interest swap duning the year which swaps the floating rare to a fixed rate on £40 miliion
of the Group’s principal bank taciliies In addimon, a number of Group’s Public Private Partnership jointly cantrolled entiies have entered into
Interest rale swaps
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

27 Financial instruments {contunued)

Liquudity nisk

The Group's policy on iquidity risk 1s to ensure thai sufficient borrowing facilities are available to fund ongoing operations without the need to
carry significant net debt over the medium term The Group's principal borrowing faciliuies are provided by a group of care relanonshup banks
in the form of a syndicated loan, a bilateral facility private placement inancing and short term overdraft facilities The quantum of cornmutied
borrowing factlities available to the Group is reviewed regularly and 1s designed (o exceed forecast peak gross debt levels The average net
borrowing during 2013 was £490 6 mullion (2012 £344 1 mullion)

Maturity of financial iabilities
The remaiming contractual maturity profile of the Group’s habiliies which includes estimated luture Interest payments, 15 as follows

Trade Deferred Bank Bank Other Finance

payables consideration overdrafts loans loans leases Total

31 December 2013 £m £m £m tm Em £Em £m
Less than one year (5419) 85) (33} 13 2) 141} (10 5) {5915)
Between one and two years - - - {8 3) (139} (2.4) (29 6)
Between two and three years - - - 57 139) (a2) {23 8)
Berween three and four years - - - 57 {28 9) 32 (378)
Between four and five years - - - {277 4) {12 8) {36) (293 8)
More than five years - - - - (3231) 32 (326 3)
{5419) {8 5) {33) (310 3) {406 7) (321} (1,3028)

Trade Deferred Bank Bank Other Finance

payables consideraton™ overdrafts loans loans leases Total'

31 December 2012 £m £m £m f{m £m £m £m
Less than one year 643 3) (69} {49} 071 014 4) 24 6) 72
Between one and two years - 91 - {9 5) 141 {57 (38 4)
Between two and three years - - - (121 {141 14) (276)
Berween three and four years - - - {458 5} 141) 12 (473 8)
Between four and five years - - - - {293) 08 (301
More than five years - - - - (339 4) (4 0) (343 4)
(643 3) (16 Q) {49) {497 2) (425 4} {377) (1,624 5)

{1l Restated for the retrospective adjustment to prowssianal amounts recogrised an the acquisiuon of the Bouchier Group 1n 2012

The remaining contractual maturity profile of the Group’s derivative financial habibties 1s shown below The Group’s derivanve finanaial habilites
relate to cross currency dervatives that were entered into to hedge principal and interest repayments associated with US dollar private
placemeni financing The maturity profile is based on the undiscounted gross payable and recervable amounts under the contracts

2013 2012

Payable Recelvable Netpayable Payable Recervable Ne1 payable

£m £m £m fm fm tm

Less than one year (8 3} 78 o5 {8 3 80 (03
Between one and two years {8 3) 78 {05) 8 3) 80 03}
Between two and three years {8 3) 78 {05 {8 3 80 (0 3)
Between three and four years {23 9) 229 no) {8 3) 80 (03}
Between four and five years 7 72 {0 5) (239) 233 {06}
Mare than five years (185 8) 178 4 {74) (193 5) 1890 {4 5)
(242 3) 2319 {10 4) {250 6) 2443 {6 3)

Borrowing facilities
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facihities available atthe year end in respect of which all condttions precedeni had
been met

2013 2012

£m Em

Expining within one year 75 74
Expiring between two and five years 5430 2812
5505 2886

Credit nisk

Credit nsk anses on financial instruments such as trade recewables, short-term bank deposits and foreign currency hedging consracts Polictes
and procedures exist to ensure that customers have an appropriate credit history Short term bank deposits and foreign currency hedging
transactions are executed only with highly credit-rated authonsed counterpartes based on ratings 1ssued by the major rating agenaes
Counterparly exposure positions are monitored regularly so that credit exposures to any one counterparty are approved at main Board level
or within predetermined limiis The maximum exposure 10 credit risk 1s represented by the carrying value of each financial asset

The maximum exposure to credit nisk for recevables at 31 December by geographic region was

2013 2012

£m £m

United Kingdom: 1556 1798
Middle East 330 96
Canada 296 458

DAre Aftha ViimelA 1E nao
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27 Financial instruments {continued)
The maximum exposure 1o credit risk for recevables at 31 December by segment was

2013 2012

fm £m

Support services 156 8 1491
Public Private Partnership projects 03 05
Middfe East construction services 330 96
Constructionservices (excluding the Middle East} 296 769
2197 2361

The Group’s most significant debtor, Capntal Hosprtal Services Lid accounts for £9 | million of the recevables carrying amount at 31 December 2013
{2012 Scottish Power £10 5 rmallion}

Trade recevables included in the balance sheet are net of an impairment provision which has been estimated by management following a review of
indmvidual recervable accounts and 1s based on prior experience and known factors at the balance sheetdate Recervables are written off against the
impairment provision when management cansiders that the debt s no longer recoverable The ageing of trade receivables s as follows

2013 2012
Nettrade Mettrade

receivables Impairment recervables Impairment

im £m £m £m

MNot past due 122 4 - 1034 -
Past due less than three months 543 02 932 07
Past due between three and six months 241 c4 160 04
Past due between six and 12 months ns 08 92 12
Pasit due more than 12 months 74 65 143 80Q
2197 79 2361 103

The movement in the impairmeni provision is as follows 2013 2012
£m £m

Atl)anuary 103 103
Provision acquired with John Laing integrated Services o1 -
Prowvision created 02 13
Provision utlised (27) {13}
At 31 December 79 103

Whilst uncertamnty surrounding counterparty risk has increased due to the prevailing econornuc cimate, on balance the Group believes that
debtors will meet therr payment obliganons in respect of the amount of trade receivables recognised in the balance sheet that are past due and
unprovided as at 3] December 2013

Qverall, the Group considers that it 1s not exposed to a significant amount of credit risk

Derivative financial instruments

2013 2012

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

£m Em £m Em

Forward foreign currency contracts and oprions - at fair value through the income statement 22 - 04 -
Fixed rate interest denvauves - cash flow hedging instruments - (2 5) - -
Cross currency dervatives - cash flow hedging instruments - o7 - 71
22 03 2) 04 71

A£18milhon gain (2012 £1 3 million gain) has been recognised in administrative expenses in the income statement in respect of the movement
in the fair value of forward foreign currency contracts and a £6 1 millian toss (2012 £71melion loss) has been recognised in the hedging reserve
inrelation to the fixed rate interest dervatves and the cross currency derivatives which are effective cash flow hedges

In addition to the above, a number of the Group’s Public Private Partnership {PPP) jaintly controlled entiies have entered into interest rate
dermvanves as a means of hedging interest rate risk interest bearing debis and the associated interestrate dervatives within these PPP jointly
controlled entiies are without recourse to the Group The hie of these hedge arrangements track PPP contract terms and hedge fuiure
movemenits across a range up unol February 2040 The fair value of these derivauves 1s based on quoted pricesin active markets, with the
movement in fair value each year recognised in the share of change in fair value of effective cash flow hedges within joinity controlled enuities in
the statement of comprehensive income Al 31 December 2013 the Group’s share of the to1al net fair value liability of interest rate derivative in PPP
jointly controlled entities amounted to £67 4 million {2012 £99 2 million) of which £2 8 mullion (2012 £23 8 million) fand the related deferred tax
assetof £0 7 million (2012 £5 5 millton}l has been recogmised in the hedging reserve
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

27 Financial instruments {conunued)

Fair values

Financial instruments carred at fair value in the balance sheet are non-quoted equity shareholdings within non-current asset investments and
dervative inancial instruments The fair value of non-current asset invesiments 1s deterrmined based on alevel 3 valuauon method, using
valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on market data Faw value s calculated by discounnng expecied future cash flows

using asset specific discount rates, with the movement in fair value each year recogrnised in the fair value movement on available for sale assets
in the statement of comprehensive Income
The movementn the fair value of non-current asset investments derived using a level 3 valuation method s shown below

£m
At1)anuary 2013 608
Addions s
Fair value of equity interests retained on parual disposal 03
Disposals (57 6)
At 31 December 2013 73

The fair value of non-current asset Investments is most sensitive 1o movements in the discountrate used A one percentage pointincrease in
the discouni rate would reduce the farr value by £0 4 million

The fair value of derivauve financial instruments is based on a level 2 valuatton method using inputs from quoted prices in active markets
There are ne matenial differences berween the fair value and the carrying value of the Group's principal financial instruments

Caprtal risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and for other stakeholders and to maintatn an optimal debt and equity structure

tn order 1o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of the dividends paid 1o sharehalders, return capnal

to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt Where the Group makes significant acquisitions, these are financed with a
combination of debt and equity in arder to mantain a balanced capital structure In order to have greater flexibility over the maturity profile of
debt, the Group has secured around £304 mullion of private placement financing with maturity dases between 2017 and 2024 The Group has
a policy of progressively increasing dividends paid to shareholders broadly in ine with earmings per share growih, after taking account of the

investment needs of the business No changes were made inthe objectives, policies or process during the years ended 31 December 2013 and

31 December 2012

2013 2012

£m Em

Total borrowings 6256 8080

Less net cash and cash equivalenis (note 18) (410 4) {652 2)

Net borrowing 2152 1558

Total equity 9836 1,0095

Total capital 1,198 8 1,165 3

28 Financial and capital commstments

2013 201

£m Em

Commitments for equity and subordinated debt investments in PPP special purpose entties 954 856
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

2013 2012

Property Qther Froperty Other

£m £m £m fm

Within one year 131 209 138 196

Between one and five years in 330 342 281

Qver five years 190 t1 221 17

642 550 701 494

The Group leases properties and vehicles for operanonal purposes Property leases vary considerably in length up to a maximum period of
99 years Vehicle leases typically run for a period of four years None of the leases includes contingent rentals
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The Group has related party relationships with its key management personnel and jointly controlled entisies

Transactions with key management personnel

The Group s key management personnel are the Executive and Non-Executive Directors asidentified in the Remunerauon Report on page 61

In addition to their salanes, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to Executive Directors, and contributes to a post-employment defined

benefit plan or a defined contribution plan on their behalf Executive Directors also parucipate in the Group’s share option programme

2013 2012

im £m

Short term employee benefits 23 18
Post employment benefits 01 o]
Share based payments 01 02
25 17

The number of key management personnel included in the above analysis is seven (2012 seven)

Transactions with jointly controlled entities

The 1able below summarises the principal receivable and payable balances together with sales to the Group's jointly controlled enuties which

are in the normat course of business and on commeraal terms

2013 2012
Sales Receivables Payables Sales Recesvables Payables
£m Em Em £m £m fm
PPP jointly controlled entities
CSS{FSCC) Partnership (Canada) 239 12 - 1777 228 -
The Hospital Company (Southmead} Ltd 953 166 o 1324 a8 -
COE (CAMH) Limited Partnership (Canadal 16 07 - m6 11 -
Inspiredspaces Wolverhampton Lid 687 86 (4 3) 71 15 -
Holdfast Training Services Ltd 438 - - 494 - 64)
Inspiredspaces Durbam Ltd 288 60 - 407 66 -
Inspiredspaces Rochdale Ltd 192 02 02} 368 01 (21
Inspiredspaces Noitingham Ltd 129 27 {4 0} 270 - 30
The Healthcare Infrastructure Company
of Canada {(WOHC) Inc (Canadal - - - 260 28 -
Healthcare Infrastructure Pariners INOH) Partnership 76 4 139 - - - -
Inspiredspaces STAG Lid 16 15 1 247 - (O 4}
Eastbury Park Lid 02 - - 245 12 -
Inspiredspaces Wolverhampton [Projectcol) Lid 03 06 - 146 10 -
Inspiredspaces Tameside Lid 43 13 20} 125 - (i6)
Inspiredspaces Rochdale {Projectco?) Ltd Nne 05 12} n3 - -
Chrucenta {Hertfordshire} Ltd - - - 77 22 -
The Healthcare Infrastructure Company of Canada (ROH} In¢ 62 04 - 60 c3 -
Inspiredspaces Nottingham (Projectco2) Lid nsa 03 - 52 - -
Inspiredspaces Tameside (Projecico?} Lid - - - 38 - -
LCED {Sault) Limuied Partnership {Canada) 35 03 - 35 - -
Integrated Accommodation Services Lid 45 184 - 25 159 -
inspiredspaces Tameside {Projectcoll Ltd - 01 - 17 13 -
inspiredspaces Rochdale {Projectcol) Lid 07 - - 1 - -
inspiredspaces STAG {Projectco2} Lid 11 - - 09 - 02
Inspiredspaces Durham {Projectcol) Lid - - - G4 - -
The Hospital Company (Liverpool) Ltd 269 04 (4 5) - - -
Carillion Eliel Jv Lid 19 - - - - -
Yorkshire Transformaticn Holdings Lid 36 - - - - -
Integrated Accomodation Services plc 18 - - - - -
Qther 02 - - 62 08 -
4608 737 270) 8013 674 {137
Other jointly controlled entities
Vanmed Construction Company (Canada) s 12 - 1915 161 -
CarilkonEnierprise Lid 100 37 (02) 167 21 -
Modern Housing Solutions (Prime]) Lid 16 o1 - 138 - -
Canllon Richardson Worcester - - - 23 04 -
Al Fuitaim Carillion LLC (UAE) 40 66 {60) g0 0s (336)
Canfion Richardson Partnership - 181 - - 154 -
Canltion Richardson Partnership Thanet Phase 2 Lid - - 5N - - -
Others - 54 (10 5) 38 58 {80
486 2 108 8 (48 8) 988 4 1077 {55 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

30 Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions tn 2013

On 18 October 2013, the Group acquired the entire share capnal of John Laing Integrated Services {JLIS) for a cash consideraton of £17 5 million
The consideration pawd i1s shown in the cash flow statement within acquisiion of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired after deducung cash on the
acquisition balance sheet, amounting to £4 1 millon The provisional assessment of goodwill and intangible assets ansing on the acquisition
amounts to £4 3 miulhon and £27 2 milhon respectively The acquisiion complements the Group’s existing suppeort services activities in the UK
local government education, police, health, rad and library sectors Due to the immatenial nature of this acquisiion, the full disclosures required
under International Financial Reporting Standard 3 ‘Business combinattons’ have not been presented

During 2013 the Group paid in cash the second instalment relating to the acquisition of the Bouchier Group which completed in 2012, amounting
to £6 9 million This amount has been included in the cash tlow staterment within acquisition of subsicdharies net of cash acquired

Acquisitions in 2Q12

On H December 2012 the Group acquired a 49 per cent equity shareholding in the Bouchier Group Due 1o the proxamity of the acquisition to
the 2012 year end a provisional assessment was made of the fair value of consideration payable and the net assets acquired leading to the
recogmtion of provisional goodwill of £20 & million Following the finahsation of the completion accounts process in 2013, the provisional
amounts m 2012 have been adjusted leading to the recognition of revised goodwili on the acquisition of £16 7 milhion as shown below

£m
Provisional goodwill 208
Reduction i consideration payable (29)
Changes to provisional fair value adjustments (18
Intangible assets idenified 06
Revised goodwill 167

As the adjustments 1o the provisional amounts recognised in 2012 are within the measurement period, prior year comparatives have been
restated accordingly leading 1o an (ncrease in net assets with a corresponding increase in non-controlling interests ameunting to £1 2 million

Disposals in 2013

In 2013, the Group disposed of equity interesis in a number of Public Privaie Parinership projects The disposals generated a cash consideration
of £151 2 muthon (of which £6 4 million was recerved on exchange of contracts in 2012), which rogether with disposal costs paid of £1 1 mullion s
included in the cash flow statement within disposal of jointly controlled entity and other investments, and an operating profit of £44 6 mullion
whichis included in Group cperating profit within the Public Private Partnership projects segment

During 2013, the Group made cash payments of £0 3 millsion in relation to the disposal of businesses that occurred in prior years

Disposals sn 2012

In 2012, the Group disposed of equity iInteresis in seven Public Private Partnership projects The disposals generated a cash consideration
of £34 8 milhon which is included in the cash flow statement within disposal of jointly controlled entity and other investments, and a profit of
£13 2 million which s ncluded in Group operanng profit within the Public Private Partnership projects segment

Inadditon, on 29 June 2012 the Group recerved cash proceeds of £6 4 milhion on exchange of contracts for the sale of an equity Inierest in a Public
Private Partnership project At 31 December 2012, alt the condiuons precedent had not been metin relation to the sale contract and therefore the
disposal of this equity Interest has not been recognised The proceeds received of £6 4 million have been recognised within disposal of joinily
controlled entity and other investments in the cash flow staterment Legal compleiion of the sale occurred inJanuary 2013 Proceeds of £2 6 million
from the disposal of equity Interests in land development jointly controlled entittes in Canada and £1 4 millon from the disposal of the Group’s
invesiment in HomeSun Holdings Limited are included in the cash flow statement within disposal of jointly controlled entity and other investments

The Group disposed of 11s equity interests in two small wholly owned subsidiartes duning 2012 for a 1otal cash consideratuon of £1 0 milhon inet of
expenses paid of £0 2 milhon) The net cash consideratnon recetved of £0 1 million {net of £6 9 million of cash in the subsidiaries seld} 1s included
in the cash flow statement within disposat and closure of businesses, together with cash payments of £3 9 milhon in relation to business closures
made in 2012 and 201

31 Retirement benefit obhigations

The Carillton Group operaies 15 defined benefit pension schemes for eligible employees, of which 13 are in the UK, one 15 in Canada and anes in
the Republic of Ireland In addiion, the Group provides other post retirement benefits under four separate arrangements in Canada The defined
benefit schemes are adrministered by Trustee Boards which largely comprise independent Trusiees together with Company and employee
representatives The assets of the schemes are held separately from the Company’s assets and are managed by the Trustee Boards Pension
scheme valuatons are carried out by Independent actuanes to determine pension costs for pension funding every three years and bi-annually to
calculate the IAS19 deficit included in the financial statements Eight of the 15 defined benefit schemes within the Group are closed to future accrual
with payments into these schemes made in ine with deficit recovery plans which have been agreed with pension scheme trusiees

The different scheme charactenstics can be summanised below

201 202

Assets Obligatiens Total Agsels Obliganons Total

£m £m Em £Em im £m

Schemes closed to future accrual 1,6461 (1,943 9) (297 8) 15708 (1,848 7} (2779}
Open schemes 4901 (553 4) (63 3} 4415 {505 5t {640}
Unfunded schemes® - (9 0 {90} - @i (5N

Total 2,136 2 (2,506 3) (370 1) 20123 (2363 3) (3510)




31 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The Group also operates defined contribution schemes for all qualifying employees The total cost charged to the Income statement of
£23 2milion (2012 £20 0 million) represents contnbunons payable 1o the schemes by the Group at rates specified by the scheme rules
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IAS 19 disclosures
The weighted average of the principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries in providing the 1AS 19 posiion were
2013 2012
UK Canada UK Canada
Rate of increase in salaries 390% N/A 340% N/A
Rate of increase in pensions 330% 225% 290% 225%
Inflation rate - (Retail Price Index) 340% 2 25% 290% 225%
Inflation rate - (Consumer Price Index) 235% N/A 205% N/A
Discount rate 460% 460% 455% 4 35%

The valuation of defined benefit pensian scheme habiliies in particular, i most sensitive 10 changes in the discount, inflation and mortality rates
A 0 1per cent reduction in the the discount rate would increase scheme habiliies by approximately £44 milhon, whilst a O 1 per cent increase

in the inflation rate would increase scheme habilities by approximately £36 milllion An increase of one year to the mortality rate would increase
scheme liabilities by approximately £59 mullion, although this has been mitigated in part through the purchase of alongevity swap

The overall weighted average duration of scheme liabilities as at 31 December 2013 1s approximately 18 years Over the next five years benefits of
£512 7 million are expected 1o be paid and benefits of £602 6 million are expected to be paid over the subsequent five year period

The market values of the schemes assets, which are notintended to be reahsed in the short term, may be subjectto significant change before
they are realised The present values of the schemes’ liabilities are calculated by reference to the investment return on Grade AA corporate bonds

The assumptons used do not necessarily represent the investment return that may be achieved

The hie expectancies at 65 for males aged 45 65 for all schemes are shown below

Lite
expectancies
tyears)

Retired member {currently 65 years) 217-270
Non retired member (currently 45 years) 198 251
Expense recognised in the Income statement
2013 20127
Em £m
Charge to operating profit
Current service cost relating to defined benefit schemes (6 0) (59
Administrative expenses relating to defined benefit schemes (52) (4 5)
Defined contribution schemes (23 2) (2000
Total {34 4) (30 4)
Financial expense
Net interest expense on defined benefit obligation (151} (13 8)
2013 2012%
Amounts recognised tn the statement of comprehensive income are as follows £m £m
The return on scheme assets, excluding amounts included in interest 796 808
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions N2 3) (223
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions my 1091
Actuarial gains anising from experience adjustments (20) 27
Movementin minimum funding requirement 34 (10 8)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit habihity (42 4) {587
The amountincluded in she balance sheetin respect of defined benefit schemes s as foliows 2013 012
£m fm
Present value of defined benefit abligation (2,498.9) (23525
Fair value of scheme assets 21362 20123
Mirumum funding requirement (74) {10 8}
Net penston hability {370 1) (351 0}
Schemes in surplus {within nen current assets) 38 o7
Schemes in deficit fwithin non-current iabilimes) (373 9) (3517
(3701) (3510}
Relaied delerred tax asset 750 811
Net pension hability after tax {295 1) (269 9}

{l) Restated onadoption of the amendment 1o IAS 19 {see note 34)

Z/-8€ 9DUBUIIAOD i £€-£T 9OUBULIO}IA] zz-90 £3ajeng | 90-10 MIIAIIAQD |

$ZI-EL s[eUBUI ‘



no
Carillion plc Annual Report and Accounts 2013

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

31 Retirement benefit obligations (contnued)
Reconciliation of net defined beneht obhgation

2013 202
im Im
Defined benefit obligation at | January 3510) (305 8}
Acquisition of John Laing Integrated Services (03) -
Defined benefit costs included in the income statement (26 3) {24 2}
Remeasurementis included in other comprehensive income (42 4) (587)
Contributions from employer 489 374
Effect of movements on exchange rates 10 03
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December (370 1) (3510)
2013 2012
Em £m
Changes in defined benefit obligation
Obhgatuon at1]anuary (2,352 5) (2,2037)
Acquisition of john Laing Integrated Services {36) -
Current service cost (60} (59)
Interest cost (105 4) (103 6)
Contributions from scherme members {0 8) [08)
Remeasurements {gains/losses)

Actuanal losses ansing from changes in demographic assumpuions (12 3) {223)

Actuanal losses arising from changes in financial assumptions mm {1091

Actuartal losses arising from experience adjustments (20) 27
Benefits paid 925 895
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates 23 07
Cblhigation at 31 December {2,498 9) (2,3525)
The defined benefit obligation analysed by pariicipant status s shown below

2013 2012
Defined Detined
benefit benefit
of bligatl Number of obligaton
members im members Em
Active 942 (165 9) 1133 {145 4)
Deferred 16,764 {1,343 6) 16787 (12224)
Pensioners 1,079 (989 4) 11,241 9847
. 28,785 {2,498 9) 29,161 {2,352 5)
2013 2012
£m Em

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets
Fair value at  January 201213 18979
Acquision of john Laing Integrated Services 33 -
Interest iIncome 903 898

Remeasurements (gains/losses)

Return on scheme assets {excluding amounts included in netinterest expense) 796 808
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets (52) (45)
Contributions from the employer 489 374
Coninbunons from schemne members o8 08
Benefits paid {92 5} (89 5)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange rates (13} (04}
Fair value at 31 December 21362 20123
The mayor categories and fair values of scheme assets as at 31 December 2013 are as follows

2013 2012
31 December 2013 £m Em
Equities 1,0308 8936
Corporale bonds 604 4 6409
Government bonds 3785 3566
Real estaie 185 776
Cash and cash equivalents 408 410
Other 32 26
Market value of scheme assets 2,136 2 20123
Present value of funded scheme obligation (2,489 9) {2,343 4)
Present value of unfunded scheme obligaton 90 91
Minimum funding requirement (74) {10 8}
Total deficit {3701} 3510
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31 Retirement benefit obligations (conunued)
The actual return on plan assets was £164 7 mithon (2012 £166 1 milkon)

The Group expects to make a contribution of £44 7 million {2012 £37 4 milhon} to the defined benefit schemes during the next financial year

Alongewity swap has been entered into by five of the Group’s defined benefit schemes which insures the Group against the hinancial risk of
pensioners in paymen: iving longer than currently expected The swap covers around 9,000 pensioners with a combined hability of some
£lbillion, which represents around 40 per cent of the total habilities in respect of the Group’s defmed benefit schemes The swap was entered
into th December 2013 and 1n accordance with the amendment 1o IAS 19 'Retirement benefits’ has been recogmised as part of scheme assets
Atincepution the swap 1s recogrsed at far value using market longevity and discount rate assumptions in accordance with IFRS13 ‘Fair value
measurement Assuch at 31 December 2013 the far value of the longewvity swap was assessed as nil as the swap was entered intc on an
arms length basis and no premium was paid In future periods the Group will re evaluate the fair value of the longewity swap with the
movement in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

32 Accounting estimates and judgements
Management has discussed with the Audit Committee the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates and the application of these policies and estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of esumaton uncertamnty at the balance sheet date, that have a sigmficant risk
of causing a matenal adjustiment 1o the carrying amounis of assets and habiliues within the next financial year are discussed below

Revenue recognition

In determining the revenue and costs to be recognised each year for work done on consiruction contracts, estimates are made in relation to final

out turn on each contract On major construction contracts It 1s assessed, based on past experience, that their outcome cannot be esumated reliably
during the early stages of the contract, but that costs incurred will be recoverable Once the outcome can be estimated rehably the esumates of final
out turn on each contract may mclude cost contingencies to take account of the specific risks within each contraci that have been identified during the
early stages of the contraci The cost contingencies are reviewed on a regular basis throughout the contract hfe and are adjusted where appropriate
However, the nature of the risks on contracts are such that they often cannot be resolved unnl the end of the project and therefore may notreverse
unul the end of the project Management continually reviews the estimated final out-turn on contracis and makes adjustments where necessary

Inrespect of icensing revenue a number of judgements are made by management in determining whether the criteria (as stated in the company’s
accounting policies ‘note 1) have been met in order to allow for the full iImmediate recognion of the sale income These jJudgements may involve
the estumation of the fair value of future royalty income recervable based en which managementwill assess whether the licence sale revenue
should be recognised immediately or spread over a period consistent with the bife of the technology or other appropriate measure The assessment
of that future royalty revenue siream relies on forecast data and a number of variables which are outside of Carillion’s conirol, and hence
judgemenital The licence revenue recognised in the year {see note 2} related to amounts recogrsed mmediately, given that conungent revenues
ansmgin fulure periods from these icensing activities were assessed as not significant

intangible assets
In determining the fair value of identfiable assets, labilines and contingent habilities of businesses acquired, judgement 1s required in relation to
final cut-turn on contracts, discount rates and expected future cash flows and profitability

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired requires an estmation of the future cash flows expecied to anse from the cash-generating unit
to which the intangible assets are aitached Note 11 provides details of the carrying value of intangible assets

Retirement benefits
In determurung the valuaton of defined benefit pension scheme assets and hiabiliies a number of key assumptions, which are largely dependent
on factors outside the control of the Group, have been made inrelanon to

> Expected return onplan assets
> Inflation rate

> Mortality

> Discountrate

» Salary and pension increases

Details of these assumprions used, together with sensitvity analysis an the discount rate and inflation rate are included in note 31

Deferred tax

In determining the quantum of deferred tax assets 1o be recognised judgement is required in assessing the extent to which itis probable that future
taxable profitwill anse i the comparnes concerned Management use forecasts of future taxable prohts and make assumptions on growth rates for
each entity at each year end in assessing the recoverability of assets recognised

33 off-balance sheet arrangements
The Group s party to a number of contractual arrangements for the purposes of the Group’s principal acvities that are not required to be included
on the Group balance sheet The principal off balance sheet arrangements that the Group are party to are as follows,

> operating leases (see note 28)

> pledged assets securing finance lease habilines (see note 10 and 1}

*» contingentliabilities in respect of guarantees for deferred equity payments and performance contracts in PPP special purpose entines
{see note 26)

> capital commitments for capital expendiiure and equity and subordinated debt in PPP special purpose entuies (see note 28}

> outsourcing coniracts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

34 Change of accounting policy
Upon the adoption of the amendment to I1AS 19 on 1 January 2013, the Group has restated prior period informauen which has had the following
impact on reported profit and earnings per share

Income statement
Year ended 31 December 2012

fm £m
Profit betore tax as previousty reported 1795
Impact of amendment to IAS 19
- operating profit {4 5)
- netfinancial expense 10 2}
147
Profit before tax restated 1648
Taxation as previcusly reported 133
Impact ol amendmeni to 1AS 19 34
Taxation restated {9 9)
Profit afier tax restated 1549
Pence per
Earnings per share share
Basic earnings per share as previously reported 372
Impact of amendmentto [AS19 (26
Basic earnings per share restated 346
Diluted earnings per share as previously reported 370
impaci of amendment 10 tAS 19 {2 6]
Diluted earnings per share restated 344

The amendment to IAS 19 has alse reduced underlying earmings per share by 2 6 pence for the year ended 31 December 2012

Statement of comprehensive iIncome
Year ended 31 Decernber 2012

Deferred

Remeasurements Tax

fm fm

As previously reported (73 4) na
Impact of amendment to IAS 19 147 (34)
As restated (587} 84

As described in note 1, the amendment to I1AS 19 has changed the accounuing for defined benefit schemes and termination benefits The interest
cost and expected return on scheme assets used in the previous version of IAS 19 have been replaced with a‘netinterest” amount which s
calculated by applying a discount raie to the net defined benefit obligation This amendmenthas a corresponding impact on remeasurements
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income with no overall change to the net retrement benefithability in the balance sheet
Furthermore, certain costs previously recorded as part of finance expenses have now been presented within adminisirative expenses
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35 Principal subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and jointly controlled operations
A list of significant invesiments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and jornily controlled operanions including the name, country of

incorporation and proportion of cwnership interestis given below

Except where shown, all subsidiary underiakings and jointly controlled entites are incorporated in Great Britain and operate in the UK
All holdings are of ordinary shares and except where shown, all subsidiary undertakings are 100% owned (with equivalent voting rights)
and jointly controlled enuties and jointly controlled operations are 50% owned Shares of those undertakings marked with an asienisk are

directly owned by Canllion plc

Principal subsidiary undertakings

Carillion (AMBS) Lid

Carilhon {Aspire Construction} Holdings No 2 Lid
Carilhon {Aspire Services) Haldings No 2 Lid
Carilon Alawi LLC (Oman) 49%

Carillvon Canada Inc (Canada}

Canllion CR Lid

Carillion Construction Lid *

Carillion Energy Services Lid *

Carillion Fleet Management Lid *

Canllion LGS Ltd ¥

Carillion Prvate Finance Lid ®

Carillion Services Ltd *

Sovereign Hospital Services Lid

The Bouchier Group (Canada) 49%

Canillion Integrared Services Lid {formerly Jobn Laing Integrated Services Ltd)

Principal jointly controlled entities

Public Private Partnerships

Accommodanion Services (Holdings) Lid 20%

CSS (FSCCY Partnership {Canadal

COE (CAMH) Lirited Partnership {(Canada)

HIP {NOH) Limited Parinershup {Canadal 40%
Inspiredspaces Notingham (Holdings2) Lid 80%
inspiredspaces Rochdale (Holdings 2} Lid 80%
LCED {Sauh) Limited Partnership 25% {Canada)
Road Managemeni Serwvices {Al3} Holdings Lid 25%
The Healthcare Inlrastructure Company of Canada (ROH) Inc {(Canada)
The Hospital Company {Southmead) Holdings Ltd
UK Highways AS5 (Holdings) Ltd

The Hospnal Company (Liverpool) Holdings Ltd

Other Public Private Partnership Investments
Inspiredspaces Durham (Holdingsl) Lid 8%
Inspiredspaces STaG (Holdings!) Ltd 4 4%
Inspiredspaces Rochdale (Holdings)) Lid 8%
Inspiredspaces STaG (Holdings2] Ltd 4 4%
Inspiredspaces Nottingham [Holdings) Lid 8%
Insprredspaces Tameside (Holdingsl) Lid 8%
Inspiredspaces Tameside (Holdings2) Ltd 8%
Inspiredspaces Wolverhampton {Holdings1) Lid 8%

Others

Al Futtaim Canlhon LLC {UAE) 49%
CarillionEnterprise Ltd 501%

Cardion Richardson Parinerstup

Emrill Services LLC (UAEY® 33%

Modern Housing Solutions (Prime} Ltd 67%
Servus ttd (Trinidad & Tobago)

Jontly controlled operations

Name propartion of interest held and address of principal place of business

Carillion telent Joint Venture 60%
Carillion URS Joint Venture 70%

Canlhon WSP |V 60%

Nature of business

Faclines management

Miltary accommeodaton at Aldershot and Salisbury Plain
Facilines management

Buwlding and civil engineening

Construction and infrastructure services

Holding company for property development
Construcnion and infrastructure services

Renewable energy support services

Supply and maintenance of vehicles

Roads and ground maintenance and reparr

Holding company for PPP project compames

Facilnies management

Facilwies managemeni in the healthcare sector

Reoad maintenance, infrastruciure services and facihties management
Facilwes managemeni

Associated project

GCHO Cheltenham

Forensic Services and Coroners’ Complex, Toronto
Centre for Addiction and Menital Health Toronto
New Qakwville Hospital Halton

Nottingham Schools Phase 2

Rochdale Schoals Phase 2

Sault Area Hospiial Canada

Al13 Thames Gateway

Royal Ottawa Hospital Canada

Southmead Hospital Bristol

A55 North Wales

Royal Liverpool University Hospital

Lurham Schools

South Tyneside and Gateshead Schools {Jarrow)
Rochdale Schools Phase 1

South Tyneside and Gateshead Schools (South Shields}
Notungham Schools Phase §

Tameside Schools Phaset

Tameside Schools Phase 2

Wolverhampion Schools Phase |

Nature of business

Building and civitengineering
Ministry of Defence buiddings
Property Development
Facilimes management
Minisiry of Defence housing
Facilwes managemeni

Hayward Road Warwick, England

Pytchley Maintenance Compound, Pegasus Court Kettening South
Business Park, Kettering, Northamptonshrre, England

Bradford, West Yorkshire, England

A complete hist of Group subsidiary undertakings will be aitached to the Company‘s annual return to the Registrar of Companies
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2013

As at 31 December 2013

2013 2012
Nate £m Em
Fixed assets
Investments In subsidiary undertakings and joint vertures 3 15661 1,5661
Current assets
Debiors 4 9301 1,0240
Cash atbank and in hand 146 466
9447 1,070 6
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 5
Borrowing (m 3) 33}
Other creditars (711 6} {5981)
(722 9) 6114)
[Net currentassets 2218 4592]
Total assets less current habilities 1,787 9 2,0253
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowing 6 {5797 {7629)
Net assets 1,208 2 1,262 4
Financed by
Capital and reserves
Issued share capnal 7 2151 2151
Share premium 8 212 22
Merger reserve 8 6187 6187
Hedging reserve 8 (8 0) (50}
Otherreserve 8 92 92
Profit and loss account 8 3520 403 2
Equity shareholders’ funds 9 1,208 2 1,262 4

The financial statements were approved by the Bdardef Directors on 5 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

JWlo

Richard Adam FCA

Group Finance Director
5March 2014
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Significant accounting polictes

The iollowing accounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
Company’s financial statements

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterhng They are
prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments which are stated at fair value, and in accordance with
applicable UK accounting standards and law

Taxation

Deferredtax assets or habilities arise from uming differences between
the recogruton of gains and losses in the financial statements and
their recognition in the tax computation that have arisen but not
reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required by
FRS 19 'Deferred tax’ Liabilities are calculated on a non discounted
full provision basis Assets are calculated on the same basss, but

are recogrised only 1o the exieni thatitis probable that they will

be recovered

Fixed assetinvestments

Inthe Company’s finanaial statements, investments in subsidiary
undertakings and joint ventures are stated at cost, less provision for
any |mpa|rmem

Leasing

The Company enters into finance lease arrangements on behalf of
subsidiary companies As permitied by SSAP 21 ‘Accounung for leases
and hire purchase contracts’, the assets relaung to the finance leases
are includedin the financial statements of the substdiaries concerned
The capital element of outstanding finance leases 15 Included within
borrowings The finance charge element of rentalsis charged to the
profitand loss account at a constant periodic rate of charge onthe
outstanding obligations

Own shares

Consideration paid for shares in the Company held by the Employee
Share Cwnership Plan (ESOP) Trust are deducted from the profit and
loss accountreserve Where such shares subsequently vest in the
employees under the terms of the Company’s share option schemes
ar are sold, any consideration received 1s included in the profit and
loss accountreserve

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
sterling and recorded using the exchange rate prevalling at the date
ofthe transaction

Financial instruments

The Company’s principal financial assets and habilities are cash at bank
and inhand and borrowings Cash atbank andin hand s carried inthe
balance sheet at amorused cost Borrowings are recognised inimally
atfair value less attnbutable transaction costs and subsequently at
amorused cost In additon, the Company enters into forward contracis
in order to hedge against small and infrequent iransactional foreign
currency exposures In cases where these derivative iInstruments are
significant, hedge accounting 1s applied Where hedge accounting is not
applied, movemnents in fair value during the year are recognised in the
profitand loss account Fair values are based on quoted market prices
atthe balance sheet date The Company has taken the exemption within
FRS 29 ‘Financial Instruments Disclosure’ and does not present all of
the required disclosures as they are included in the consoldated
finangial statements of which the Company is the parent

Share-based payments

Members ofthe Group’s senior management team are entitled to
parucipate in the Leadership Equity Award Plan [LEAP} and UK
employees are able to participate in the Sharesave scheme Under
the terms of the Group’s bonus arrangements, Executive Directors
and certain semor employees receive a praportion of therr bonus in
shares, which are deferred for a peniod of up to three years

The fair value of the shares for the LEAP, Sharesave and deferred bonus
arrangements at the date of grant are esnmated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model The fair value determined at grant date 1s expensedona
straight-line basts over the period in which any performance condiions
are fulfilled ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entiiled to the award (vesung date}

Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the employees
of its subsidiaries, it recogrises in nis ndnadual financial staternents an
increase In the cost of Invesiment 10 1ts subsidiaries equivalent to the
equity setiled share based payment charge recognised inits consolidated
financial statements with the corresponding credit being recognised
directly in equity Amounts rechargedto the subsidiary are recognised
as a reduction in the cost of the investment in the subsidiary If the
amount recharged exceeds the increase in the cost of iInvestment the
excess is recognised as a dividend to the extent that it reflects
post-acquisitton profits of the subsidiary

The Company also operates a Share Incentve Plan (SIP} under which
qualfying Carllion Energy Services partners may receive free shares
The fair value of the free shares are recognised as a dividend to the
extent that it reflects post acquisinon profits of the subsidiary

To the extent that share based payment costs incurred by the Company
are funded by the Eaga Partnership Trust (EPT) through the watver
of its entitlement to Canllion plc dividends, the associated charges
are treated in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies

Financial guarantee contracts

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee coniracts to
guarantee the indebtedness of subsidiary companies, the Company
considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them
as such In this respeci, the Company treats the guarantee contract as
a contingent iability untd such trme asitbecomes probable that the
Company will be required to make a payment under the guaraniee

Retirement benefit obligations

Pension costs are recognised in the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement benehts’ Employees of
the Company participate in the Cardlicn ‘Staff’ and ‘B’ schemes which
provide pensions on a defined benefitbasis The assets and habihties of
these schemes relating to the Company cannot be readly ascertained
on areasonable and consistent basis as the schemes are operated

for the benefit of the Carthon Group as awhole Consequently, the
Company accounts for these schemes as if they were defined contribunon
schemes Details of the Group’s pension schemes are disclesed in
note 31 of the consolidated financial statements

Cash flow statement
A cash flow statement has not been presented as permitted by FRS |
{revised) ‘Cash flow statements’

2 Profit for the year and dividends

As permitted by the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected
not to present its own profit and loss account for the year Canllion plc
reported a profit for the financta! year ended 31 December 2013 of
£24 7 milhon (2012 £143 4 million)

Fees patd to KPMG Audit Plc and its associates for non-audt services
to the Company iiself are not disclosed in the individual accounts of
Canllion plc because the Company’s consahdated accounts are
required to disclose such {ees on a consolidated basis

A fhinal dividend, declared in the previous year, of 11 85 pence
(2012 116 pencel per share was paid dunng ithe year amounting
o £51 0 milion (2012 £48 5 milion)
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Notes to the Company financial statements

continued

2 Profit for the year and dividends (continued)

Aninterim dividend of 5 5 pence (2012 5 4 pence) per share was paid during the year amounting to £23 6 milion (2012 £219 millicn)

A final dividend of 12 O perice {2012 11 85 pencel per share amounting to £516 m:llion {2012 £51 0 million}, was approved by the Board
on 5 March 2014 and, subject to approval by shareholders atthe Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 13 June 2014 to sharehelders on the

register on 16 May 2014

3 Investments

Subsidiary Joint
undertakings ventures Total
Em Em Em
Cost
At1january 2013 and 31 December 2013 1,576 5 02 1,576 7
Impairment losses
At1January 2013 and 31 December 2013 106 - 106
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 1,565 9 02 1,566 1
At 31 Decermnber 2012 1,5659 02 1,566 1
The principal subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures of the Company are shown on page 113
4 Debtors
2013 2012
£m fm
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 914 4 1,013 2
Other debtors and prepayments 07 -
Amounts owed by joint ventures 07 07
Dervative financial instruments 22 04
Income tax 121 97
Total debtors 9301 1,024 0
5 Creditors amounts falling due within one year
2013 2012
£Em £m
Bank overdrafts 39 56
Bank loans 74 75
Otherloans - 02
Borrowing n3 133
Other creditors - 46
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 6803 5678
Amounts owed to joint ventures 47 56
Amounts cwed tc JANEs 100 100
Other tax and social secunity cosis 02 02
Dervative financial instruments 132 71
Accruals and deferred income 32 28
Total creditors 7229 6114

All bank overdrafts and loans are unsecured
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6 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
2013 2012

£m Em
Bank loans 276 0 4561
Other loans 3037 3068
5797 7629
All bank and other loans are unsecured
The maturity profile of all borrowings is disclosed in note 13 on page 19
7 Share capital
Issued and fully paid
203 2012
Numbar Number
millien £m rillion £m
At January and 31 December 4303 2151 4303 2151
8 Reserves
Share Profit
premium Merger Hedging Other andicss
account reserve reserves reserves account Total
£m m im £m £Em Em
At January 2013 212 6187 {50) 92 403 2 1,0473
Profit for the year - - - - 247 247
Fair value movement on cash flow hedging dervatives - - 61 - - 61
Reclassificanon of effective portion of cash flow hedging
dervatives to profit - - 1n - - 31
Acqusition of own shares - - - - {14) {1 4}
Equity settted transactions {net of tax} - - - - 01 o1
Dividend paid to shareholders - - - - (74 6) (74 6}
At 31 December 2013 212 6187 (8 0) 92 3520 9931

The profit and loss account reserve includes the reserve for the Company s own shares which comprises of the cost of the Company’s shares held
by the Carillion Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP} The shares held by the ESOP may subsequently be awarded tc employees under the
Group’s share incentive schemes The movements in the reserve for own shares included wiahin retained earnings are as follows

2013 2012
£m Em
Atljanuary - {02}
Share options exerased {transfer to retained earmings} 14 14
Acqursition of own shares {14) (12)
At 31 December - .

At 31 December 2013 the ESOP held 7 (2012 250} of the Company’s shares and had a market value of £23 (2012 £793) During the year the
Company acquired 471,407 of its own shares for £1 4 million to meetthe plan's commiiments The ESOP has elected to wave alt dwvidends except
for atotal payment of 1 pence at the tme each dividend 1s paid

In addition to the ESOP, the Company has also established a Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust { Quest’) A131 December 2013, the total

number of shares held by the QUEST amounted to 84,593 (2012 129 979) and had a marketvalue of £0 4 rmillion {2012 £0 4 mullion) The QUEST
has efecied 1o waive all dividends in excess of 0 O1 pence per share

9 Reconciliation of movement in sharehoiders’ funds

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit for the year 247 1434
Equity seitled transactions {net of tax} o1 23
Farr value movement on cash flow hedging dervatives 61) (71)
Reclassification of eftective portion of cash flow hedging derwatives to profit kR 21
Acawsition of own shares n4) (12}
Dividends pad to sharehotders {74 6) (70 4)
Netreduction to shareholders’ funds 542 691
Shareholders funds at January 1,262 4 11933
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 1,208 2 1,262 4
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Notes to the Company financial statements

continued

10 Other guarantees and contingent habihities

2013 2002

Em £m
Guarantees in respect of borrowings of subsidianes 231 05
Guarantees in respect of borrowing in Construction services lexcluding the Middle East) jointly controlled entities 31 02
Guarantees in relaton to deferred equity payments in PPP special purpose entiues 981 882
Guarantees in respect of letters of credit issued by banks in relauon to performance contracts for PPP customers g8 892

The Company hasissued performance guarantees in respect of its subsidiaries, joint ventures and joint arrangements in the normal course
of business

Guarantees and counter iIndemmities have, in the normal course of business, been given to financial insututions in respect of the prowvisions of
performance and other contract related bonds and to cerrain defined benefit pensions in respect of deficit recovery payments The Company
considers such guarantees and counter indemmines to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such The Company treats guaraniees
and counter indemruties of this nature as conungent habiliies unnl such nme as it becomes probable that the Company will be required 1o make a
payment under the terms of the arrangement

11 Pension arrangements

As the Carillion Staff and ‘B’ defined benefit schemes are run for the Canllion Group as a whole, the Company 1s unable to rdentify its share of the
schemes’ assets and labilmes on a consistent and reasonable basis Hence, as permitted by FRS 17, the schemes are accounted for by the Company
separately asfthe schermes were defined contribution schemes Detads of the Group’s pension schemes are disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements

12 Share-based payments

The Group has established a share option programme that entitles key management personnel and senier employees to shares in the Company
Detatls of the Group’s share option programme are disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and in the Remuneration Report
on pages 5310 68

13 Financial instruments
Details of the Company’s principal inancial instruments are discussed under accounting policies The numerical financial instrument disclosures
are set out below

Derivative financial instruments

2013 2012

Assets Uabilities Assets. Liabiities

fm £m Em £m

Forward foreign currency contracis and options - at fair value through profit and loss 22 - 04 -
Fixed-rate interest derivatives - cash flow hedging instruments - (25) - -
Cross-currency derivatives - cash flow hedging instruments - (107) - 71
Foreign currency exposure 22 (13 2) 04 {71)

The cross currency derivatives hedge the exposure to foreign exchange rate volatlity in relation to the capital and mnterest payments on United
States of America Dollar denomunated private placement financing The fixed interest rate denvauves hedge the exposure to Interest rate
movements on borrowangs with floaung rates of interest

The carrying amount of the Company’s borrowing denominated in foreign currency is as follows

2013 2012

£m Em

Unsted States of America Dollar (184 Q) 188 6)
Canadian Dollar {56 4) 60 7)
United Arab Emirates Dirham 74) {75)
Other {0 5) (30)
(248 3} {259 8)

Of the total foreign currency borrowing of £248 3 million (2012 £259 8 million) the amount of borrowing used for hedging currency net asset of
overseas operavons of the Group amounts of £78 4 million (2012 £83 7 mullion) The foreign exchange gam of £3 3 mihon {202 £1 5 milien gain)
on translanon of the borrowing into sterling has been recognised in the hedging reserve as these hedging loans are etfective hedges
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Maturity of financial habihities
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The maturity profile of the Company s non-current borrowing, which includes esumated future interest payments, 1s as lollows

Bank Bank Other

overdrafts loans loans Total

31 December 2013 £m £m &m £m
Between one and two years - 57 139 196
Between two and three years - 57 139 196
Between three and four years - 57 284 341
Between four and five years - 2774 n7 2891
More than five years - - 3247 3247
More than one year - 294 5 3926 6871
Less than one year 39 131 139 309
39 3076 406 5 78 0

Bank Bank Qther

overdrafts laang lzans Total

31 December 2012 £m £m £m £m
Between one and iwo years - a5 141 236
Between two and three years - 95 141 236
Between three and four years - 458 5 141 4726
Between four and five years - - 293 293
More than five years - - 3393 3393
More than one year - 4175 4109 8884
Less than one year 56 170 143 369
56 494 5 425 2 9253

Borrowing facihties

The Company had the following undrawn comrtted borrowing facdity available at the year end 1n respect of which all conditions precedent had

been met
2013 2012
£m £m
Expinng within one year 75 74
Expiring between two and five years 5430 2812
5505 288 6

14 Related party transactions

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 8 ‘Related party transactions’ the Company has taken the exemption to not disclose ransactions

with other wholly owned subsidiaries within the Canilion Group
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Shareholder information

Dividends

Dividends are normally paid twice ayear The proposed final dividend
In respect of the year to 31 December 2013 will be payable on

13 June 2014 to those shareholders on the register on 16 May 2014

A dividend remnvestment plan (DRIP) will also be offered

For those shareholders who prefer not 1o partucipate in the DRIP,
arrangements can be made to pay your dividends automatically
into your bank or building society account This service has a
number of benefts

> there is no chance of the dividend cheque going missing in
the post

» the diwvidend payment s received more quickly as the cashs paid
directly into your account on the payment date without the need to
wart for the cheque to clear, and

> youwill help Canllion to improve its efficiency by reducing printing
and cheque clearing costs

If you wish to register for this service please call Equimiti on the number
detalled below to request a dividend mandate form

Results
Half-year to 30 June 2014 announced August 2014
Full yearto 31 December 2014 announced March 2015

Shareholder enquiries

Equinit maintain the share register of the Company If you have any
queries concerning your shareholding or if any of your details change,
please contact Equinit

Equimiti
Aspect House
Lancing

Wesl Sussex
BNGS 6DA

Telephone 0871384 2522%
Texiphone for shareholders with hearing difficulties 0871 384 2255
Non-UK callers should dial +44(0) 121 415 7047

Lines are open 8 30am 1o 5 30pm, Monday to Friday

¥ Callsto this number cosi eight pence per minute plus network extras

Warning to shareholders - Boiler room scam

Caridlion 1s aware that shareholders have received unsolicited
telephone calls from fraudulent orgamsanons offering to buy Carition
ple shares at a substantal premium to the prevailing market price
These calls are usually from overseas organisations targeting UK
shareholders These operations are commonly known as ‘boiler room
scams’ and the ‘brokers’ who call shareholders can be extremely
persuasive and persistent

Boiler room scams usually come out of the blue, with most fraudsters
cold calling investers after taking their details from publcly available
shareholder lists, but the high-pressure sales tactics can also come by
other means such as email er post The scam s designed to sound
attractive, but typically at some point in the process the perpetrator
usually asks for money in advance of concluding the main transaction,
{or example by way of a pre-payment or vendor bond The transaction
1s never concluded and the shareholder Joses the money

Share dealing service

Carill:on offers 1is UK shareholders, Shareview Dealing, a telephone
and internet share dealing service operated by Equini For telephone
purchases and sales call 0845 603 7037 between 8 30am and 4 30pm,
Manday to Fniday, or log on to www shareview co uk/dealing Forthe
sale of shares, youwill need your shareholder reference number as
shown onyour share certificate

Multiple accounts on the shareholder register

If you have received iwo or more sets of the documents concerning the
Annual General Meeting this means that there 1s more than one account
in your name on the shareholder register, perhaps because either your
name or your address appear on each accountin a shghily difterent
way For security reasons Equini will notamalgamate the accounts
without your written consent so 1f you would hke any multuple accounis
combined into one account, please write to Equinity at the address given
on page 12]

Shareview (electronic communications)

www shareview co uk s a service offered by Equimiti that enables
you to check your holdings in many UK companies and helps youto
organise your investments electronically You can also notify Equiniti
of a change of address or a change to dividend mandate instrucuons
You can register for this portfolio service which is easy to use secure
and free as long as you have access to the internet by logging on to
www shareview co uk and following a simple registration process

Electronic proxy appointments

For the AGM to be held on 7 May 2014, you may, if you wish,
register the appomiment of a proxy elecironically by logging on 1o
the website wosw sharevote co uk

You will need your voting reference numbers (the three 8-digit
numbers shown on your form of proxy} Alternatively, if you have
registered for a Shareview portioho log on to your portiolio at
www shareview co uk and chick on the ink ‘vote’ under your
Carnithon plc details then follow the on screen directions

Please note that any electronic communication that s found to
contain a computer virus will not be accepted

ShareGift

ShareGiftis a chanty share donation scheme for shareholders
administered by the Orr Mackintosh Foundation 111s especially for
those who may wish to dispose of a small parcel of shares whose
value makes it uneconomic to sell on a commission basis Further
informanon can be obtaned at www sharegift org or from Equiniti

If you receive an unsolicited investment approach you should

» confirm the correct names of the person calling and the
organisaton they represent,

» check that they are an authorised firm with the Financial
Conduct Authority {FCA) by calling 0845 606 1234 or by visiting
www fca org uk/regtster and contact the irm using the details
on the register,

> report the matter to the FCA by calling 0845 6061234 or by
visiing www fca org uk/consumers,

> ifthe calls persist, hangup

Please be aware that fraudsters will often use the name of a
legiimate organisation or organisations, somenmes in combination
with others so that the orgarusation may sound familar to you
They may have also created a scam websiie, sa simply checking
that an organisation appears to have a presence on the web 1s not

a guarantee that you are dealing with a legiimate organisation

Ifyou deal with an unauthorised firm, you wall noi be ehgible 10
recewve paymentunder the Financial Services Compensation Scheme

Ityou have already paid money 10 share fraudsters, you should contact
Aot A Cra A A N2AAITY AN AN
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Board of Directors and Advisers

Non-Executive Directors

Philip Rogerson {Chairman) B4

Philip Green {Senior Independent Non Executive Director) 1234
Andrew Dougal? 234

Alison Horner 1224

Steve Mogiford!224

Vanda Murray? 24

Executive Directors
Richard Howson {Group Chief Executive}™
Richard Adam (Group Finance Director)

1} Member ot the Audit Commutiee

{2} Member ofthe Remuneranon Committee
(3 Member clthe Nominauons Commitiee

(4} Member of the Business Integrity Commitiee

Secretary and Registered Office
Richard Tapp

24 Birch Street

Wolverhampton

WV14HY

Uniied Kingdom

T +44(0) 1902 422 43
F+44 {0} 1902 316165

www carilionplc com

Auditor

KPMG Audii Plc

QOne Snowhill

Snow Hill Gueensway
Birmingham

B4 6GH

Banker

National Westminster Bank plc
16 South Parade

Notutngham

NGI 21X

Joint Brokers
Margan Stanley
25 Cabot Square
Canary Wharf
London

El4 40A

Orel Secunties
150 Cheapside
London

EC2V 6ET

Financial Adviser
Lazard

50 Stratton Street
London

W1 BLL

Legal Adviser
Slaughter and May
One Bunhill Row
London

ECIY 8YY

Share Registrar
Equiniti
AspectHouse
Lancing

West Sussex
BNY99Y 6DA
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Five-year review

2013 20020 201" 20107 2009"

Group iIncome statement £m £m £m £m £m
Total revenue 4,0809 44028 50512 51390 56293
Analysed between
Support services 2,3009 23597 234572 21086 23895
Public Private Partnership projects 2369 2877 3098 319 418 4
iddle East construction services 4835 4736 5439 4330 5536
Constructnon services (excludmg the Middle East) 1,059 6 1,2818 1,8473 22255 2,2678
Underlying Group and jointly controlled entities’ operating profit

before intangible amortisation, imparment of goodwill

and otherinvestments, non-recurring operating items and

jointly controlled entities” net financial expense and taxation 2288 2456 2454 2262 2079
Analysed between
Support services 1ns o 1209 9o 1087 1161
Public Private Partnership projects 584 338 314 402 268
Middle East construction services 192 290 491 475 470
Construction services {excluding the Middle East) 444 724 579 412 309
Group elirminanons and unallocated items na2) (10 5} 120} {114) 129)
Share of jointly controlled entities” net financial expense non 16 Q) {18 8) {139 {218)
Share of jointly controlled entines’ taxation (4 4) {17) (35 47 (39
Underlying operating profit before intangible amortisation,

impairment of goodwill and other investments, and

non-recurring operating items 2143 2279 2231 2076 i82 2
Group net inancial expense {39 6) 1279) (18 6} (202) (18 0}
Underlying profit before tax 1747 2000 2045 1874 1642
Intangible amortisation arising from business combinations 19 2) {314} (310 {276) (30 8)
Non-recurning operating items {44 2) (26} (42 8} 94 052
Non-operating items o7 12} {69 - 103
Profit before taxation 1106 1648 1238 150 4 1285
Taxaton {4 3} {99 - {10 6) {9 4)
Profit for the year 1063 1549 1238 1398 1191
Group financial statistics
Underlying operating profit margin
Support services Percentage 51 51 51 52 49
Middle East construction services Percentage 40 6l 89 96 85
Censiruction services (excluding the Middle East) Percentage 42 56 31 19 14
Underlying operating profit margin
Total Group before share of jointly controlled entities’

net financial expense and taxation Percentage 56 56 49 44 37
Undertying profit from operations margin
Total Group Percentage 53 52 44 40 32
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2013 20127 20nm 2010" 2009
Group balance sheet m £m Em Em £m
Property, plant and equipment 128 2 1258 1342 157 2 168 2
Intangible assets 15528 15366 15476 1,2212 12413
Investments 1593 2379 2109 1767 1720

18403 1900 3 1,8927 1,5551 15815

Inventories, recervables and payables (327 6) {456 7) (607 4) {613 8) (608 0)
Net renrement benefit lability {net of deferred tax) (295 1) {2699) (229 3) (1821} 21
Other net habilites (18 8) {72) (22 8) 14 2} 15 2)
Net aperating assets L1988 1,166 5 1,033 2 7450 7472
Net (borrowingl/cash (215 2) (155 8) (507 120 2 249
Net assets 933 6 1,0107 9825 865 2 7721
Group cash flow statement
Underlying Group operating profii 1878 1936 174 4 i6H1 1230
Depreciation and other non-cash items 213 269 364 361 428
Working capial {66 4) (13 2) 51 16 2 164 2
Dividends receved from joint ventures 18 2 136 396 481 386
Underlying cash flow from operations 160.9 979 2555 2615 3686
Deticit pension contributions (39 2) {302 (36 2) (352 2909
Rationahisation costs (22 0) (28 6} {34 4) {15 6) {I71)
Interest tax and dividends (90 9) {872 77 (659) (63 2)
Net capital income/lexpenditure) {27 2) {156) 46 {15 3) (473)
Acquisitions and disposals (28 6) (326 (276 6) {28 6) 423
Other (12 4) {8 8) 67 {56) 27
Change in net hquidity (59 4) {1051) (170 9) 953 2516
Net cash/{borrowing) ai 1 January (155 8) (507) 1202 249 {2267)
Net cash/{borrowing) at 31 December (215 2) (155 8) {507 120 2 249
Group financial statistics
Earnings per share
Underlying earrmings per share Pence 347 404 423 404 350
Basic earnengs per share Pence 233 346 286 336 292
Dividends
Proposed full year dividend per share Pence 1750 1725 1690 1550 1460
Underlying proposed dividend cover Times 20 23 25 26 24
Basic proposed dividend cover Times 13 20 17 22 20

{1} Priar years income statement and cash tlow statement information has been restated on adoption of the amendmeni 1o |AS 19 on 1January 2013
{2} Restated lor the retrospective adjustmen: to provisionat amounts recegnised on the acquisiion of the Bouchier Group in 2012

Prior 1o the restatement on adoption of the amendment to IAS19, previously reported underlying profit before taxation and underlying earnings
per share were as follows

2012 200 2010 2009
Underlying profit betore taxation fm 2147 2120 1881 1755
Underlying earning per share Pence 430 430 394 373
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Technical index

Item Page ftem Page
Annual General Meeting 44 Remuneraucn Report
Auditors Advisers 68
Audit fee 87 Group Chief Executive’s remuneraiion,
Non audit fees 52,87 percentage change in 67
Independence 52 Loss of office payments 539,65
Appoiniment/Audit iendering 44,52 Paymenis to pastDirectors 65
Audit Commutiee 48 Pensions 54,62,65
Audit Commitiee Report 50 Policy for new appointments 58
Board evaluation 46 Rernuneration Committee Chairman’s Letter 53
Board, The 40,41 Staternent of Directors’ shareholding and
Business Integrity Committee 49 share interests 66
Business modsal 5 Statement of implementation of
Chanrmans statement 25 Remuneratron Policy/remuneraton philosophy 546)
Charman’s staiement (Governance) 39 Statement of shareholder voung 68
Charitable and polincal donauons 44 Service contracis 59
Consiruction services lexcluding the Middle East) 399 Single figure of remuneration for each Director 61
Corporate Governance report a5 Risk management/principal risks 1719
Directors, Report of the 42 Shareholder engagement 43,49,60
Direciors share interesis a4 Statement of complance (Governance) 45
Diversity 5,42,49 Statements of Directors’ responsiblities 69
Dividends 304290 raicgicreview &
Employees 014 213742,43 Jupporiservices 3.26
Ethics and Business Integrity Policy 45 Sustainability review 34
Five year review 27153 Total shareholder return 32,66
Geographical analysis 112,86 Values 17
Going concern 33
Greenhouse Gas Emissions 35,44
Group Chief Executive’s review 89
Health & Satety 9,21
Human nghts 45
Key Performance Indicators 21
Market review 10
Middle East construction services 3.28
Nominations Committee 48
Performance and linancial review 23
Principal subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 13
Public Private Partnership projects 327
Resources 14
Remuneratnon Commiitee 48




Carillion online

Carillion’s comprehensive website gives you fast, » Downloadable Annual Report and Accounts
direct access to a wide range of Company information *» Latest investor news and press releases

» Qur capabilities

= Our markets

* Sustainability

* News and media

To find out more go to www canllionplc com

@ Linkedin - Search ‘Canlhon’

o Twatter - @Carnlhonplc
o Facebook - Search ‘Canllion’
@ Flickr - fickr com/photos/cariionplc/

@ YouTube - youtube com/user/CarllionplcLatest

. Design and production CarnegieOrr
CarnegieOrr +44(0)1207 610 6140
www carnegieorr €o uk
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